
 

 
 

 

 
To: Councillor Cooney, Convener; Jean Morrison MBE, Vice-Convener,   and 

Councillors Delaney, Dickson, Jackie Dunbar, Lesley Dunbar, Finlayson, 
Lawrence, McCaig, Milne, Nathan Morrison, Noble, Samarai, Jennifer Stewart 
and Thomson.  
  

 

 
Town House, 

ABERDEEN 18 August 2014 
 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 

 The Members of the HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE are requested 
to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on TUESDAY, 26 AUGUST 2014 at 2.00 pm. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
JANE G. MACEACHRAN 

HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
 

 
 

B U S I N E S S 
 

1 Requests for Deputation   
 

 1.1  none requested at this time   
 

2 Determination of Exempt Business   
 

 2.1  Members are requested to resolve that any Exempt Business on this 
agenda be considered with the Press and Public excluded   
 

3 Minute, Committee Business Statement and Annual Reports List   
 

 3.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 20 May 2014  (Pages 1 - 10) 
 

 3.2  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 11 - 16) 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 
 

 3.3  Annual Reports List  (Pages 17 - 18) 
 

4 Performance Management and Service Issues   
 

 4.1  Housing and Environment Business Plan Performance and Actions - 
Report by the Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 19 - 44) 
 

5 Finance   
 

 5.1  2014/15 Housing Capital Programme - Joint Report by the Director of 
Housing and Environment and Acting Director of Corporate Governance  
(Pages 45 - 52) 
 

 5.2  2014/15 Revenue Monitoring Report - Joint report by the Director of 
Housing and Environment and the Acting Director for Corporate 
Governance  (Pages 53 - 62) 
 

 5.3  Capital Monitoring - Housing and Environment Projects - Report by the 
Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure  (Pages 63 - 66) 
 

6 Housing   
 

 6.1  Development of an Asset Management Model for the Councils Housing 
Stock - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 67 - 
72) 
 

 6.2  Rent Arrears Update - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment  
(Pages 73 - 76) 
 

 6.3  Update on the Review of Void Processes - Report by the Director of 
Housing and Environment  (Pages 77 - 84) 
 

 6.4  Housing for Varying Needs Review - Report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment  (Pages 85 - 100) 
 

 6.5  Haudagain Improvement Scheme - Report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment  (Pages 101 - 126) 
 

 6.6  Proposed Extended Use of Enforcement Funding - Report by the Director 
of Housing and Environment  (Pages 127 - 130) 
 

 6.7  Scottish Social Housing Charter Annual Report to Tenants - Report by the 
Director of Housing and Environment  (Pages 131 - 146) 
 



 

 
 
 

7 Environment   
 

 7.1  Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan - Report by the Director of Housing 
and Environment  (Pages 147 - 212) 
 

8 Items which the Committee may wish to discuss in private   
 

 8.1  Police Houses - Report by the Director of Community and Infrastructural 
Services  (Pages 213 - 216) 
 

 
 

 
 

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.gov.uk  
 
 
Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Karen 
Riddoch, tel. 522723 or email kariddoch@aberdeencity.gov.uk   
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 
ABERDEEN, 20 May 2014.  Minute of meeting of the HOUSING AND 
ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE.  Present:  Councillor Cooney, Convener; 
Councillor Jean Morrison MBE, Vice Convener; and Councillors Delaney, Dickson, 
Jackie Dunbar, Lesley Dunbar, Donnelly (as substitute for Councillor Nathan 
Morrison), Finlayson, Lawrence, McCaig, Milne, Nathan Morrison, Noble, 
Samarai, Jennifer Stewart and Thomson. 

 
 

The agenda and reports associated with this minute can be found at the 
following link: 
http://committees.aberdeencity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=144&MId=2914&Ver=4  
 

Please note that if any changes are made to this minute at the point of 
approval, these will be outlined in the subsequent minute and this 
document will not be retrospectively altered. 
 
 

MINUTE OF PREVIOUS MEETING OF 11 MARCH 2014 
 
1. The Committee had before it the minute of its previous meeting of 11 March 
2014. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to article 12, resolution (i), to note that the letter was not issued to the 

Justice Minister as the current system had improved with two dedicated Sherriff’s 
working on the cases; and  

(ii) to otherwise approve the minute as a correct record. 
 
 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT 
 
2. The Committee had before it a statement of business prepared by the head of 
Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to item 1 (Modernising Public Space CCTV) to note that a 

comprehensive report would be submitted to this Committee on 26 August 2014; 
(ii) to delete item 3 (Major Repairs to Multi Storey Blocks); and 
(iii) to otherwise note the business statement. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 1



2 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

ANNUAL REPORTS LIST 
 
3. The Committee had before it a list of annual reports prepared by the Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to delete item 5 (2013/14 Housing Capital Programme); and 
(ii) to otherwise note the annual reports list. 
 
 
REDUCTION IN GENERAL WASTE CONTAINER SIZE FOLLOWING 
INTRODUCTION OF MIXED RECYCLING COLLECTIONS - REFERRAL FROM 
ZERO WASTE MANAGEMENT SUB COMMITTEE 
 
4. With reference to article 4 of the minute of meeting of the Zero Waste 
Management Sub Committee of its meeting of 25 February 2014, the Committee had 
before it by way of a referral, a report by the Director of Housing and Environment, 
which sought approval for the reduction in the general waste bin capacity from 240 
litres to 180 litres for residents receiving the existing kerbside recycling collections and 
requested the Sub-Committee to note that the reduction in capacity would be 
implemented in conjunction with the roll out of mixed recycling collections. 
 
The Zero Waste Management Sub Committee approved the recommendations and 
referred the report to this Committee for approval. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to a question from Councillor Finlayson regarding recyclable materials 

not being collected when they were not placed in the current containers, to note 
that households could request additional containers and bags as only materials 
placed in the approved containers would be collected; and 

(ii) to otherwise note and approve the content of the report. 
 
 
HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY WORKING GROUP, CHANGE TO REMIT - 
REFERRAL FROM THE HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY WORKING GROUP 
 
5. With reference to article 7 of the minute of meeting of the Homelessness 
Strategy Working Group of 8 May 2014, the Committee had before it the revised remit 
of the Group which had been amended to reflect the modernising of the Housing 
Access Service. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to note and approve the changes in the remit as outlined in the report. 
 
 

Page 2



3 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT BUSINESS PLAN PERFORMANCE AND ACTIONS 
- H&E/14/045 
 
6. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the key performance measures and progress of key 
improvement work within the Housing and Environment Directorate. 
 
In relation to Void Management, the Convener provided an update relating to the 
current void figures and intimated that officers were using the new voids path and that 
there were several factors affecting the overall management of voids and requested 
that officers submit a report to the next meeting providing a detailed account of all of the 
void paths. 
 
In relation to Housing Allocations, Councillor Delaney requested an update in relation to 
Smithfield Court, whereupon the Housing Manager advised on the current situation in 
relation to the remaining tenant and the Head of Regeneration and Housing Investment 
advised that the work on site was due to commence in August with a completion date of 
within eight months. 
 
In relation to Housing Allocations, Councillor Jackie Dunbar intimated her concerns 
over the low number of applications being processed within 28 days.  The Housing 
Access Manager advised that there were a number of vacancies which he advised 
would be filled soon and that the backlog of applications were currently being 
processed. 
 
In relation to Homelessness Temporary Accommodation, Councillor Finlayson enquired 
as to the high cost of the weekly rents, wherein the Housing Manager advised that all of 
the properties were fully furnished and had a service charge for the management of the 
property.  He also stated that the majority of tenants offered the temporary 
accommodation qualified for full or partial housing benefit. 
 
In relation to Landlord Registration, Councillor Delaney enquired as to why the Council 
were not able to progress with issuing rent penalty charges for the 17 landlords that had 
not re-registered, whereupon the Head of Housing and Community Safety advised that 
the Council had to identify whether those landlords were still renting their properties 
before any action could be taken. 
 
In relation to Street Scene, Councillor Finlayson requested information specifically 
relating to the 0% value for Grounds Maintenance – Dog Fouling, wherein the 
Environment Manager advised that the figure provided was a random sample and 
would change depending on which streets were sampled at the time.  He further 
advised that the most up to date report from Street Scene would be circulated to 
members. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee provide comments and observations on the performance 
information contained in the report. 

Page 3



4 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in relation to Void Management, to note the update provided by the Convener 

relating to use of the new voids path and to instruct officers to submit a report to 
the next meeting of this Committee providing a detailed account of all void paths, 
specifically the issues around each of the paths; 

(ii) in response to a question from Councillor Delaney relating to Housing 
Allocations, specifically Smithfield Court, to note that the work on site was to 
commence in August and it was envisaged to be completed within eight months; 

(iii) in response to a question from Councillor Finlayson relating to Homelessness 
Temporary Accommodation and the weekly rent cost, to note that the weekly 
rent charges were attributed to them being fully furnished and the service 
charge; 

(iv) in response to a question from Councillor Delaney relating to 17 late Landlord 
Registrations and why the Council were not issuing rent penalty charges at this 
stage, to note that the Council had to identify whether the premises were still 
being let as private or rented accommodation and that the Head of Housing and 
Community Safety would provide Councillor Delaney with an update after the 
meeting; 

(v) in response to a question from Councillor Finlayson relating to Street Scene and 
the 0% value for Grounds Maintenance – Dog Fouling, to note that the figure 
provided is a random sample and would change depending on which streets 
were sampled at the time and to note that the most recent report would be 
circulated to members; and 

(vi) to otherwise note the report. 
 
 
2013-14 HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME - H&E/14/042 
 
7. With reference to article 8 of the minute of its meeting of 11 March 204, the 
Committee had before it a joint report by the Directors of Corporate Governance and 
Housing and Environment which provided a status report for the 2013/14 Housing 
Capital Programme as at 28 February 2014 summarising both income and expenditure. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee -  
(a) note the financial information contained within the report; and 
(b) instructs that the Head of Finance continues to update the Committee in 

consultation with the Director for Housing and Environment on the actual outturn 
position for 2013/14 following completion of the year end statutory accounts. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 

Page 4



5 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

2013-14 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING - H&E/14/043 
 
8. With reference to article 9 of the minute of its meeting of 11 March 2014, the 
Committee had before it a joint report by the Directors of Corporate Governance and 
Housing and Environment which advised on the 2013/14 revenue budget performance 
to date for the services which relate to this Committee and any areas of risk 
management action. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee - 
(a) consider and note the report and the information on management action and 

risks that is contained herein; and 
(b) instruct that officers report the year end position to the appropriate Committee. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
CAPITAL MONITORING - HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT PROJECTS - EPI/14/123 
 
9. With reference to article 10 of the minute of its meeting of 11 March 2014, the 
Committee had before it a report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and 
Infrastructure which advised on the capital spend to date for the Housing and 
Environment projects included in the Non-Housing Capital Programme. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the current position. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 

Declaration of Interest 
 
Councillor Delaney declared an interest in the subject matter of the 
following article by virtue of his position as Chairperson of Grampian 
Housing Association and chose to withdraw from the meeting during this 
item of business. 
 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING GRANT ASSISTANCE - H&E/14/037 
 
10. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which sought approval for the provision of grant assistance to Grampian 
Housing Association to help deliver additional affordable housing units at Hopetoun 
Grange, Bucksburn and to Grampian Housing Association and Castlehill Association to 
help deliver an affordable housing development at Maidencraig, Lang Stracht. 

Page 5



6 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee - 
(a) approve the funding of 5 additional affordable housing units at Hopetoun Grange 

with a grant to Grampian Housing Association of up to £103,126 to enable the 
provision of social rented units; 

(b) considers one of the following two options for funding the development of 36 
Affordable Housing Units at Maidencraig with the officer recommendation of 
Option 1 as it represented best value for the Council: 
(i) Option 1 - the grant of up £968,258 to Grampian Housing Association (12 

units) and Castlehill Housing Association (24 units) to enable the 
provision of 36 social rent units; or 

(ii) Option 2 - the grant of up to £1,046,439 to Grampian Housing Association 
(12 social rent) and Castlehill Housing Association (12 social and 12 mid 
market rent) to enable the provision of 24 social rent and 12 mid market 
rental units; and 

(c) agree that the grants will be paid from developer contributions received from 
Section 75 obligations with any balance to be paid from the income received 
from the reduced Council Tax Discount for Second Homes and Long Term 
Vacant Properties. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to approve recommendations (a) and (c) as contained in the report; and 
(ii) to approve recommendation (b)(i) as contained in the report. 
 
 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING DELIVERY - H&E/14/038 
 
11. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which (1) provided an update on the current position with Section 75 
financial contributions for affordable housing and the income received from the 
reduction in Council Tax Discount for Second Homes and Long Term Empty Properties 
and (2) provided details of affordable houses completed in 2013/14 and those expected 
to be completed in 2014/15 through to 2016/17. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the content of the report; and 
(b) instruct officers to continue to develop proposals for projects to utilise this 

funding whether they be City Council or Registered Social Landlord led projects. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 

Page 6



7 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

WELFARE REFORM AND FINANCIAL INCLUSION UPDATE - H&E/14/035 
 
12. With reference to article 15 of the minute of meeting of Council of 21 August 
2013, the Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and Environment 
which provided an update on actions taken since that report and on developments with 
the Welfare Reform agenda. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee note the progress made and the on-going actions as outlined in the 
report. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendation contained in the report. 
 
 
REQUIREMENT FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AT VARIOUS SEATON MULTI STORIES - 
H&E/14/033 
 
13. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided the outcome of further investigation into methods for 
dealing with water penetration in multi story blocks in the Seaton area and sought 
approval to proceed with over cladding, replacement of windows and flat roof renewal, 
where appropriate, in the seven blocks identified in the report following the positive 
outcome of discussions with private owners within the blocks. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee – 
(a) instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to pursue the proposal to carry 

out structural repairs, over clad, appropriate flat roof renewal and install new 
windows in the seven blocks referred to in the report; 

(ii) approve the use of ECO funding granted to the Council in connection with this 
project to be used to limit the cost of over cladding and window replacement 
works to private owners; and 

(iii) instruct the Director of Housing and Environment to monitor the situation with 
future energy efficiency grant funding levels and report back to this committee if 
any reduction in funding may have a detrimental effect on this project. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
PROJECT BRIEF FOR HAZLEHEAD GROVE NURSERY PROJECT - H&E/14/046 
 
14. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which presented the project brief for the Hazlehead Grove Nursery Project 
and advised that the document was a working document which would be developed 
and used for communicating key messages about the project. 

Page 7



8 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee approve the project brief. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) in response to questions from Councillors Finlayson and Thomson relating to 

allotments on the site, to note that the Head of Environment Services would be 
submitting a report relating to allotments to the next meeting of the Hazlehead 
Grove Nursery Working Group; 

(ii) to request that the size of the educational space and whether the University 
could be involved be discussed at the next meeting of the Hazlehead Grove 
Nursery Working Group; and 

(iii) to otherwise approve the project brief. 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION OF THE APPROVED RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE UNITED 
KINGDOM ACCREDITATION SERVICE (UKAS) ASSESSMENT OF THE 
ABERDEEN SCIENTIFIC SERVICES LABORATORY (ASSL) - H&E/14/044 
 
15. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which provided an update on the status of the United Kingdom 
Accreditation Service (UKAS) accreditation and the progress of the recommendations 
of assessment of the Aberdeen Scientific Services Laboratory. 
 
The report recommended: 
that the Committee - 
(a) note the work being undertaken to implement and develop the recommendations 

of the 26 and 27 March 2014 UKAS surveillance report; and 
(b) approve the continuation of accreditation as a license to operate. 
 
The Committee resolved:- 
(i) to congratulate all staff involved with the accreditation; and  
(ii) to otherwise approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
 
 
PROCUREMENT OF BIG BELLY LITTER BINS - H&E/14/041 
 
16. The Committee had before it a report by the Director of Housing and 
Environment which (1) sought approval to exempt the award of a contract for the lease 
of Big Belly litter bins from the Council’s Standing Orders relating to Contracts and 
Procurement (approved by Council on 5 March 2014) by reason of special 
circumstances and (2) sought approval of the estimated expenditure, as detailed in 
Section 3 of the report. 
 

Page 8



9 

 
 

HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMITTEE 
20 May 2014 

 
 
 

 

The report recommended: 
that the Committee - 
(a) approve the request under Standing Order 1(6)(a) for an exemption from the 

Council’s Standing Orders on Contracts and Procurement to enable a contract to 
be awarded for the provision of Big Belly litter bins; and 

(b) approve the estimated expenditure of £96,200 for the lease of twenty Big Belly 
litter bins over a five year period. 

 
The Committee resolved:- 
to approve the recommendations contained in the report. 
- COUNCILLOR COONEY, Convener. 
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
H

O
U

S
IN

G
 A

N
D

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 
 

C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 

 
2
6
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t 
c
o

n
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o

te
 o

f 
e
v
e
ry

 r
e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 f

o
r 

s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
. 

A
ll

 o
th

e
r 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
e
d

, 
a
s
 t

h
e
y
 a

re
 d

e
e
m

e
d

 t
o

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
 p

o
in

t 
o

f 
c
o

m
m

it
te

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

. 
 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 0

9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
6
 

       H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
9
 O

c
t 

1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
7
 

      H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
 

M
o

d
e
rn

is
in

g
 P

u
b

li
c
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

C
T

V
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
ll 

e
n
c
o
m

p
a
s
s
in

g
 

re
p
o
rt

, 
d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 
th

e
 

m
e
ri
ts

 
a
n
d
 

c
o
s
ts

 
o
f 

th
e
 

e
x
is

ti
n
g

 
a
n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 

n
e
w

 
C

C
T

V
 

s
y
s
te

m
, 

in
 

p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

C
C

T
V

 h
a
s
 h

a
d
 o

n
 

a
s
s
is

ti
n
g

 
c
o
n
v
ic

ti
o
n
s
; 

a
n
d
 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g
 

o
th

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 

a
n
d
 

n
e
w

 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
ie

s
 

th
a
t 

c
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 

a
d
o
p
te

d
, 

to
 

a
 

fu
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

(a
) 

to
 

n
o
te

 
th

e
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

m
a
d
e
 

in
 

te
rm

s
 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 
m

o
d
e
l;
 a

n
d
 

(c
) 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
 

th
e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 

in
-h

o
u
s
e
 

m
o
d
e
l 

b
y
 

p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 

a
 

d
e
ta

ile
d

 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

o
u
tl
in

e
s
 l

o
n
g

 
te

rm
 

fu
n
d
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

s
ta

ff
in

g
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

In
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 

to
 

it
e
m

 
1
 

(M
o
d
e
rn

is
a
ti
o
n
 

P
u
b
lic

 
S

p
a
c
e

 
C

C
T

V
),

 
to

 
n
o
te

 
th

a
t 

a
 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 

re
p
o
rt

 
w

o
u
ld

 
b
e

 
s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 

th
is

 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

o
n
 

2
6
 

  A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

u
ll
e
ti

n
 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

 
2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

Agenda Item 3.2

Page 11



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

A
u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
. 

2
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 0

6
 

A
u
g

 0
9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

D
u

th
ie

 
P

a
rk

 
R

e
s
to

ra
ti

o
n

 
–
 

H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 

L
o

tt
e
ry

 F
u

n
d

in
g

 B
id

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

 t
o
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 
re

p
o

rt
s
 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 
d
e
ta

ils
 
o
n
 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
n
d
e
ri
n
g

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
n
 

th
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
lle

ti
n
. 

  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

3
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
0
 O

c
t 

1
2
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 

o
f 

T
ra

n
s
fe

r 
o

f 
R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 

H
o

u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

to
 

a
n

 
A

rm
s

 
L

e
n

g
th

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
  

L
o
c
a
l 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 
T

ra
d
in

g
 
C

o
m

p
a
n
y
 
a
n
d

 
re

p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

im
e
. 

A
ft

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 i
t 
is

 a
p
p
a
re

n
t 
th

a
t 

b
e
fo

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g

 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 i
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
th

a
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
e
n
u
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

w
ill

 h
a

v
e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 

o
p
e
ra

te
 a

s
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

o
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

. 
 W

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 
c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
ff

 a
n
d
 u

n
io

n
s
 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f

u
tu

re
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 A

 r
e
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
c
e
 

a
ll 

th
e
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 
e
x
a
m

in
e
d
. 

 O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
in

g
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

a
ro

u
n

d
 A

rm
s
 L

e
n

g
th

 C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
in

g
 t

o
 

re
s
e
a
rc

h
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
m

e
ri

ts
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t.

 
 A

 r
e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
ll

e
ti

n
. 

  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

  
2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

4
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
5
 J

a
n
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

W
e
lf

a
re

 R
e
fo

rm
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 

W
e
lf
a
re

 
R

e
fo

rm
 

o
n
 

fu
tu

re
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
ts

. 

 W
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t

h
e
 i

m
p
a
c
t 

o
f 

w
e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
. 
  

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

 
 

Page 12



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

s
 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
n
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 

5
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 M

a
y
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
3
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
n

 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

to
c
k
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 i

n
s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

to
 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

s
s
e
t 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 

a
t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
. 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

6
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 M

a
y
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
5
 a

n
d
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

2
6
 J

u
n
e
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
9
 

T
il

ly
d

ro
n

e
 U

p
d

a
te

 –
 A

 W
a
y
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 
re

p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 t

o
 
a
 

fu
tu

re
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g

 
o
f 

th
e
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 

w
it
h

 
c
le

a
r 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 l

a
n
d
 u

s
e
 t

o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

b
a
s
e
d
 

u
p
o
n
 

th
e
 

d
e
s
k
to

p
 

re
p
o
rt

s
, 

ti
tl
e
 

re
p
o
rt

s
 

a
n
d
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
v
ia

b
ili

ti
e
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 s

it
e
. 

  
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
  

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

7
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

3
0
 A

u
g
 1

3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
 

H
o

u
s
e
s
 i

n
 M

u
lt

ip
le

 O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

 –
 N

e
w

 
P

o
w

e
rs

 i
n

 R
e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 O

v
e
rp

ro
v
is

io
n

  
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

(v
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 

H
M

O
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 O

ld
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

a
n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
a
c
k
 i
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
; 

a
n
d
  

(v
ii)

 
to

 
re

q
u
e
s
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
to

 
d
e
te

rm
in

e
 

th
e
 

s
c
a
le

 
o
f 

u
n
-r

e
g

is
te

re
d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 

a
v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 
le

t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 

C
it
y
 

a
n
d
 

re
p
o
rt

 
b
a
c
k
 

in
 

tw
e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
. 

  
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
6
 A

u
g

 1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

8
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

a
rk

in
g

 C
h

a
rg

e
s
 

T
o
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 I
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
y
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 a

ll 
p
a
rk

in
g

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 

a
n
d
 i
f 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 

a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 b
e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n
 u

p
d
a
te

 o
n
 h

o
w

 t
h
e
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

Page 13



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
. 

9
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
2
 

R
e
n

t 
A

rr
e
a
rs

 
 (

x
) 

to
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

 o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 i
n
 6

 
m

o
n
th

s
; 

(x
v
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 c

la
im

 
p
a
rt

ia
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 h

o
w

 
th

e
y
 w

e
re

 m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 t
o
 p

a
y
 t

h
e
 

re
m

a
in

in
g
 r

e
n
t.
 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

   

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

   

1
0
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
 

1
4
 J

a
n
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 2
3
 

In
s
ta

ll
a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

m
b

in
e
d

 H
e
a
t 

a
n

d
 

P
o

w
e
r 

a
n

d
 P

ro
p

o
s
a
ls

 f
o

r 
M

a
jo

r 
R

e
p

a
ir

s
 t

o
 M

u
lt

i 
S

to
re

y
s
 i

n
 t

h
e
 

C
o

rn
h

il
l 

A
re

a
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 

th
is

 C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 M

in
is

te
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

is
k
 w

it
h
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

rs
. 

T
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

re
p
a
ri
n
g
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 Q

C
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 m

a
tt
e
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 m

o
re

 
fo

rm
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 M

in
is

te
rs

. 
 

In
fo

rm
a
l 
d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
e
n
 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

it
 i
s
 a

n
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
le

g
a
l 
c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
 t
h
a
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 
b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
. 

 T
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a

l 
o
w

n
e
r 

w
h

o
 h

a
d
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 o
b
je

c
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
n
s
e
n
te

d
 

th
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 p
ro

c
e
e
d
 a

s
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 a
d
v
is

e
d
. 

 
 R

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 f
o

r 
re

m
o

v
a
l 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

 
 

1
1
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

1
1
 M

a
rc

h
 1

4
 

A
rt

ic
le

 5
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 
(H

a
z
le

h
e
a
d

 G
ro

v
e
 N

u
rs

e
ry

) 
to

 r
e
q

u
e
s
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 

tw
e
lv

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 t

im
e
 (

1
) 

o
u
tl
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 l
e
a
rn

t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
a
n
d
 (

2
) 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
 t

o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

5
 

M
a
rc

h
 1

5
 

1
2
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

&
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

2
0
 M

a
y
 1

4
 

V
o

id
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
(w

it
h

in
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
rt

) 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
e
 u

p
d
a
te

 p
ro

v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

  A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

 
 2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

 2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

Page 14



N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n

 
 U

p
d

a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 
D

u
e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

A
rt

ic
le

 6
 

C
o
n
v
e
n
e
r 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 v
o

id
 p

a
th

s
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 i
n
s
tr

u
c
t 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 t
o
 s

u
b
m

it
 a

 r
e
p
o
rt

 
o
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 o
f 
th

is
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 a
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

v
o
id

 
p
a
th

s
, 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 p

a
th

s
. 

          

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 T

O
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 –

 2
6
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0
1
4
 

 

N
o

. 
M

in
u

te
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e
 

  C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 

 U
p

d
a
te

 
 

L
e
a
d

 
O

ff
ic

e
r(

s
) 

R
e
p

o
rt

 D
u

e
  

R
e
p

o
rt

 
E

x
p

e
c
te

d
 

(i
f 

k
n

o
w

n
) 

1
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 i
n

 B
lo

o
m

 
T

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 t
h
e
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 I

n
 

B
lo

o
m

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 

 
H

e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

0
1
 M

a
r 

1
1
 

a
rt

ic
le

 3
4
 

A
ir

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 A

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
  

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

re
p
o
rt

 
a
n

n
u

a
ll

y
 

o
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
. 

  

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

3
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

4
 

J
a
n
 1

4
 a

rt
ic

le
  

C
o

u
n

tr
y
s
id

e
 R

a
n

g
e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 F

iv
e
 Y

e
a
r 

P
la

n
 

T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

T
o
 

re
q

u
e
s
t 

a
 

C
o
u
n
tr

y
s
id

e
 

R
a
n
g

e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 

A
n
n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 
to

 
th

e
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 
2
0
1
5
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
. 

   

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

4
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 1

9
 

N
o
v
 0

9
 

a
rt

ic
le

 2
7
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 D

o
g

 O
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
T

h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

:-
 

to
 
in

s
tr

u
c
t 

th
e
 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 
a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

to
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
n
 

a
n

n
u

a
l 

u
p
d
a
te

 
re

p
o
rt

 
o
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

d
o
g
 

o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 
to

 
th

e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

    

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
  
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

J
a
n
 1

5
 

5
. 

 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

2
9
 O

c
t 

1
3
 

A
rt

ic
le

 1
0
 

P
ri

v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 –

 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 

(i
i)
 

to
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
n
g

s
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
, 
o
n
 f
u
tu

re
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

, 
(o

r 
e
a
rl
ie

r 
a
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
) 

 A
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n

d
a
 

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 

2
8
 O

c
t 

1
4
 

2
6
 A

u
g
 1

4
 

  

Agenda Item 3.3

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment         
 
DATE  26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Housing and Environment Business Plan 

Performance and Actions 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/065 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to present committee with key performance 
measures and progress of key improvement work within the Housing and 
Environment Directorate. 

 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

It is recommended that the Committee: 
 

a) Provide comments and observations on the performance information 
contained in the report. 

b) Note the minor amendments to the structure of the report which reflects 
the restructure of the Homelessness and Housing Advice Service, now 
referred to as the Housing Access Service and Housing Support 
Service. 

c) Note the additional PIs as requested by Committee on the new void 
paths. 

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

 
There are no direct implications arising out of this report, although a number 
of comments are made on the use of resources. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no other direct implications arising out of this report regarding legal, 
resource, personnel, property, equipment, sustainability and environmental, 
health and safety; although a number of comments are made on the use of 
resources. 
 

 

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 19



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

This report presents members with key performance measures and progress 
of key improvement work within the Housing and Environment Directorate. 
 
This report also comprises of a progress report from the Director. 
 
Performance information and Actions progress are input and updated through 
Covalent, the corporate performance reporting system, by the relevant lead 
officers.  The data is reviewed and managed within the Directorate by the 
Director and Senior Management Team.   
 
Within the report the following symbols are used: 
   
Performance Measures 
 
Traffic Light Icon 
 

  On target or within 5% of target 
 

  Within 5% and 20 % of target and being monitored 
 

  Below 20% of target and being actively pursued 
 

   Data only PI as there is no target set 
 
 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The performance reporting framework is integrated with the Council’s 
ambition of being a top performing Council which delivers on the Community 
Plan and the Administration’s Policy Statement. 
 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

N/A 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
N/A 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Carol Fraser 
Team Manager (Communication and Administration) 
01224 523115 
carolfraser@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Page 20



 

 

 
Director’s Progress Report 

Housing and Environment 
21/05/14 – 25/08/14 

 
Low Cost Home Ownership - Scotia Homes are currently marketing 3 low 
cost home ownership properties at Dubford, Bridge of Don, as part of their 
obligation to provide a percentage of affordable housing on new 
developments in the city. These are aimed primarily at first time buyers on 
modest incomes and current tenants of Aberdeen City Council and Registered 
Social Landlords in the city are given priority. Barratt Homes are also 
developing at the same location and will be providing 8 x 3 bedroom 
properties.  Aberdeen City Council will process the applications for these 
properties and prioritise applicants to ensure they are sold to people who may 
otherwise be unable to meet their housing needs.  Purchasers grant a 
Standard Security in favour of ACC for the discounted amount to ensure the 
properties remain affordable for future sales.   

Housing (Scotland) Act 2014 – The Act  will receive royal assent soon and 
regulations and supplementary guidance will be issued later this year.    The 
Act covers a wide range of housing issues affecting social housing, the law 
affecting private housing, the regulation of letting agents and the licensing of 
sites for mobile homes. One of the main provisions of the Act is the abolition 
of the right to buy which will have an impact on a number of social housing 
tenants.  
 
Supported Work Placements - Aberdeen City Council has launched a 
scheme to help disadvantaged young people move into the world of work. The 
unique programme has been designed to offer supported work placements for 
the participants within the many skilled trades carried out by the City Council – 
with educational opportunities also on offer to make sure the young people 
emerge better equipped for working life. The initiative will be based initially 
within the Building Services team, but hopes are high that it could be rolled 
out across a range of council services and ultimately into the private sector. 
Support will be offered through the whole period to help the young workers sit 
and pass the core entrance exam which is a ‘must’ for acceptance on an 
apprenticeship scheme. They will also be given an allowance during their time 
working with the Council, and will receive a certificate on completing the 
course which can be presented to a prospective future employee. 

Graduate Trainees - A Graduate Trainee scheme has been introduced within 
the Housing Service. The scheme is aimed at university graduates who have 
the potential to be developed into future managers and leaders of the City 
Council.  Each trainee recruited will be supported by management within the 
City Council and the Human Resources and Organisational development 
service. They will be expected to become professionally qualified in an 
appropriate discipline and whilst as a trainee, in addition to their development, 
they will contribute during their period as a trainee both to the ongoing work of 
the Directorate but will also carry out specific projects to contribute to the 
Councils Vision of a Smarter City. The Trainees will be recruited on a 2 year 
fixed term basis and would be expected to complete the full first year of the 
scheme before being considered for a permanent post elsewhere within the 

Page 21



 

 

Directorate or Council. The initial 2 trainees took up their posts in early 
August. 

Mixed Recycling - The first mixed recycling bins in the city are now available 
to approximately 420 properties on Bedford Road, Powis Circle and Powis 
Crescent. The new bins take more materials compared to the kerbside box 
and bag service with plastic pots, tubs and trays added to the existing paper, 
cardboard, metal, glass and plastic bottles collection. Residents in this area 
were also recently offered a food recycling collection. The Powis Residents 
Group has taken an active role in helping to spread the word about the new 
services including organising a clean up day on the 28th June and posting 
regular messages on their Facebook page to promote the new services, 
encourage residents to make the most of them, as well as to report and 
resolve any problems that come up. The mixed recycling pilot is due to be 
extended at the end of July to Bedford Road, Elmbank Road, Jute Street and 
Nelson Street. This will add almost 600 more properties to the new service 
and be a precursor to all flats and tenements receiving the service in 2015/16. 

WWI and Britain in Bloom Flower Crests - The outbreak of the First World 
War and the 50th anniversary of the Britain in Bloom competition are being 
commemorated in Aberdeen through a series of floral crests. Three have 
been planted in Union Terrace Gardens to complement the existing Bon 
Accord crest, while a further two have been planted in Rubislaw Terrace 
Gardens. The three new Union Terrace Gardens crests commemorate the 
100th anniversary of the outbreak of the First World War and feature the logos 
for veterans’ charity Erskine, the Gordon Highlanders and Poppyscotland. The 
crests in Rubislaw Terrace Gardens commemorate the 50th anniversary of 
the Britain in Bloom competition and Aberdeen’s involvement as an original 
entrant in 1964. They have been planted beside the fountain which was 
commissioned to mark Aberdeen’s consecutive wins in 1969, 1970 and 1971. 
The Britain in Bloom 50th anniversary logo and the Aberdeen in Bloom logo 
are depicted in the planting. 
 
Duthie Park - Duthie Park has been awarded a Green Flag for 2014/15 from 
Keep Scotland Beautiful which is given in recognition of achieving the national 
standard for parks and green spaces. This is the second year that the Duthie 
Park has been recognised for the hard work and dedication of park staff, 
volunteers and communities in creating and maintaining the park to an 
excellent standard. Keep Scotland Beautiful aims to improve our environment 
and the quality of life of people in Scotland by working in partnership with a 
wide range of individuals, volunteers and organisations. Delivering the Green 
Flag Award in Scotland is an important part of this vision, to encourage and 
recognise the commitment to achieve this national benchmark of quality. 

Duthie Park Ranger Service Environment Day - Sunday 20th July was the 
Duthie Park Ranger Service’s first ‘Environment Day’.  Over the afternoon 500 
people came along to ‘The Green’ to visit a variety of stall holders, taking part 
in a range of free activities.  As well as the Ranger Service, the Butterfly 
Conservation Society, Satrosphere, the Royal Horticultural Society of 
Aberdeen, ACC Tree Squad, Aberdeen and District Beekeepers Association, 
an Allotment Market Stall, the Owl and Pussy Cat Company and the 
Aberdeen Play Forum where all there providing information and interactive 
activities for the whole family. 

Page 22



1
 

H
&

E
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 P
e
r
fo

r
m

a
n

c
e
 R

e
p

o
r
t 

      

 
 R

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

, 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

£
1
,4

0
0
,0

0
0
 

£
1
,5

2
7
,1

6
6
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

fo
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

. 
 

1
6
5
,0

0
0
 

9
2
,8

0
0
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

  
7
,0

8
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 m

o
n
e
ta

ry
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
te

n
a
n
ts

 a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 r

e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
  

  
£
2
,9

9
5
,5

4
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 o

w
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

2
5
0
) 

a
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 

re
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

8
.6

%
 

7
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 g
iv

in
g
 u

p
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

w
it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 o
f 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 %

 o
f 
a
ll
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
2
9
%

 
3
4
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

e
e
k
s
 d

e
b
t 

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 o
f 
g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
, 

a
s
 a

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
. 
 

1
3
.4

 
1
8
.7

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

: 
A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 J

u
ly

 r
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 

th
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
ts

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
£
2
,9

9
5
,5

4
9
 (

7
.3

%
 n

e
t 

d
e
b
it
).

 T
h
is

 i
s
 u

p
 2

.1
%

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 £

2
,9

3
3
,2

5
3
 

fi
g
u
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 b

u
t 

is
 a

 £
6
0
2
,2

1
9
 (

1
6
.7

%
) 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 v
a
lu

e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
. 
It

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 n

o
ta

b
le

 t
h
a
t 

s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 o
n
 N

e
w

 M
o
d
e
l 
R
e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 8

1
8
8
 t

o
 1

3
,3

8
2
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 g
e
n
e
ra

l 
re

n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
3
.5

%
. 

A
s
 s

u
c
h
 R

e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 i
n
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

; 
a
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

b
y
 1

4
.5

%
 a

n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
3
 a

n
d
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 r
o
s
e
 b

y
 1

6
.9

%
. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 7

0
8
3
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 r

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
0
.5

%
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 5

8
7
6
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
; 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

re
n
t 

fr
e
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

te
n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

s
in

c
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 
A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
, 

th
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 
w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 m
a
in

ly
 h

a
v
e
 s

m
a
ll
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

0
.0

1
 a

n
d
 £

2
5
0
 b

u
t 

in
 t

u
rn

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 c
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 

£
1
0
0
0
 i
n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll
 r

is
e
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
 

  T
h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 c
a
s
e
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 b

ro
k
e
n
 d

o
w

n
 a

s
 f
o
ll
o
w

s
: 

 
  

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

E
s
ta

te
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

Page 23



2
 

1
2
2
4
 (

1
7
.3

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

5
0
  

2
4
7
1
 (

3
4
.9

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

5
0
.0

1
 &

 £
2
5
0
  

2
5
8
5
 (

3
6
.5

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

2
5
0
.0

1
 &

 £
1
0
0
0
  

7
7
0
 (

1
0
.9

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

1
0
0
0
.0

1
 &

 £
3
0
0
0
  

3
3
 (

0
.4

%
) 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

in
g
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 £

3
0
0
0
.0

1
  

  A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 J

u
ly

 r
e
n
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
7
%

 o
f 
o
u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
w

e
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

3
 w

e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

(e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 £

2
5
0
);

 a
 0

.5
%

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 7

.5
%

 f
ig

u
re

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
.6

%
. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
, 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 2

0
5
9
 f
ir
s
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 w

a
rn

in
g
 l
e
tt

e
rs

; 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 3
1
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

9
8
6
 w

a
rn

in
g
 l
e
tt

e
rs

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 

s
ta

g
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

N
o
ti
c
e
s
 o

f 
P
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

it
s
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

, 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

is
s
u
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 s

ta
n
d
s
 a

t 
7
8
6
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 

d
o
w

n
 8

.2
%

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 8

5
6
 N

O
S
P
’s

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 7

2
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 d

e
c
re

e
 f
o
r 

re
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 s
o
 f
a
r 

in
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
; 

th
is

 i
s
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 3

8
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
-1

4
. 
 

  In
 J

u
ly

, 
3
4
.8

%
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 t
e
rm

in
a
te

d
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 w

it
h
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

 w
e
e
k
 o

f 
re

n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

; 
th

is
 i
s
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 3

2
.3

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il
’s

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
2
9
%

. 
T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 d

e
b
t 

o
w

e
d
 b

y
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 a
m

o
u
n
ts

 t
o
 1

8
.7

 w
e
e
k
s
, 
th

is
 f

ig
u
re

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 1
3
.4

 w
e
e
k
 t

a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 1

3
.6

 w
e
e
k
 f
ig

u
re

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
. 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
v
e
ra

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
; 

m
o
s
t 

n
o
ta

b
ly

 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
rt

 s
y
s
te

m
, 
th

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

e
lf
a
re

 r
e
fo

rm
, 

th
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
re

 a
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
1
0
; 

w
h
ic

h
 

m
a
n
d
a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

s
o
c
ia

l 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 m

u
s
t 

u
n
d
e
rg

o
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
h
e
c
k
s
 b

e
fo

re
 a

 N
o
ti
c
e
 o

f 
P
ro

c
e
e
d
in

g
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
; 

in
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 d
ri
v
e
 t

o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 o

n
ly

 p
re

s
s
in

g
 f
o
r 

d
e
c
re

e
 w

h
e
n
 a

ll
 o

th
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

re
c
o
v
e
ri
n
g
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
h
a
u
s
te

d
. 
 

  T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

ta
n
d
s
 a

t 
£
1
,5

2
7
,1

6
6
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
£
1
,4

0
0
,0

0
0
. 
S
in

c
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 

h
a
s
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 £

9
2
,8

0
0
 o

f 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 f
ro

m
 f
o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 8

5
.4

%
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 £

5
0
,0

4
5
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

o
in

t 
la

s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 o

n
 

tr
a
c
k
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
£
1
6
5
,0

0
0
. 
T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 £

1
6
5
,6

2
7
 s

in
c
e
 Y

e
a
r 

E
n
d
, 
th

is
 i
s
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 £

4
4
,3

4
2
 w

ri
tt

e
n
 o

ff
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 b

o
th

 F
T
A
 p

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 w

ri
te

 o
ff
s
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 f
u
ll
 t

im
e
 F

T
A
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

rr
e
a
rs

 R
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 T
e
a
m

 w
h
o
 t

o
o
k
 u

p
 

p
o
s
t 

in
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
 

F
o
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 p

le
a
s
e
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 H
&

E
/1

4
/0

5
7
 '
R
e
n
t 

A
rr

e
a
rs

 U
p
d
a
te

' 
 

 

 
 T

e
n

a
n

c
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
th

e
ir
 h

o
m

e
 w

h
e
n
 m

o
v
in

g
 i
n
 (

Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

) 
- 

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

8
0
%

 
7
2
%

 
 

 
 S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 E

s
ta

te
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

(Y
e
a
r 

to
 D

a
te

) 
 

9
0
%

 
8
0
%

 
 

 
 %

 o
f 

T
e
n
a
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 (

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 A

b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 A
s
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

Jo
in

t 
T
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 

L
o
d
g
e
r,

 S
in

g
le

 A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 
S
in

g
le

 T
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 

S
u
b
le

t,
 S

u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
) 

w
h
ic

h
 s

a
w

 a
 d

e
c
is

io
n
/o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

 a
n
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

a
rg

e
t 

1
0
0
%

 
9
4
%

 
 

 
 %

 o
f 
N

e
w

 T
e
n
a
n
t 

V
is

it
s
 (

R
o
u
ti
n
e
 V

is
it
s
) 

in
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 w
it
h
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
  

1
0
0
%

 
7
8
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

 
  

2
0
,8

1
8
 

 

Page 24



3
 

 
 O

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 c
it
y
w

id
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r,

 t
h
e
 %

 t
h
a
t 

re
la

te
d
 t

o
 

R
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 A

rr
e
a
rs

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

 
  

5
5
.9

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
le

g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 d

e
c
re

e
. 
 

  
7
2
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 a

 y
e
a
r 

 
9
4
%

 
9
4
.5

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 S

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
, 

tw
o
 n

e
w

 S
c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 T

e
n
a
n
c
y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
 R

e
p
o
rt

. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

re
c
o
rd

s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 

th
e
ir
 h

o
m

e
 w

h
e
n
 m

o
v
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
 

ta
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
%

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 7
2
%

, 
s
li
g
h
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t.

  
 T
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

c
o
rd

s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

it
s
 a

t 
8
0
%

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
9
0
%

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 
 

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 o

b
li
g
a
te

d
 t

o
 v

is
it
 n

e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

 a
n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t 

is
 1

0
0
%

. 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

it
s
 a

t 
7
8
.8

%
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 t

a
rg

e
t 

b
u
t 

u
p
 s

li
g
h
tl
y
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 7

8
.4

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 O

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 (

A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 A
s
s
ig

n
a
ti
o
n
, 

Jo
in

t 
T
e
n
a
n
c
y
, 

L
o
d
g
e
r,

 S
in

g
le

 A
b
a
n
d
o
n
m

e
n
t,

 S
in

g
le

 T
e
rm

in
a
ti
o
n
, 
S
u
b
le

t 
a
n
d
 

S
u
c
c
e
s
s
io

n
) 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 9

4
%

; 
th

is
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 9

0
%

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 b

u
t 

n
a
rr

o
w

ly
 f

a
ll
s
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
1
0
0
%

. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 9

1
.4

%
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 t

o
 9

4
.5

%
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
n
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
9
4
%

. 
T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 7

2
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 a

ft
e
r 

d
e
c
re

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

; 
th

is
 i
s
 u

p
 8

9
.5

%
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 3

8
 l
e
g
a
l 
re

p
o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

ta
g
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 i
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 m

o
re

 t
e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 o

u
r 

te
n
a
n
ts

 o
ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
re

p
a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
, 

d
e
b
t 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 d

o
 n

o
t 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

s
 a

 l
a
s
t 

re
s
o
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

il
l 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

e
c
o
v
e
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
. 

 
 A
s
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 e

s
ta

te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
ta

ff
 t

o
 u

s
e
 m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
 w

h
e
n
 o

u
t 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
ir
 p

a
tc

h
e
s
 t

o
 v

ie
w

 a
n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

 l
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
W

o
rl
d
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
h
a
v
in

g
 t

o
 w

a
it
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
y
 g

e
t 

b
a
c
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 P

C
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 o

ff
ic

e
. 
T
h
is

 a
ll
o
w

s
 s

ta
ff
 t

o
 i
n
te

ra
c
t 

w
it
h
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 o
n
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 e

s
ta

te
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

is
s
u
e
s
 f
a
c
e
 t

o
 f

a
c
e
 a

n
d
 m

o
d
e
rn

is
e
s
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 a

s
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
v
id

e
 o

u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 o

f 
m

o
b
il
e
 d

e
v
ic

e
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 d

ro
p
p
e
d
 f
ro

m
 2

8
,7

3
3
 i
n
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 t

o
 2

0
,8

1
8
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 

O
f 
th

is
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

5
5
.9

%
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
la

te
d
 t

o
 r

e
n
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 

s
li
g
h
tl
y
 u

p
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 5

5
.1

%
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
 

V
a
ri
o
u
s
 m

e
th

o
d
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 
S
im

p
li
fi
e
d
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 f
o
ll
o
w

 u
p
 

a
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 v

is
it
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 r

e
tu

rn
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 o

b
ta

in
 b

e
tt

e
r 

q
u
a
li
ty

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

h
e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

. 
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 a

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ll
y
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
 

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

     

Page 25



4
 

 
 V

o
id

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 R

e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

o
id

s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
g
ro

s
s
 r

e
n
t 

d
u
e
 -

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 -

 C
h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

1
.4

%
 

1
.9

1
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

a
ll
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 -

 C
h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

5
0
 

8
1
.9

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 F

a
s
t 

tr
a
c
k
 v

o
id

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
1
4
 

1
4
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 R

o
u
ti
n
e
 v

o
id

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
2
8
 

5
4
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 v

o
id

 d
u
e
 t

o
 D

e
a
th

 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
4
2
 

8
8
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 v

o
id

 d
u
e
 t

o
 S

H
Q

S
 w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
4
9
 

6
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 v

o
id

 d
u
e
 t

o
 m

a
jo

r 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
4
9
 

7
2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 l
e
t 

a
 v

o
id

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
 O

T
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

  
4
2
 

1
2
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
  

6
5
%

 
6
6
.5

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
v
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
to

c
k
 a

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
1
.8

%
 

2
.3

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

  
4
2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
V
o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t 
w

it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e
k
s
  

5
6
.6

%
 

1
3
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

: 
 

In
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 1

8
6
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t 
in

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 1
0
7
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t 
in

 J
u
ly

. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
 1

7
 w

e
re

 r
e
le

t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

4
 w

e
e
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
 

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
6
7
 o

f 
th

e
 5

1
7
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
le

t,
 (

1
3
.0

%
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
 w

it
h
in

 4
 w

e
e
k
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 w

e
ll
 b

e
lo

w
 t

h
e
 5

6
.6

%
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t 

a
t 

th
e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
th

e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 t

o
 r

e
le

t 
a
ll
 v

o
id

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 8

1
.9

 d
a
y
s
, 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
5
0
 d

a
y
s
. 
T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

w
a
s
 

6
5
.1

 d
a
y
s
. 
 

 A
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 v

o
id

 p
a
th

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 p

e
r 

v
o
id

 p
a
th

 i
s
 a

s
 f
o
ll
o
w

s
: 

 
F
a
s
t 

tr
a
c
k
 v

o
id

 1
4
 d

a
y
s
  

R
o
u
ti
n
e
 v

o
id

 5
4
 d

a
y
s
  

S
H

Q
S
 v

o
id

 6
9
 d

a
y
s
  

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 26



5
 

M
a
jo

r 
W

o
rk

s
 v

o
id

 7
2
 d

a
y
s
  

D
e
c
e
a
s
e
d
 v

o
id

 8
8
 d

a
y
s
  

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 A

d
a
p
ti
o
n
s
 v

o
id

 1
2
3
 d

a
y
s
  

V
R
3
 v

o
id

 1
9
4
 d

a
y
s
  

 V
o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

.9
1
%

 o
f 

n
e
t 

d
e
b
it
 Y

T
D

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
1
.4

%
. 

T
h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

fi
g
u
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
; 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 

fi
g
u
re

 o
f 
1
.6

8
%

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 
Ju

ly
 s

a
w

 a
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
1
.3

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
c
e
d
in

g
 m

o
n
th

s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 £

4
8
,6

8
8
 c

re
d
it
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

M
id

d
le

fi
e
ld

 a
re

a
 w

h
e
re

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
S
m

it
h
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
v
e
d
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
w

o
rk

s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 b

a
c
k
d
a
te

 w
a
s
 a

 
v
o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 c

re
d
it
 i
n
 t

h
e
 M

a
s
tr

ic
k
 a

re
a
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
 n

e
g
a
ti
n
g
 a

c
tu

a
l 
v
o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
. 
In

 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
T
il
ly

d
ro

n
e
 a

n
d
 M

a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
a
re

a
s
 –

 v
o
id

 r
e
n
t 

lo
s
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
in

 
T
il
ly

d
ro

n
e
 b

u
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 M

a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
a
re

a
. 
 

 T
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
v
o
id

s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ta

n
t 

a
t 

5
1
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 c

it
y
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
, 
9
0
 w

e
re

 o
ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
, 
d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 a
d
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 S

m
it
h
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 c
o
m

p
le

x
. 
 

 In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
o
ff

e
rs

 m
a
d
e
, 

th
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
5
2
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

, 
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 3

8
1
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
. 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
6
5
.0

%
, 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 6
6
.5

%
 o

ff
e
r 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

. 
T
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
w

it
h
d
ra

w
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 (
9
0
) 

re
m

a
in

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t,

 b
u
t 

h
ig

h
, 

a
g
a
in

s
t 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
ff
e
re

d
. 
 

 P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

o
ff

e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

, 
w

e
re

 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
r 

re
fu

s
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

. 
O

f 
th

e
 4

9
 o

ff
e
rs

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
, 
2
1
.5

%
 w

e
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
re

a
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
, 
2
1
.5

%
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 

re
a
s
o
n
s
, 
2
1
%

 w
e
re

 c
a
n
c
e
ll
e
d
/ 

d
e
fe

rr
e
d
, 
3
1
%

 w
e
re

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 5

%
 f
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
 

A
 d

e
ta

il
e
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 d

e
ta

il
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
. 
 

 

 
 T

e
n

a
n

t 
P

a
r
ti

c
ip

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

T
e
n
a
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
  

  
4
7
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
T
e
n
a
n
t 

G
ro

u
p
s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
  

3
5
%

 
2
9
.8

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 o

r 
a
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g
 (

T
e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
).

 T
y
p
e
s
 

o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 c

o
u
ld

 T
e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

T
P
A
S
),

 T
e
n
a
n
t 

Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 (

T
IS

),
 C

h
a
rt

e
re

d
 I

n
s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 (

C
IH

) 
c
o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
s
, 
R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 (
R
T
O

) 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

r 
m

o
re

 s
p
e
c
ia

li
s
e
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
u
te

r 
s
k
il
ls

. 
 

  
1
4
4
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 n

o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

p
o
s
it
io

n
 o

n
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 s

in
c
e
 l
a
s
t 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 4

7
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 g

ro
u
p
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 c

it
y
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
 4

7
 g

ro
u
p
s
, 
2
9
.8

%
 (

1
4
) 

a
re

 R
e
g
is

te
re

d
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

O
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

R
T
O

’s
),

 w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 c

o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

ig
h
t 

to
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

a
b
re

a
s
t 

o
f 

a
ll
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 s

e
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
3
5
%

 o
f 

it
s
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 R

T
O

’s
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 i
W

o
rl
d
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 m

o
n
th

ly
. 

 
 A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 T

e
n
a
n
t 

P
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 m
e
a
n
in

g
fu

l 
o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

il
l 
in

c
lu

d
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t

e
n
a
n
t 

s
p
e
n
d
 a

n
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

 T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

te
n
a
n
t 

0
7
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 27



6
 

g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t

h
e
s
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 c

re
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
. 
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

C
h
a
rt

e
r 

T
h
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
u
la

to
r 

w
a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 3

0
th

 M
a
y
 2

0
1
4
 d

e
a
d
li
n
e
. 

T
h
e
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 
S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 S

u
rv

e
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
is

 a
g
e
n
d
a
 w

it
h
 a

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 f
o
r 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 T
h
e
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 f
o
r 

is
s
u
e
 b

y
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
T
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 W

e
b
 p

a
g
e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
d
a
te

d
. 
 

0
6
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 f
o
r 

V
a
ry

in
g
 N

e
e
d
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

T
h
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 -

 t
h
is

 p
h
a
s
e
 w

il
l 
ru

n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
3
 –

 2
0
1
5
. 
 

  S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 A

m
e
n
it
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g
: 

 
T
h
e
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 t

ra
n
s
it
io

n
 f
ro

m
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 
A
ll
 f

u
tu

re
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

s
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 a
t 

th
e
s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t

o
 s

e
e
 i
f 
a
n
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
u
ld

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
e
q
u
a
te

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e
m

. 
 

  T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

: 
B
a
lm

o
ra

l 
C
o
u
rt

, 
B
e
d
e
 H

o
u
s
e
 C

o
u
rt

, 
B
e
rr

y
m

o
s
s
 C

o
u
rt

, 
C
ra

ig
to

n
 P

a
rk

, 
M

e
a
d
o
w

 C
o
u
rt

, 
P
a
rk

h
il
l 
C
o
u
rt

, 
R
e
g
e
n
s
b
u
rg

 C
o
u
rt

, 
S
e
a
v
ie

w
 H

o
u
s
e
, 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 L

a
n
e
, 
C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 S
o
u
th

 C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
 

S
tr

e
e
t,

 T
h
o
rn

g
ro

v
e
 C

o
u
rt

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll
, 

a
lm

o
s
t 

4
0
%

 o
f 

te
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 r
e
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 v

o
id

 t
u
rn

o
v
e
r.

  
  A
 r

e
p
o
rt

 o
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

is
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
. 
 

  S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 V

e
ry

 S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
: 

 
T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 v

e
ry

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

il
l 
b
e
 P

ro
v
o
s
t 

H
o
g
g
 C

o
u
rt

 
in

 T
o
rr

y
. 
It

 i
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

a
te

ll
it
e
 c

o
tt

a
g
e
s
 a

t 
th

is
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

w
il
l 
re

m
a
in

 a
s
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
. 

S
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 s

e
e
 w

h
a
t 

p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 f
a
c
il
it
a
te

 t
h
is

 
c
h
a
n
g
e
. 
 

  S
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 M

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 H
o
u
s
in

g
: 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro

m
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 w

il
l 
b
e
 S

m
it
h
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

. 
P
ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
is

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

re
tu

rn
in

g
 t

o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 a

s
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
, 

a
 m

a
jo

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e
 b

u
il
d
in

g
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 

  

1
3
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

        

Page 28



7
 

      

 
 A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

4
,7

8
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

4
9
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

7
8
7
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
li
s
t 

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

1
,6

7
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
s
h
o
rt

li
s
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 d

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 l
is

t 
a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

d
a
y
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

4
9
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

t,
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

 
  

1
4
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

t,
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
  

8
4
%

 
6
6
.2

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
O

n
 t

h
e
 7

th
 o

f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 

th
e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

h
e
re

 a
ll
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 f
la

g
s
h
ip

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
A
 k

e
y
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

y
; 

 
· 

P
ro

v
id

in
g
 c

u
s
to

m
e
rs

 w
it
h
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

e
a
li
s
ti
c
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
ts

  
· 

E
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 t
h
e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 

b
e
s
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 9
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
, 

fr
o
m

 6
8
0
5
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

o
 7

3
9
4
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 3

1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
. 

W
h
il
e
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 s

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
o
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r,

 i
n
 r

e
a
l 
te

rm
s
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
p
p
ly

in
g
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
s
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 f

a
ll
e
n
 b

y
 5

7
%

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 m

o
d
e
l.
 T

h
e
 c

a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
s
 a

c
tu

a
ll
y
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 a

 6
7
%

 d
e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
c
e
ll
e
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 a

 s
li
g
h
t 

d
e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 
T
h
e
 6

7
%

 d
e
c
li
n
e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
n
c
e
ll
e
d
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

u
s
p
e
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

re
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

ll
o
w

 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

to
 a

ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t.
  

 A
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
c
a
n
 b

e
 o

n
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 l
is

t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 l
is

ts
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 7

%
 t

o
 7

7
9
1
. 

O
f 
th

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
; 

 
· 

4
9
3
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

L
is

t 
 

· 
4
9
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 L
is

t 
 

· 
7
8
8
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
is

t 
 

· 
4
3
8
8
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 W

a
it
in

g
 L

is
t 

 
· 

1
6
3
3
 a

re
 o

n
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
L
is

t 
 

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

Page 29



8
 

 T
h
e
 b

ig
g
e
s
t 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

ff
e
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

s
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 3

1
s
t 

o
f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 b

e
 a

 3
8
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

L
is

t 
a
n
d
 

a
 1

0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t.
 T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

is
 a

n
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t

ig
h
te

n
in

g
 u

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 l
a
rg

e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

th
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

n
le

s
s
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
 w

il
l 
n
e
v
e
r 

b
e
 

s
e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

2
9
5
 (

2
7
%

) 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
n
d
 7

7
1
 (

4
7
%

) 
o
n
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
li
s
t 

h
a
v
e
 0

 p
o
in

ts
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
n
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
. 
 

 S
in

c
e
 i
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

o
s
t 

re
c
e
n
t 

re
c
o
rd

s
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

6
6
%

 o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 2

8
 d

a
y
s
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 d
o
w

n
 1

1
%

 f
ro

m
 7

7
%

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
2
, 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

re
c
o
rd

e
d
 f

ig
u
re

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

w
it
h
 i
t 

a
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u
re

 a
n
d
 a

 n
e
w

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
. 
A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
is

 w
id

e
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

 n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 w
a
s
 e

s
ta

b
li
s
h
e
d
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

it
h
 u

n
m

e
t 

s
o
c
ia

l/
m

e
d
ic

a
l 
n
e
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 e

lo
n
g
a
te

d
 t

h
e
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
il
e
 t

h
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 l
o
n
g
e
r,

 t
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
tt

e
r 

o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
h
o
u
s
in

g
 t

im
e
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
e
t 

in
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
. 
A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 n

o
w

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 i
t 

m
e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 S

M
A
R
T
E
R
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
 

  T
h
e
 Y

T
D

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

p
la

c
e
s
 e

v
e
n
 g

re
a
te

r 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 a

n
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 a

c
u
te

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
r,

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

ti
ll
 g

re
a
tl
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 s

u
p
p
ly

. 
G

iv
e
n
 t

h
a
t 

o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 5

1
4
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 r

e
-l

e
t 

e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

h
a
s
 t

h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
/s

u
p
p
ly

 t
o
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

%
 o

f 
th

e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
o
n
 t

h
e
 l
is

t 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

  Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
5
1
6
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
h
o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 l
is

ts
, 

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
1
2
9
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 p

e
r 

m
o
n
th

. 
A
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
v
e
a
ls

; 
 

· 
1
8
5
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 U

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

 
· 

2
2
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 D

is
c
re

ti
o
n
a
ry

 L
is

t 
 

· 
9
5
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 L
is

t 
 

· 
1
3
5
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 W

a
it
in

g
 L

is
t 

 
· 

7
9
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t

h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fe

r 
L
is

t 
 

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 q

u
o
ta

 f
o
r 

a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

4
9
%

 o
f 
le

ts
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t

o
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t,

 1
1
%

 s
h
o
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 6

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

 
T
h
e
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 q

u
o
ta

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 f

u
tu

re
. 
T
h
e
 1

1
%

 s
h
o
rt

fa
ll
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

to
 t

h
e
 u

rg
e
n
t 

li
s
t 

a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 a

m
o
n
g
 w

a
it
in

g
 l
is

t 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 r

is
e
n
 t

o
 3

2
%

, 
1
2
%

 o
v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

  
 A

c
ti

o
n
 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a
s
 s

e
tt

le
d
 i
n
 a

n
d
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 a
 w

e
e
k
 o

f 
re

c
e
ip

t.
 W

h
il
s
t 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t

a
k
in

g
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 

2
8
 d

a
y
s
 t

o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
, 
g
iv

e
n
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 f
a
ll
e
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 w

o
rk

 n
o
w

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 

a
re

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

re
 m

o
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
, 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
n
e
v
it
a
b
ly

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 m

o
re

 a
tt

e
n
ti
o
n
. 

P
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

d
e
la

y
s
 a

re
 m

in
im

is
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

u
n
d
u
e
 d

e
la

y
. 
 

 R
e
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 s
u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 t
o
 m

in
im

is
e
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

h
e
n
c
e
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
n
c
e
ll
e
d
. 
W

o
rk

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 r

e
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

in
it
ia

ll
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 l
is

t,
 w

it
h
 a

 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
n
y
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
. 
W

h
il
s
t 

m
o
re

 t
im

e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

in
g
, 

th
is

 h
a
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 w

o
rt

h
w

h
il
e
 i
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 t

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

r 
in

te
n
t 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

n
o
th

e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 t

h
is

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 w

il
l 
b
e
 r

o
ll
e
d
 o

u
t 

to
 t

h
e
 w

id
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 p

h
a
s
e
s
. 
 

    

Page 30



9
 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
o
u
s
e
d
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
c
ie

s
 f
o
r 

m
o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
  

9
0
%

 
9
2
.1

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 (

fr
o
m

 p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 o

f 
d
u
ty

) 
fo

r 
th

o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
w

h
o
s
e
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

. 
 

1
0
0
 

1
1
5
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

rm
a
l 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

  
  

1
1
3
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 o

r 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 w

it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
  

1
0
6
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
  

8
0
%

 
4
1
.9

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 %

 o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 m

o
n
th

 w
h
e
re

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
o
s
t 

w
it
h
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

e
it
h
e
r 

p
re

- 
o
r 

p
o
s
t-

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
c
is

io
n
  

1
4
%

 
3
0
.6

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
8
7
 a

n
d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 e

tc
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
0
3
 i
m

p
o
s
e
 a

 d
u
ty

 o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

ll
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
th

a
t 

a
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 

s
ta

ti
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

if
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 

th
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
. 

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

m
o
n
th

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 h

a
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 o

r 
s
e
c
u
re

d
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

' 
it
 h

a
s
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
 

(t
h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

a
n
d
 a

re
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
).

  

1
0
0
%

 
9
0
%

 
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 %
 o

f 
a
ll
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
 r

e
le

ts
 (

a
ll
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

h
e
lt
e
re

d
, 
v
e
ry

 s
h
e
lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 a

m
e
n
it
y
 h

o
u
s
in

g
) 

a
ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

. 
 

5
0
%

 
3
7
.1

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 D

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

fo
u
r 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

(1
4
/1

5
) 

th
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 4

4
4
 f
o
rm

a
l 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 7

%
 o

n
 t

h
e
 4

7
8
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 W
h
il
e
 w

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

e
e
 a

 s
te

a
d
y
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
, 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 3

3
%

, 
u
p
 1

2
6
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 3

8
7
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

fo
u
r 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
. 

T
h
is

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
 d

ri
v
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

a
s
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 7

th
 o

f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
. 
It

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 t

o
o
 e

a
rl
y
 t

o
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

th
e
 w

id
e
r 

lo
n
g
 t

e
rm

 i
m

p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
, 

y
e
t 

in
 t

h
e
 s

h
o
rt

 t
e
rm

 i
t 

h
a
s
 h

a
d
 a

 v
a
ry

in
g
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
; 

 
 · 

3
4
8
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 o

w
e
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
rk

s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 (

4
1
%

) 
u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 2

3
1
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 o

w
e
d
 a

 r
e
h
o
u
s
e
 d

u
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

· 
3
9
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 i
n
te

n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 
2
2
 (

3
6
%

) 
fe

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
  

· 
T
h
e
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
s
e
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 i
s
 o

w
e
d
, 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 f
o
r 

2
5
%

 o
f 

a
ll
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
D

u
e
 

to
 t

h
is

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 4

0
0
%

 f
ro

m
 1

5
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
3
/1

4
 t

o
 7

5
 

a
t 

3
1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 
 

· 
A
 4

5
%

 r
is

e
 i
n
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 w
a
s
 o

w
e
d
. 
 

  A
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 o
f 
th

e
 d

ri
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 a
 r

e
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

lo
n
g
-s

ta
n
d
in

g
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 o

ff
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 ‘
h
is

to
ri
c
’.
 T

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 
s
u
c
h
 i
s
 

th
a
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
 h

a
s
 f

a
ll
e
n
 t

o
 4

2
%

, 
2
1
%

 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 6

3
%

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
H

ig
h
e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 o
f 

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 31



1
0
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 u

p
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
h
il
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

7
1
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

w
it
h
 1

3
2
 (

7
7
%

) 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 

th
e
 2

8
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 s

o
m

e
 w

o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 d

o
n
e
 b

e
fo

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

b
e
c
o
m

e
s
 v

is
ib

le
. 
 

  A
n
o
th

e
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 t
h
a
t 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
s
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
. 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 
4
4
%

 (
1
6
0
) 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 

th
e
 1

0
0
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t,

 a
 1

2
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 5

6
%

 o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
e
t 

ta
rg

e
t 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 c

a
s
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

ra
d
u
a
ll
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d
s
 a

t 
1
1
5
 d

a
y
s
, 
3
 d

a
y
s
 l
e
s
s
 t

h
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 

p
e
ri
o
d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

  
 C
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 j
o
u
rn

e
y
 m

o
s
t 

a
ff
e
c
te

d
 i
s
 s

ta
g
e
 o

n
e
 p

re
s
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 t

o
 d

e
c
is

io
n
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
a
y
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 f
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 i
s
 6

9
, 
4
7
 d

a
y
s
 

lo
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 

W
h
il
e
 t

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 a
 c

o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
c
lo

s
in

g
 ‘
h
is

to
ri
c
’ 
c
a
s
e
s
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

p
p
ly

in
g
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 o

n
ly

 5
3
%

 o
f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 w

it
h
in

 2
8
 d

a
y
s
. 
F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

le
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 t

o
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 s

ti
ll
 a

w
a
it
in

g
 a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 s

it
s
 a

t 
7
9
 d

a
y
s
. 
 

 H
is

to
ri
c
a
ll
y
 t

h
e
 8

0
 d

a
y
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

s
ta

g
e
, 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 h

a
s
 a

lw
a
y
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
s
tr

u
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll
 t

a
rg

e
t 

is
 m

e
t.

 M
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
tl
y
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
 a

 y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
6
0
 d

a
y
s
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 i
s
 n

o
w

 
e
x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
 d

a
y
s
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 w
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

o
n
ly

 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 d

u
ty

 i
s
 o

w
e
d
, 

th
u
s
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
a
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

u
p
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 l
is

t 
is

 m
a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 
 

 Im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
is

io
n
 t

o
 D

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 s

ta
g
e
 i
s
 i
n
tr

in
s
ic

a
ll
y
 l
in

k
e
d
 t

o
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
n
e
e
d
 l
e
ts

 t
o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
. 

W
h
il
e
 t

h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
la

n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 o

f 
le

ts
 t

o
 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 b

ro
a
d
ly

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
, 

w
h
e
re

 o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 3

8
%

 o
f 

le
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
, 

la
s
t 

m
o
n
th

 w
e
 

s
a
w

 t
h
e
 5

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

(f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
th

) 
m

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 

ti
m

e
 s

in
c
e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
3
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 t

ig
h
te

n
in

g
 u

p
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 b

e
tt

e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

a
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 p
iv

o
ta

l 
to

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
is

. 
A
 r

e
c
e
n
t 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
k
e
y
 a

re
a
s
’ 
th

a
t 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 i
m

p
e
d
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

 It
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 w

e
ll
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

a
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
 o

f 
b
e
d
s
it
 a

n
d
 o

n
e
 b

e
d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 

c
h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 w
h
il
e
 t

h
is

 i
n
 p

a
rt

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

th
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

ls
o
 p

o
in

ts
 t

o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
o
u
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 l
is

ts
 a

s
 k

e
y
 

fa
c
to

rs
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 S
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 k

e
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 a
re

 n
o
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
; 

 
 · 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 o
n
ly

 1
0
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

o
ff
e
r,

 o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 o

n
ly

 7
 c

a
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 
a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

 
· 

O
f 
th

e
 1

0
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 7

2
 w

e
re

 d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

n
y
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
· 

O
f 
th

e
 7

2
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

n
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 6

1
 w

e
re

 f
o
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

· 
T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 a

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 i
s
 1

0
1
 d

a
y
s
. 
 

· 
D

e
s
p
it
e
 b

e
in

g
 f
o
u
n
d
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 2

7
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 l
is

t.
  

· 
O

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 o
n
ly

 5
2
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 s

h
o
rt

-l
is

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
y
 g

iv
e
n
 t

im
e
. 

 
  F
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
t’
s
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
 t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 s

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

ra
te

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 h

ig
h
. 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 f
ig

u
re

s
 r

e
v
e
a
l 
a
 9

2
%

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 

s
u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
in

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 

a
 s

li
g
h
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

u
p
o
n
 t

h
e
 9

1
.9

%
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

  
S
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 

w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

 i
n
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
m

o
n
th

s
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

o
 c

le
a
r 

th
e
 b

a
c
k
lo

g
 o

f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
d
 b

u
il
t 

u
p
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 

o
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 A
u
g
u
s
t.

 W
h
il
s
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
h
is

to
ri
c
 c

a
s
e
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

m
o
re

 r
e
c
e
n
t 

c
a
s
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 l
im

it
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
ll
n
e
s
s
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 m

a
tt

e
rs

 h
a
v
in

g
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
, 

th
e
 t

e
a
m

 w
il
l 
b
e
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
 a

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
ro

m
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 i
t 

is
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

il
l 
b
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

. 
 

 

Page 32



1
1
 

 
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

(Y
T
D

) 
 

  
1
,7

4
1
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

(Y
T
D

) 
 

  
3
1
9
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
  O

n
 t

h
e
 7

th
 o

f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
, 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

e
a
m

s
 w

h
e
re

 a
ll
 

a
s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 d
e
li
v
e
re

d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 f
la

g
s
h
ip

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
A
 k

e
y
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
 

b
y
 e

x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

u
ll
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l.
  

  D
u
e
 t

o
 i
t 

b
e
in

g
 a

 n
e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 

n
e
it
h
e
r 

is
 t

h
e
re

 a
 f

u
ll
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 

p
la

c
e
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 b
e
lo

w
 o

n
ly

 s
e
rv

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 b
a
s
ic

 s
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

c
c
e
s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 1

7
4
1
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 m
e
e
t 

th
e
ir
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 n

e
e
d
s
. 
A
 

b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
y
 a

d
v
ic

e
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t;

  
· 

3
3
%

 w
e
re

 a
s
k
e
d
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
h
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
 o

r 
fi
n
d
in

g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

· 
1
6
%

 w
a
n
te

d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f

in
d
in

g
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 
· 

1
3
%

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
re

a
k
d
o
w

n
 a

n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 f

in
d
in

g
 a

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 3

1
9
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
, 
1
8
%

 o
f 

th
e
 c

a
s
e
s
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 s

o
 f

a
r.

 O
f 
th

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t;

  
· 

2
4
%

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 g

iv
e
n
 h

e
lp

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t

h
e
ir
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

· 
2
9
%

 h
a
v
e
 m

a
d
e
 a

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 l
e
g
is

la
ti
o
n
. 
 

· 
3
4
%

 o
f 
a
p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 l
o
s
t 

c
o
n
ta

c
t 

(2
5
%

) 
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 a

n
 u

n
k
n
o
w

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 (

9
%

) 
 

  D
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
c
a
s
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 s

o
 f

a
r 

d
o
 n

o
t 

p
re

s
e
n
t 

a
n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 p

o
rt

ra
y
a
l 
o
f 

th
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
F
o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 9

1
 c

a
s
e
s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 w

h
e
re

 a
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
, 
y
e
t 

th
e
 H

L
-1

 (
T
h
e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 D

a
ta

 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 T

o
o
l)

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 

4
4
4
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
. 
 

  P
R
E
V
E
N

T
 1

 t
h
e
 m

a
n
d
a
to

ry
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 u

s
e
d
 f
o
r 

g
a
th

e
ri
n
g
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

n
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 f
o
r 

a
ll
 C

o
u
n
c
il
s
’ 
th

ro
u
g
h
o
u
t 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 1

s
t 

o
f 
A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

d
a
ta

 e
x
tr

a
c
t 

d
u
e
 l
a
te

r 
th

is
 m

o
n
th

. 
P
R
E
V
E
N

T
 1

 i
s
 s

u
p
p
o
s
e
d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 r
e
li
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
 w

a
y
 o

f 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 h

o
w

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

e
a
rl
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
g
g
e
s
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
re

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 a

 l
o
t 

o
f 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
is

 i
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
 

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
 

T
h
e
 e

a
rl
y
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 n

e
w

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 t

e
a
m

 i
s
 p

ro
v
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 a
re

 a
p
p
ra

is
e
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

n
ti
tl
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
a
li
s
ti
c
 a

b
o
u
t 

p
ro

s
p
e
c
ts

 o
f 
b
e
in

g
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

t 
a
n
 e

a
rl
y
 s

ta
g
e
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 t

h
e
m

 o
f 
w

id
e
r 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 w

h
e
re

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
re

a
t.

 W
h
il
s
t 

n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
re

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

, 
it
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

e
s
c
a
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
. 
R
e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
im

it
e
d
 t

h
u
s
 f
a
r,

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 g

re
a
te

r 
p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
in

it
ia

l 
c
a
s
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 b
y
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
‘P

re
v
e
n
t1

’ 
re

tu
rn

 w
il
l 
p
ro

v
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
v
e
, 
b
o
th

 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
o
u
r 

o
w

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
a
ri
s
o
n
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
. 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

to
 d

o
 

m
o
re

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 t

e
a
m

 a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

o
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
. 
 

0
8
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 33



1
2
 

        

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 T

e
m

p
o

r
a
r
y
 A

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 o

r 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

h
o
m

 a
n
 o

ff
e
r 

w
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
  

9
9
.3

%
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 a

n
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
  

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

(Y
T
D

) 
 

  
4
3
6
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
d
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

 
  

4
3
3
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

a
ll
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

  
6
.9

%
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 o

r 
e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

ff
e
rs

 r
e
fu

s
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

a
ll
 t

y
p
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
  

  
3
0
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 Y

T
D

 %
 o

f 
u
s
e
rs

' 
w

h
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
 

  
7
8
.2

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 s

ta
y
in

g
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll
 t

y
p
e
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t

h
e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

 t
a
rg

e
t 

p
e
ri
o
d
 

(6
 m

o
n
th

s
) 

w
it
h
in

 e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

  
  

9
0
 

 

 
 C

u
rr

e
n
t 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
la

ts
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
  

  
2
1
9
,6

0
6
 

 

 
 T

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
fo

rm
e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
la

ts
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
  

  
1
,3

8
3
,1

0
6
 

 

 
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 F

la
ts

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
G

R
O

S
S

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
re

n
ta

l 
a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
  

1
0
%

 
4
.5

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

  
P

r
o

v
is

io
n
 

A
t 

3
1
s
t 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
d
 a

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
5
0
8
 u

n
it
s
 c

o
n
s
is

ti
n
g
 o

f;
  

Ø
 2

9
9
 f
u
rn

is
h
e
d
 A

C
C
 f
la

ts
, 

5
9
%

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 6
0
 H

o
s
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
, 
1
2
%

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 2
6
 B

&
B
 r

o
o
m

s
, 
5
%

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

  
Ø

 2
0
 H

o
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
 4

%
 o

f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
  

Ø
 1

0
3
 P

ri
v
a
te

ly
 l
e
a
s
e
d
 u

n
it
s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
o
s
e
 s

u
b
le

t 
fr

o
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
),

 2
0
%

 o
f 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
 

  R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
B
&

B
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

p
la

n
. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

1
1
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 

Page 34



1
3
 

h
a
s
 s

e
e
n
 a

 d
ra

m
a
ti
c
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 B

&
B
 u

s
a
g
e
. 
O

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
g
u
n
 t

o
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
u
t 

s
o
m

e
w

h
a
t 

w
it
h
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
6
 B

&
B
 r

o
o
m

s
 

b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
is

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
 

  A
n
o
th

e
r 

k
e
y
 p

la
n
k
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
/t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 e

x
p
a
n
d
in

g
 t

h
e
 g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e
 P

S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

W
h
e
n
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

in
 2

0
1
2
 t

h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 t

o
 s

e
c
u
re

 3
0
0
 u

n
it
s
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
. 

T
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

w
a
s
 l
a
te

r 
re

v
is

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

im
 o

f 
s
e
c
u
ri
n
g
 1

7
5
 u

n
it
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 
w

it
h
 5

0
 

u
n
it
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

th
e
re

a
ft

e
r.

 Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 d
a
ta

 s
h
o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
5
 u

n
it
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 3

 u
n
it
s
 

lo
s
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

e
rm

in
a
te

d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 o
r 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 u

s
a
g
e
, 

th
e
re

fo
re

 Y
T
D

 g
ro

w
th

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
2
%

. 
W

h
il
e
 t

h
e
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 g

ro
w

 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
g
ro

w
th

 i
s
 

s
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

  
  D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 H
L
-3

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
, 

th
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
ly

 d
a
ta

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 

c
h
a
rt

e
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

rs
. 
D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

(1
4
/1

5
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
; 

 
Ø

 4
3
7
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
4
3
4
 o

f 
w

h
o
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

Ø
 O

f 
th

o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 6

.9
%

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 o

ff
e
r 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t

y
p
e
s
, 

w
h
e
re

 r
e
fu

s
a
l 
o
f 
h
o
s
te

l 
to

p
s
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

s
 a

t 
1
1
%

  
Ø

 N
o
 b

re
a
c
h
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
s
u
it
a
b
le

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

rd
e
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
. 
 

  A
t 

th
e
 3

1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 3
7
4
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

ra
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fo

rm
s
 o

f 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 (

h
o
s
te

l/
A
C
C
 T

e
m

p
 F

la
ts

/B
&

B
) 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 9

0
 h

a
v
e
 

re
s
id

e
d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

6
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 1

5
0
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 (

5
4
) 

in
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 s

ta
y
in

g
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

th
a
n
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

(3
6
).

 O
f 
th

e
 9

0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

c
c
u
p
y
in

g
 t

e
m

p
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t,

 a
ll
 b

u
t 

3
 w

e
re

 a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f
u
rn

is
h
e
d
 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n
 l
iv

in
g
 s

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 v

it
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 m
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 w

h
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 
 

  T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
id

in
g
 o

v
e
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

is
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 m
u
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 a

p
p
e
a
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

ti
m

u
la

te
d
 b

y
 a

 d
o
w

n
tu

rn
 i
n
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
A
n
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

p
p
li
c
a
n
ts

’ 
in

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
4
 h

ig
h
li
g
h
ts

 s
o
m

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a
s
’ 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 

in
 m

o
v
e
m

e
n
t,

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
 b

e
lo

w
; 

 
· 

2
0
6
 (

5
9
%

) 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 w

h
e
re

 a
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 e

x
is

ts
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
 1

0
0
 (

4
9
%

) 
a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 

u
n
d
e
r 

o
ff

e
r.

  
· 

A
t 

ti
m

e
 o

f 
a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

n
c
e
 o

f 
o
ff
e
r 

a
n
d
 w

a
it
 f
o
r 

k
e
y
s
 (

to
 d

a
te

) 
is

 4
1
 d

a
y
s
. 
 

· 
O

f 
th

e
 1

0
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

o
ff
e
r;

  
Ø

 7
 (

7
%

) 
c
a
s
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
v
a
il
a
b
le

 t
o
 b

e
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
. 
 

Ø
 2

7
 (

2
5
%

) 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
t 

re
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 l
is

t.
  

Ø
 7

2
 (

6
8
%

) 
w

e
re

 d
e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

n
y
 o

ff
e
r 

o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 
o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 6

1
 w

e
re

 f
o
r 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 
 

· 
T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 

ti
m

e
 a

n
 a

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
fe

rr
e
d
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 i
s
 9

3
 d

a
y
s
. 
 

· 
4
4
 (

1
3
%

) 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 a
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 e

it
h
e
r 

in
te

n
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 o

r 
n
o
t 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 w

h
e
re

 n
o
 d

u
ty

 t
o
 p

e
rm

a
n
e
n
tl
y
 r

e
h
o
u
s
e
 e

x
is

ts
. 
 

· 
1
9
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
c
a
n
ts

) 
w

e
re

 n
o
t 

c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 P

e
rs

o
n
s
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 n
o
 d

u
ty

 e
x
is

ts
 i
n
 a

n
y
 f
o
rm

. 
 

  T
o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
li
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
g
a
l 
d
u
ti
e
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

lo
c
k
 b

o
o
k
e
d
 2

0
 h

o
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 t

e
m

p
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
T
h
e
re

 a
re

 
a
ls

o
 p

la
n
s
 f
o
r 

a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
5
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

n
d
 l
e
t 

to
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 t

o
 u

s
e
 a

s
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  F
ro

m
 t

h
e
 2

3
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

(2
0
1
4
/1

5
),

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

7
8
.2

%
 (

1
8
) 

o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
rs

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
It

 m
u
s
t 

b
e
 n

o
te

d
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
a
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
w

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 d

e
ri
v
e
d
 f

in
d
in

g
s
 m

ig
h
t 

n
o
t 

b
e
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 e

n
ti
re

 p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 

w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
R
e
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 
 

  R
e
n

t
s
 

A
t 

th
e
 3

1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
 t

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 2
1
6
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 (

7
8
.8

%
) 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
te

d
 i
n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 A

.C
.C

 f
la

tt
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

. 
T
h
e
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
a
rr

e
a
rs

 

Page 35



1
4
 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
£
2
1
9
,6

0
6
 a

 1
0
.7

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 u

p
o
n
 t

h
e
 £

2
4
6
,1

2
1
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
3
. 

T
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
rr

e
a
rs

 i
s
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 4

.5
%

 o
f 

th
e
 g

ro
s
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

re
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 a

n
d
 s

ti
ll
 w

e
ll
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 1

0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t.

 T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
e
n
t 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
) 

fo
r 

a
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f

la
t 

is
 £

3
1
7
, 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
v
e
a
ls

 t
h
a
t 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
w

e
 i
s
 £

1
0
1
7
, 

th
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

o
f 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 3

 w
e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
 

  F
o
rm

e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 f
o
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t

e
rm

in
a
ti
n
g
 A

C
C
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 f
la

tt
e
d
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 r

is
e
 a

n
d
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 t

h
e
ir
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 

le
v
e
l 
a
t 

£
1
,3

8
3
,1

0
6
. 

D
u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

1
3
4
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 h

a
v
e
 l
e
ft

 w
it
h
 a

rr
e
a
rs

 w
o
rt

h
 a

 v
a
lu

e
 o

f 
£
1
8
7
,3

2
7
 (

1
3
.5

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
v
a
lu

e
) 

a
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
£
1
3
7
8
 p

e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 a
n
d
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 4

 w
e
e
k
s
 r

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
y
p
e
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
. 
 

 A
c
t
io

n
  

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 W

e
s
t 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

w
it
h
 2

0
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
e
lf
-c

o
n
ta

in
e
d
 u

n
it
s
 a

n
d
 2

0
 f
la

ts
 i
s
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f
o
r 

h
a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 

th
e
re

 a
re

 a
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

1
5
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
a
d
y
 t

o
 l
e
t 

fo
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 

T
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 s

te
p
s
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

d
e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

im
 t

o
 s

to
p
 u

s
in

g
 h

o
te

ls
. 
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
B
&

B
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

g
o
in

g
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 a
t 

th
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
2
0
1
5
. 
 

  T
h
e
 P

S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

n
e
w

in
g
 l
e
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 5
0
%

 r
e
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 
le

a
s
e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 g

a
in

in
g
 a

 5
0
%

 
in

tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 o

n
to

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

E
x
is

ti
n
g
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 s

e
rv

in
g
 n

o
ti
c
e
 t

o
 e

n
d
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

re
 a

d
v
is

in
g
 t

h
e
ir
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

re
 s

e
ll
in

g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
T
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
n
’t
 g

ro
w

in
g
 a

s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

re
n
e
w

a
l 
o
f 

le
a
s
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

, 
is

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 

5
0
%

 r
e
te

n
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 

la
n
d
lo

rd
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 h

a
s
 a

ll
o
c
a
te

d
 a

 t
e
a
m

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ll
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 P

S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
, 

th
e
 a

im
 f
o
r 

th
is

 t
e
a
m

 w
il
l 
b
e
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
rt

fo
li
o
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

S
L
 s

c
h
e
m

e
. 

R
e
c
e
n
tl
y
, 

m
o
re

 r
e
g
u
la

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
o
rm

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 a

ll
o
w

 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
w

 a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

ta
rt

 w
it
h
 r

a
d
io

 a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
, 

th
is

 w
il
l 
b
e
 i
n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

b
il
l 
b
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

s
p
a
p
e
r 

a
d
v
e
rt

s
. 
T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
in

g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 a
n
d
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

. 
 

  T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

il
it
y
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
p
re

d
ic

ta
b
le

 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
, 
a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 t

im
e
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 l
im

it
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 v

o
id

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 p

la
c
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

n
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
o
u
g
h
t 

re
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 h

a
d
 b

lo
c
k
 b

o
o
k
e
d
 2

0
 h

o
te

l 
ro

o
m

s
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 

th
e
 B

&
B
 s

to
c
k
 p

ro
fi
le

, 
th

is
 

w
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t

o
 1

5
 r

o
o
m

s
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
4
. 
It

 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 n

e
w

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
n
 W

e
s
t 

N
o
rt

h
 S

tr
e
e
t,

 w
h
ic

h
 w

il
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
4
0
 u

n
it
s
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
1
5
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 s

to
c
k
 w

il
l 
p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t

o
 s

to
p
 p

ro
c
u
ri
n
g
 h

o
te

ls
. 
 

       

 
 H

M
O

 a
n

d
 L

a
n

d
lo

r
d

 R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 H

M
O

 L
ic

e
n
s
e
s
 i
n
 f
o
rc

e
  

  
1
,0

6
1
 

 

 
 H

M
O

 L
ic

e
n
s
e
 A

p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P

e
n
d
in

g
  

  
1
5
6
 

 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
  

  
1
7
,0

0
5
 

 

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 

Page 36



1
5
 

 
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 A

p
p
ro

v
e
d
  

  
1
9
,7

5
2
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 3
-y

e
a
r 

d
u
ra

ti
o
n
, 
fo

ll
o
w

in
g
 w

h
ic

h
 t

im
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 m

u
s
t 

re
n
e
w

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
f 
th

e
y
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
. 

E
x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
m

a
in

 o
n
 t

h
e
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 m

u
s
t 

p
u
rs

u
e
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 o

p
e
ra

te
 w

it
h
o
u
t 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
b
e
g
a
n
 a

n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 t

o
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

e
v
e
ry

 o
n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 4

,0
9
3
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
d
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 

re
n
e
w

e
d
, 

a
n
d
 a

s
 a

t 
7
/8

/2
0
1
4
, 

a
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

5
9
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
re

n
e
w

e
d
. 
R
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 e

x
p
ir
e
 e

v
e
ry

 d
a
y
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 w

il
l 
a
lw

a
y
s
 s

h
o
w

 a
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
m

o
u
n
t 

o
f 
e
x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

b
u
t 

th
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
s
 t

o
 e

li
m

in
a
te

 t
h
e
 '
h
is

to
ri
c
a
l'
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
, 

s
o
 a

s
 t

o
 l
e
a
v
e
 a

 m
a
n
a
g
e
a
b
le

 a
m

o
u
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 6

 r
e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

e
x
p
ir
e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 1

/1
/2

0
1
4
 a

n
d
 £

1
1
0
 L

a
te

 A
p
p
li
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
e
e
s
 w

e
re

 a
p
p
li
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
y
 r

e
m

a
in

 u
n
re

n
e
w

e
d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
re

fo
re

 s
e
rv

e
d
 R

e
n
t 

P
e
n
a
lt
y
 N

o
ti
c
e
s
 

(R
P
N

) 
o
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 6

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
, 

th
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 

o
f 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 t

o
 l
e
g
a
ll
y
 p

re
v
e
n
t 

th
e
m

 f
ro

m
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti
n
g
 r

e
n
t 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
ir
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 u
n
ti
l 
s
u
c
h
 t

im
e
 a

s
 t

h
e
y
 r

e
n
e
w

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

r 
c
e
a
s
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 a

s
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
. 
T
h
e
s
e
 R

P
N

s
 a

re
 t

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
rv

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 a

n
d
 w

e
 w

il
l 
u
s
e
 t

h
e
m

 a
s
 a

 ‘
p
il
o
t’
 t

o
 t

e
s
t 

th
e
ir
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 b

e
fo

re
 s

e
rv

in
g
 

a
n
y
 m

o
re

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 p

u
rs

u
in

g
 t

h
e
 5

3
 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 r

e
g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
p
ir
e
d
 s

in
c
e
 1

/1
/2

0
1
4
. 
 

0
8
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

        

 
 R

e
p

a
ir

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 (

h
o
u
rs

) 
 

4
 

5
.1

2
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 l
e
n
g
th

 o
f 
ti
m

e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 n

o
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 (

d
a
y
s
) 

 
1
0
.1

 
1
1
.3

6
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

p
a
ir
s
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 k
e
p
t 

 
9
0
.6

%
 

9
7
.8

9
%

 
 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

a
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 (

y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

) 
 

8
0
%

 
9
3
.9

%
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
V
o
id

 P
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 o

ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
  

5
%

 
1
3
.7

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 m

o
n
th

ly
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
  

  
9
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

: 
 

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 c

u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 R

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 

Y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

, 
th

e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 4

4
2
 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

u
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

h
a
rt

e
r.

 O
f 

th
o
s
e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
e
d
, 
9
3
.9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
 h

a
d
 h

a
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 o

r 
m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 w

e
re

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
e
y
 h

a
d
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

O
v
e
r 

4
0
0
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

w
il
l 
b
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
. 
 

0
7
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

Page 37



1
6
 

 F
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
 i
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
, 

th
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 a

n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
 w

a
s
 5

.1
 h

o
u
rs

. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 w
a
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 o

u
r 

in
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 
4
 

h
o
u
rs

, 
it
 c

o
m

p
a
re

s
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
ly

 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4
, 

w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 o

f 
a
ll
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 d

o
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 w

a
s
 7

.4
 

h
o
u
rs

. 
 

 In
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
n
o
n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 s

a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
, 

th
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
 w

a
s
 1

1
.4

 d
a
y
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 t

im
e
s
c
a
le

 f
o
r 

a
ll
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 w

a
s
 1

0
.1

 d
a
y
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 h
a
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t

h
e
 b

a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

s
e
t 

fo
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
  

 F
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 a

n
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Ju

n
e
 2

0
1
4
 O

p
ti
-t

im
e
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 u

n
d
e
r 

te
s
ti
n
g
/d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e
c
t 

o
f 
re

p
a
ir
s
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
ts

 c
a
n
n
o
t 

b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 
 

 A
t 

th
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
Ju

ly
 2

0
1
4
, 
1
3
.7

%
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

e
re

 o
ff
 c

h
a
rg

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

a
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
1
0
%

. 
T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

t 
S
m

it
h
fi
e
ld

 C
o
u
rt

 b
e
in

g
 c

a
te

g
o
ri
s
e
d
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
 

 T
h
e
 t

re
n
d
 f
o
r 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
fu

s
e
d
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 r

e
la

te
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

d
e
v
ia

te
d
 a

n
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 a

 f
if
th

 o
f 
a
ll
 r

e
fu

s
a
ls

 (
y
e
a
r 

to
 d

a
te

) 
a
re

 m
a
d
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 

re
la

te
d
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
. 

T
h
e
re

 s
e
e
m

s
 t

o
 b

e
 l
it
tl
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 i
n
 t

h
e
 e

x
a
c
t 

re
a
s
o
n
s
 c

it
e
d
, 
b
u
t 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t

o
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

o
n
ly

 o
n
e
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

 w
a
s
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

'P
o
o
r 

C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ro
p
e
rt

y
'.
  

 A
c
ti

o
n

: 
 

S
in

c
e
 1

s
t 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
4
 1

5
,6

1
9
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 o

rd
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 9

3
%

 (
1
4
,4

5
6
) 

w
e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
o
rd

e
rs

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

e
a
c
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

/4
/1

4
-3

0
/6

/1
4
 w

e
re

 -
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 E

4
 (

4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
- 

1
9
%

, 
U

rg
e
n
t 

U
2
4
 (

2
4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
-1

1
%

, 
H

ig
h
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 H
3
 (

3
 D

a
y
s
) 

-8
%

, 
N

o
n
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 N

E
5
 (

5
 D

a
y
s
) 

-1
9
%

, 
R
o
u
ti
n
e
 R

1
0
 (

1
0
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
4
%

, 
P
la

n
n
e
d
 P

L
2
4
 (

2
4
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
2
9
%

, 
O

u
t 

o
f 

H
o
u
rs

 O
O

H
 (

4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
- 

1
2
%

. 
T
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 c

a
te

g
o
ry

 f
o
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
 1

/4
/1

4
-3

0
/6

/1
4
 w

e
re

 a
s
 f
o
ll
o
w

s
. 

E
4
 (

4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
- 

9
5
%

, 
U

2
4
 (

2
4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
-9

4
%

, 
H

3
 (

3
 D

a
y
s
) 

-9
3
%

, 
N

E
5
 (

5
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
9
5
%

, 
R
1
0
 (

1
0
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
9
5
%

, 
P
L
2
4
 (

2
4
 D

a
y
s
) 

- 
9
2
%

, 
O

O
H

 (
4
 H

o
u
rs

) 
- 

8
7
%

. 
 

 

 
 P

r
o

p
e
r
ty

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

it
h
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 

1
0
0
%

 
9
8
.2

%
 

 

 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
C
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 w

h
e
re

 c
u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
 w

a
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

h
e
c
k
 

1
0
0
%

 
9
3
.5

%
 

 

 
 1

5
v
i)

 T
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 b

e
in

g
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

u
p
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 Q

u
a
li
ty

 S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 b
y
 

c
ri
te

ri
a
. 

T
o
ta

l 
d
w

e
ll
in

g
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 S

H
Q

S
 -

 P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
  

9
0
.8

%
 

9
4
.9

5
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

: 
 

A
s
 a

t 
3
1
s
t 

Ju
ly

 2
0
1
4
, 
1
7
,0

6
2
 c

o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
d
 g

a
s
 a

p
p
li
a
n
c
e
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 f
o
r 

a
 g

a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
. 
O

f 
th

e
s
e
, 
1
6
,7

5
7
 h

a
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
, 

3
0
2
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

 g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
 b

u
t 

w
e
re

 b
e
in

g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 h

a
rd

 n
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 p

o
li
c
y
 a

n
d
 3

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

 g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

h
e
c
k
 d

u
e
 t

o
 s

y
s
te

m
 

e
rr

o
rs

 o
f 
q
u
e
ri
e
s
. 
 

 

0
7
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

Page 38



1
7
 

9
3
.5

%
 o

f 
c
o
u
n
c
il
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 

g
a
s
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
n
e
w

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
2
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

. 
A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 h
a
s
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 6

7
%

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 

it
 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 s

h
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 1

0
0
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 1

0
0
%

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 o

th
e
r 

lo
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 
 

 
 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 D

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

n
e
w

 a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

s
 2

0
1

3
/
1

4
 =

 2
6

6
 

C
o
v
e
 –

 1
6
 –

 m
id

 m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

–
 N

H
T
  

F
a
rb

u
rn

 T
e
rr

a
c
e
 =

 5
8
 –

 s
h
a
re

d
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 H

A
  

D
o
n
s
id

e
 =

 1
2
3
  

4
8
 –

 L
IF

T
 –

 T
e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
- 

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
, 
 

4
0
 –

 r
e
n
t 

T
e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
- 

o
p
e
ra

ti
v
e
  

3
5
 –

 r
e
n
t 

–
 L

a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
  

E
d
a
y
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 =

 6
 -

 r
e
n
t 

- 
M

a
rg

a
re

t 
B
la

c
k
w

o
o
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
  

C
o
v
e
 =

 9
 –

 m
id

 m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

- 
N

H
T
  

D
o
n
s
id

e
 =

 2
0
 r

e
n
t 

–
 T

e
n
a
n
ts

 F
ir
s
t 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 C

o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
  

S
to

c
k
e
th

il
l 
C
h
u
rc

h
 =

 3
2
 =

 1
8
 r

e
n
t 

&
 1

4
 M

M
R
 –

 L
a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
  

C
h
a
rl
e
s
to

n
, 
C
o
v
e
 =

 2
 L

C
H

O
 -

 S
c
o
ti
a
  

  E
x
p

e
c
te

d
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 2

0
1

4
/

1
5

 =
 1

4
6
 

V
ic

to
ri
a
 H

o
u
s
e
 =

 2
0
 -

 r
e
n
t 

- 
A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il
  

O
ld

 C
h
u
rc

h
 R

o
a
d
 =

 2
0
 -

 r
e
n
t 

–
 L

a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
 (

e
n
d
 1

4
) 

 
D

a
v
id

s
o
n
 M

il
l 
–
 2

6
 -

 m
id

 m
a
rk

e
t 

re
n
t 

- 
N

H
T
  

C
h
a
rl
e
s
to

n
, 
C
o
v
e
 =

 1
8
 L

C
H

O
 -

 S
c
o
ti
a
  

C
a
tt

o
fi
e
ld

 =
 1

6
 -

 1
2
 r

e
n
t 

&
 4

 M
M

R
 –

 C
a
s
tl
e
h
il
l 
H

A
  

D
u
b
fo

rd
 =

 3
 L

C
H

O
 –

 S
c
o
ti
a
  

M
a
id

e
n
c
ra

ig
 =

 3
6
 –

 1
2
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 H

A
 –

 2
4
 C

a
s
tl
e
h
il
l 
H

A
  

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
S
tr

e
e
t 

=
 7

 L
a
n
g
s
ta

n
e
 H

A
 –

 T
e
n
e
m

e
n
t 

R
e
h
a
b
  

0
6
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

         

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

S
c
e
n

e
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 L
E
A
M

S
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
).

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

a
t 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 s

tr
e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
. 
 

8
0
 

8
1
.5

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 V
a
n
d
a
li
s
m

 (
%

 o
f 

s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
v
a
n
d
a
li
s
m

) 
 

5
 

2
.5

 
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

S
c
e
n
e
 

Page 39



1
8
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 G
ra

ff
it
i 
(%

 o
f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
g
ra

ff
it
i)

  
1
0
 

6
.7

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 W
e
e
d
 G

ro
w

th
 (

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
w

e
e
d
 g

ro
w

th
) 

 
2
0
 

5
3
.8

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 D
e
tr

it
u
s
 (

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
d
e
tr

it
u
s
))

  
2
0
 

6
9
.7

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 S
ta

in
in

g
 (

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
ta

in
in

g
) 

 
2
0
 

1
6
.8

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 F
ly

ti
p
p
in

g
 (

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fl
y
ti
p
p
in

g
) 

 
1
0
 

8
.4

 
 

 
 S

tr
e
e
t 

C
le

a
n
s
in

g
 -

 F
ly

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 (

%
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
ts

 w
it
h
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
fl
y
p
o
s
ti
n
g
) 

 
5
 

1
.7

 
 

 
 G

ro
u
n
d
s
 -

 L
A
M

S
 (

L
a
n
d
 A

u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
) 

m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t

h
e
 c

le
a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 
g
re

e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
. 

 
8
0
 

7
9
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

K
P
Is

 a
re

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 u

s
in

g
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
M

S
 (

L
o
c
a
l 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
u
d
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
y
s
te

m
) 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

y
 K

e
e
p
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 B

e
a
u
ti
fu

l.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
ll
y
 u

s
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 r

a
n
d
o
m

ly
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 K

e
e
p
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 B

e
a
u
ti
fu

l 
w

h
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t

h
e
 L

E
A
M

S
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
. 

A
 

c
o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
ta

il
in

g
 t

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

is
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

b
y
 K

S
B
. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

 f
e
w

 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 w

a
y
 t

h
a
t 

s
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 i
s
 s

u
rv

e
y
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
. 
 

 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

n
o
ta

b
le

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 f

ig
u
re

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f
o
ll
o
w

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

tr
e
e
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
s
 i
s
 t

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

s
it
e
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
 a

c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 g
ra

d
e
 r

a
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

 
c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
 i
n
d
e
x
 (

C
I)

. 
T
h
is

 i
s
 c

le
a
r 

a
n
d
 e

a
s
y
 t

o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 A
, 
B
+

 a
n
d
 B

 a
re

 a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

 g
ra

d
e
s
 a

n
d
 C

 a
n
d
 D

 a
re

 u
n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

. 
A
n
y
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 g
ra

d
e
d
 

a
s
 u

n
a
c
c
e
p
ta

b
le

, 
C
 o

r 
D

, 
a
re

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
. 
 

 T
h
e
re

 a
re

 3
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

o
f 
fi
v
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 (
tw

o
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
p
lu

s
 o

n
e
 e

x
te

rn
a
ll
y
 v

a
li
d
a
te

d
).

 T
h
is

 g
iv

e
s
 a

 1
5
%

 a
n
n
u
a
l 
s
u
rv

e
y
. 
 

 A
 t

a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 r

e
a
c
h
e
d
 a

t 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

s
u
rv

e
y
. 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 g

o
o
d
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
s
tr

e
e
t 

c
le

a
n
li
n
e
s
s
. 
 

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
in

 S
tr

e
e
t 

S
c
e
n
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 g

o
o
d
 l
e
v
e
ls

 a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 P

Is
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

 b
e
in

g
 m

e
t.

 W
e
e
d
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 f
a
il
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t.

 
S
u
m

m
e
r 

ti
m

e
 a

lw
a
y
s
 b

ri
n
g
s
 c

h
a
ll
e
n
g
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 w

e
e
d
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
. 
S
p
ra

y
in

g
 o

f 
w

e
e
d
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t

o
 3

 t
im

e
s
 a

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 m

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
s
w

e
e
p
in

g
 i
s
 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 d

e
tr

it
u
s
 a

s
w

e
ll
 a

s
 l
it
te

r.
  

 O
n
 t

h
e
 w

h
o
le

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 v

e
ry

 w
e
ll
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

in
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 2

0
1
4
  

0
4
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

            

Page 40



1
9
 

      

 
 W

a
s
te

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 D

is
p

o
s
a
l 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 Z

e
ro

 W
a
s
te

 P
ro

je
c
t 

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 m

a
jo

r 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 

v
a
ri
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r.
 F

in
a
l 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
, 
o
n
e
 m

o
n
th

 l
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
. 

T
h
e
 d

e
la

y
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 w

it
h
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 p

o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

x
p
o
rt

 o
f 
R
e
fu

s
e
 

D
e
ri
v
e
d
 F

u
e
l.
 I

t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a
t 

fi
n
a
l 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 w
il
l 
b
e
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 

to
 t

h
e
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

Z
e
ro

 W
a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
u
b
-c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 f
o
r 

c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 c

o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
u
b
li
c
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 t

o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

a
 j
o
in

t 
a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 c

a
n
 

b
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
a
 c

o
m

b
in

e
d
 h

e
a
t 

a
n
d
 p

o
w

e
r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 f
ro

m
 w

a
s
te

 (
E
fW

) 
fa

c
il
it
y
. 

T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
il
l 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

C
o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
, 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 

R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

s
e
t 

o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

L
D

P
) 

m
a
in

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 
to

 n
o
m

in
a
te

 a
 s

it
e
 o

r 
s
it
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
x
t 

L
D

P
 f
o
r 

E
fW

. 
T
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
il
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
a
 d

ra
ft

 P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 L

D
P
 t

h
e
 E

P
&

I 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
4
. 
 

0
6
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

 

 
 P

r
o

je
c
t 

P
r
o

g
r
e
s
s
 T

o
 D

a
te

 
L
a
te

s
t 

N
o
te

 
D

a
te

 

 
 A

tt
a
in

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 w

a
s
te

 
c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 F
o
o
d
 W

a
s
te

 c
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

m
u
lt
i-

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

o
ll
e
d
 o

u
t 

w
it
h
 s

o
c
ia

l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 f
la

ts
 a

n
d
 t

e
n
e
m

e
n
ts

 n
o
w

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
C
u
rr

e
n
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 t
o
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 o

u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 t
o
 a

ll
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
5
. 
 

T
h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
il
o
t 

o
f 
o
u
r 

n
e
w

 m
ix

e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 P

o
w

is
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 a
 l
a
rg

e
 p

a
rt

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
th

e
 P

o
w

is
 R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

' 
G

ro
u
p
 a

n
d
 c

o
ll
e
a
g
u
e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
In

 P
o
w

is
, 
th

e
 l
it
tl
e
-u

s
e
d
 b

a
g
 a

n
d
 b

o
x
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
la

c
e
d
 w

it
h
 c

o
m

m
u
n
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

in
e
rs

 
th

a
t 

a
ll
o
w

 a
n
 e

x
p
a
n
d
e
d
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
la

s
ti
c
s
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

ld
 s

y
s
te

m
. 

E
a
rl
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 t

h
a
t 

m
o
re

 p
e
o
p
le

 a
re

 r
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

to
n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
li
n
g
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

o
ll
e
c
te

d
. 
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 f
o
r 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 m

u
lt
i-

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
 

fr
o
m

 b
a
g
 a

n
d
 b

o
x
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 t

o
 a

 w
h
e
e
le

d
 b

in
 s

y
s
te

m
 f
o
r 

m
ix

e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 i
n
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y
. 

T
h
is

 m
a
jo

r 
p
ro

je
c
t 

w
il
l 
u
ti
li
s
e
 t

h
e
 F

le
e
t 

ro
u
te

 s
o
ft

w
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
o
ff
ic

e
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
, 
w

a
s
te

 
a
w

a
re

 a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 w

a
s
te

 a
n
d
 R

e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

0
6
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

          

W
a
s
te

 C
o
ll
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

is
p
o
s
a
l 

Page 41



2
0
 

      

 
 T

r
a
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
r
d

s
 a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 

 
  

 
C

u
r
r
e
n

t 
T

a
r
g

e
t 

C
u

r
r
e
n

t 
V

a
lu

e
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 N

o
is

e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 T

im
e
 t

o
 a

tt
e
n
d
 o

n
 s

it
e
 f
o
r 

(N
o
n
 P

a
rt

 V
 -

 A
v
e
ra

g
e
 D

o
g
 B

a
rk

in
g
 a

n
d
 E

P
A
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
) 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
A
v
e
ra

g
e
  

4
8
 h

o
u
rs

 
3
1
.6

 h
o
u
rs

 
 

 
 H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
- 

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
1
.8

%
 

 

 
 L

o
w

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
3
.6

%
 

 

 
 H

ig
h
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 P
u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
0
%

 
 

 
 L

o
w

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
u
b
li
c
 H

e
a
lt
h
 -

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
0
.2

%
 

 

 
 D

o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
 -

 %
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 2
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
9
7
%

 
 

 
 D

o
g
 F

o
u
li
n
g
 -

%
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 A

ll
 O

th
e
r 

D
o
g
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 %

 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t

o
 w

it
h
in

 5
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

 
 A

ll
 O

th
e
r 

D
o
g
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 -
 %

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
  

1
0
0
 

1
0
0
 

 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 6

 m
o
n
th

ly
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

1
0
0
%

 
1
0
0
%

 
 

 
 F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 H

y
g
ie

n
e
 I

n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 %

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

2
 m

o
n
th

ly
  

0
%

 
0
%

 
 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 D

e
s
p
it
e
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
, 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

e
rm

s
 o

f 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
s
 s

ti
ll
 a

t 
a
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l.
 P

e
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

im
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

s
li
g
h
tl
y
 b

u
t 

th
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 s
e
a
s
o
n
a
l 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

e
m

a
n
d
. 

T
h
e
 P

u
b
li
c
 h

e
a
lt
h
 t

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

it
 h

a
rd

 w
it
h
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 s

h
o
rt

a
g
e
s
 b

u
t 

o
th

e
r 

s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

ra
ft

e
d
 i
n
 t

o
 

h
e
lp

 o
u
t 

a
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

t 
a
 t

o
le

ra
b
le

 l
e
v
e
l.
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
. 
P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 d

o
g
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

t 
a
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l.
 N

o
n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 n

o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
t 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t

im
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

e
t,

 w
it
h
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t

im
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 c

o
m

p
le

x
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
s
e
rv

in
g
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
 

1
2
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

    

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
  

Page 42



2
1
 

     

 
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

 
  

 
2

0
1

4
/
1

5
 

2
0

1
3

/
1

4
 

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t 
I
c
o

n
 

 
 S

e
ri
o
u
s
 A

s
s
a
u
lt
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

 
2
8
 

3
3
 

 

 
 A

s
s
a
u
lt
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

 
7
2
8
 

8
6
6
 

 

 
 W

il
fu

l 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 (

w
h
e
e
li
e
 b

in
/ 

g
ra

s
s
/ 

re
fu

s
e
) 

(c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

 
4
7
 

8
1
 

 

 
 A

c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
d
w

e
ll
in

g
 f
ir
e
s
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

6
8
 

7
5
 

 

 
 D

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u
s
e
 (

c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

5
9
8
 

6
4
9
 

 

 
 N

o
is

e
 r

e
la

te
d
/t

e
n
a
n
c
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 (
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 t

o
ta

l 
to

 3
0
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
4
) 

3
3
4
 

4
0
8
 

 

 
 P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 -
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
 

9
9
.4

%
  

 
 

 
 %

 o
f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
n
e
 h

o
u
r 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 
9
7
.9

%
 

9
5
%

 
 

 
 C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 A

n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

  
8
0
%

 
7
6
.5

%
 

 

 
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 
D

a
te

 
U

p
d

a
te

d
 

 
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 h

a
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
ts

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
n
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

th
re

e
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/5

. 
 

  A
s
s
a
u
lt
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 d

e
c
li
n
e
 w

it
h
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

s
s
a
u
lt
s
 d

o
w

n
 b

y
 1

6
%

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

s
s
a
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
s
s
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 i
n
ju

ry
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 2

7
%

. 
F
ir
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 7

 (
1
0
%

) 
fe

w
e
r 

a
c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
h
o
u
s
e
 f
ir
e
s
 a

n
d
 3

4
 (

4
2
%

) 
le

s
s
 w

il
fu

l 
fi
re

s
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
8
%

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u
s
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
. 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 r

e
la

te
d
 a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
ls

o
 s

h
o
w

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 t

re
n
d
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 1

8
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
. 
 

  S
in

c
e
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

 n
e
w

 S
c
o
tt

is
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

. 
T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

c
o
rd

s
 ‘
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
a
n
ti
 s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 l
o
c
a
ll
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

’.
 S

in
c
e
 t

h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
, 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 9

9
.1

%
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
in

 o
u
r 

lo
c
a
ll
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
to

 9
9
.4

%
 o

f 
c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 a
g
a
in

s
t 

a
n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

9
8
%

. 
O

u
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
3
/1

4
, 
re

p
o
rt

e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
u
la

to
r 

w
a
s
 9

6
.5

%
. 
 

 T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
a
ll
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 t

h
a
t 

w
e
re

 a
tt

e
n
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
 h

o
u
r 

in
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

n
o
w

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 
9
7
.9

%
, 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

p
 3

.2
%

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 9

4
.7

%
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
Y
e
a
r 

E
n
d
 a

n
d
 

a
ls

o
 m

e
e
ts

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
9
5
%

. 
 

F
u
rt

h
e
rm

o
re

, 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

n
ti
 S

o
c
ia

l 
B
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 5

7
%

 i
n
 Q

4
 o

f 
2
0
1
3
/1

4
 t

o
 7

6
.5

%
 i
n
 Q

1
 o

f 
2
0
1
4
/1

5
; 

th
e
 n

e
w

 
te

le
p
h
o
n
e
 q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
n
a
ir
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 i
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

 f
a
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
re

tu
rn

 r
a
te

 a
s
 w

e
ll
 a

s
 a

 m
o
re

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 t
o
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
. 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

is
 

1
2
-A

u
g
-2

0
1
4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

Page 43



2
2
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
, 

th
e
 A

S
B
IT

 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 c

lo
s
e
 t

o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il
’s

 t
a
rg

e
t 

o
f 
8
0
%

. 
It

 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

d
is

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 

o
f 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 n

o
t 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 A

S
B
IT

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 
 

  T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 h

u
b
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

e
li
v
e
rs

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
s
e
. 
 

   

Page 44



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE:  Housing and Environment   
 
DATE:   26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR   Pete Leonard & Ewan Sutherland 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  2014/15 Housing Capital Programme 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/014/062 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
The purpose of this report is to provide elected members with a status report for 
the 2014/15 Housing Capital Programme as at 30 June 2014 summarising both 
income and expenditure.     
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  
It is recommended that the Committee:- 
 
a) Notes the financial information contained within this report; and   
 
b) Instructs that the Head of Finance continues to update the Committee in 
consultation with the Director for Housing and Environment on the actual outturn 
position for 2014/15 following completion of the year end statutory accounts. 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
The monies required to fund the housing capital programme can be achieved 
through external borrowing, capital receipts, capital grants and a revenue 
contribution. There are adequate resources available to finance the projected 
capital spend in 2014/15, as required by the Prudential Code. 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
Failure to adequately maintain and improve the Council’s housing stock may lead 
to the Council breaching health and safety regulations, poorer housing conditions 
in Aberdeen and result in lower demand. 
 

 The Council’s Scottish Housing Quality Standard (SHQS) Standard Delivery Plan 
was approved by the former Communities Scotland in August 2006.  This 
outlines the Council’s strategy for meeting SHQS by 2015.  If the Council cannot 
achieve the targets set within the Delivery Plan, within reasonable rent increases, 
then the Scottish Housing Regulator could intervene. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5.1

Page 45



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

5.       BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

BACKGROUND 
5.1 The Council is required to manage its capital programme within the 

regulations set out in Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland Act 
2003. This allows Councils to set their own borrowing limits, provided that 
they comply with the Prudential Code. 

 
5.2 The Prudential Code requires Councils to set a capital programme that is 

affordable, prudent and sustainable. The main test of affordability is 
whether the capital financing costs can be contained within revenue 
budgets.  

 
5.3 Council on the 18 December 2013 approved a funded Housing Capital 

Programme for 2014/15 of £41.7M.   
 

POSITION TO DATE 
5.4   The summary financial statement at Appendix 1 outlines the original budget 

for the current year and expenditure and income as at 30 June 2014. 
 
5.5 Appendix 2 details the range of projects expected to be undertaken within 

the overall budget and spend to date. Spend to date is low principally on 
Structural repairs, Heating System Replacement & the Modernisation 
programme. 
 
EXPENDITURE 

5.6 As at 30 June 2014 £3.8M of the approved budget has been spent to date.  
   

SUMMARY 
5.7    It is currently forecast, based on figures to date, that the Housing Capital 

programme outturn will be managed within the framework as set out in the 
Prudential Code. 

 
6.       IMPACT 
6.1       The report relates to the Single Outcome Agreement and the Council vision 

of Aberdeen – the Smarter City, in particular the strategic priority ‘Smarter 
living (Quality of Life)’ where we will provide quality services to our council 
tenants to enable them to have a dry, warm home in a safe and enjoyable 
environment..  

 

6.2      Public – this report will be of interest to the public as it demonstrates financial 
performance. 
 

7.     MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
There are many factors that can lead to project delays such as consultation 
with tenants, decanting of tenants and access to properties.  Such delays 
would result in the opportunity to advance other projects. There is a need 
for the capital programme slippage to be kept to a minimum to allow the 
Council to achieve the SHQS by 2015.   
 

 

Page 46



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

8.     BACKGROUND PAPERS 
18 December 2013 Draft Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Housing 
Capital Budget 2014/15 to 2018/19 

 
9..     REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

Helen Sherrit,  
Finance Partner, 
hsherrit@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(34)6353 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

 
APPENDIX 1 

2014/15          
          
 Approved    Actual at  Estimated  
 Budget   30/06/14   Out-turn   
 £’000   £'000   £’000  Notes  
          

Expenditure 46,923   3,793   41,762  1 
Slippage (5,161)        2 

Total Expenditure 41,762   3,793   41,762   

          
Funded by:          
Borrowing 19,208         0   19,208  3 
CFCR 
Grant Income 

22,459 
95 

  
 

3,698 
    95  

  22,459 
       95 

 4 

Total Income 41,762   3,793   41,762   

          
 

(Note 1) Expenditure 
As at 30 June 2014 the Council has paid £3.8M of the budgeted £41.7M.   
 
(Note 2) Slippage 
The total available budgeted programme for capital expenditure of £46.9M is set 
to allow for slippage. (contract price variations, projects starting later than 
anticipated, projects being amended etc) 

 
(Note 3) Borrowing 
This is the level of borrowing the Council has approved to undertake in 2014/15.   

 
(Note 4) Capital From Current Revenue (CFCR) 
At present it is anticipated that £22M for the revenue contribution to capital will be 
made.  
 
The overall level of the revenue contribution will be subject to variation 
dependent on the final position of the Housing Revenue Account and the Capital 
programme.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

 
 
Appendix 2 

Housing Capital 2014/15 Original Actual    

  Approved As at 30    

 Project Programme June  

  £'000 £'000  

 SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    
     

1 Compliant with the tolerable standard    
1.1 Major Repairs 1,000 142  

 Roofs Renewal/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    

 Undertaking large scale repairs to Roofs/Gutters/RWP/Roughcast    

  1,000 142  

     

2 Free from Serious Disrepair    

     

2.1 Primary Building Elements 7,380 285        

 Structural Repairs Multi Storey    

 Multi Storey blocks are surveyed on a 5-7 year cycle to identify any works required to the     

 Structure of the buildings in order to keep the buildings safe and prolong their life.    

 Structural Repairs General Housing 3,000 (63)  

 Structural works carried out in order to keep the building stable and structurally sound   

     

 Secondary Building Elements    

2.2 Upgrading Of Flat Roofs General 350 0  

 Replacement of existing roof covering and upgrading of insulation to meet current building   

 Regulations.    

2.3 Upgrade Flat Roofs Multi Storey 684 125  

 Full replacement of the flat roofs and also checking the replacement of roof ventilation as required   

2.5 Mono Pitched Types 
Replacement of the external render of the building, replacement of gutters and downpipes 
and environmental works 

526 98  

2.6 Window Replace General 1,251 (23)  

 A rolling programme of double glazing where previously single glazing, or replacing   

 Double glazing to meet current standards.  This is based on a cyclical programme.    

2.7 Window Replace Multi Storey 0 0  

 A rolling programme to replace existing double glazing to meet current standards.  This is   

 on a cyclical programme.    

2.8 Balcony Storm Doors 60 (1)  

 Replacement of existing doors with more secure, solid doors    

2.9 Balcony Glass Renewal - Multi Storey 160 101  

 Replacement of existing balcony glazing on a cyclical basis    

  13,411 522  

     

3 Energy Efficient    

     

 Effective insulation    

3.1 General Houses Loft Insulation 265 0  

 Installation of loft insulation where there is none previously or the topping up of existing   

 Insulation to comply with current building regulations.    

 Efficient Heating    

3.3 Heating Systems Replacement 5,314 493  

 Replacement of boiler/whole system as deemed necessary.    

3.4 Medical Need Heating 0 0  

 Installation of gas/electric heating depending on the medical assessment.    

 This can be installing a completely new system, modifying or extending an existing system.   

3.5 Energy Efficiency Multi Blocks 4,400 506  

 Contribution to Aberdeen Heat & Power for the creation of Combined Heat & Power Plants   

3.6 Energy Efficiency Sheltered 350 255  

 Introduction of energy efficiency measures in sheltered housing such as new or upgraded 
Systems.  

  

  
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 49



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

 
 

     

  Original Actual  

  Approved As at 30  

 Project Programme June  

  £’000 £’000  

 Additional Energy Efficiency measures    

3.7 S.C.A.R.F 35 0  

 Payment to SCARF for work carried out by them under the Energy Efficiency programme to    

 Individual council properties.  The work carried out includes the installation of loft insulation,    

 Draught proofing and compact fluorescent bulbs.  Also, providing tenants with energy efficiency   

 Advice and information.    

3.8 Solid Wall Insulation 150 0  

 Installation of solid wall insulation where there was none previously.    

3.9 Vestibule Doors 0 0  

 Installation of new doors where there were none before.    

  10,514 1,254  

     

4 Modern Facilities & Services    

     

 Bathroom and Kitchen Condition     

4.1 Modernisation Programme 9,728 846  

 Replacement of bathrooms and kitchens.    

  9,728 846  

5 Healthy, Safe & Secure    

     

 Healthy    

5.1 Condensation Measures 75 0  

 Installation of heating systems and ventilation measures to combat condensation.    

 Safe    

5.3 Rewiring  1,548 430  

 Replacement of cabling, fittings and distribution boards as necessary. This work is carried    

 out in every property on a cyclical basis    

5.4 Lift Replacement Multi Storey/Major Blocks 600 68  

 Replacement of lifts where they are beyond economical repair. This can be full replacement    

 
5.5 

replacement of specific parts of the lift. 
Smoke Detectors  

54 16  

5.6 Services 50 (51)  

 Cyclical maintenance/replacement of the following services    

 Ventilation Systems, Water Tanks/Pipework, Refuse Chutes/Chamber    

 Dry Riser Systems, Standby Generators    

5.7 Entrance Halls/Concierge 50 0  

 Provision of security service      

5.8 Laundry Facilities 52 4  

 Replacement of laundry equipment    

5.9 Upgrading of Lighting 39 30  

 Installation of lighting controlled by photo cell i.e. switches on and off automatically depending   

 on the level of natural light.    

 Installation of lighting in areas where there was none before.    

 Secure    

5.11 Door Entry Systems 48 0  

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    

5.12 Replace Door Entry Systems - Major Blocks 48 0  

  Installation of door entry and replacement of existing doors where required    

5.13 Other Initiatives 366 0  

 Upgrading of stairs and installation of security doors and door entry systems    

5.14 Crime Prevention /Safety Measures    

  2,930 497  

     

     
 

     

     

     

     

     

Page 50



2014/15  Housing Capital Programme 

 
 

  
 
 

   

  Original Actual  

  Approved As at 30  

  Programme June  

  £’000 £’000  

 Project    

     

 NON SCOTTISH HOUSING QUALITY STANDARDS    

     

6 Community Plan & Single Outcome Agreement    

     

6.1 Housing For Varying Needs 100 (2)  

 New build including extra care housing.    

6.2 Community Initiatives 400 (7)  

 Refurbishment of properties or environmental improvements in designated areas.    

6.4 Regeneration/Affordable Housing 120 0  

 Early Action projects linked to Regeneration and Master planning Briefs for Regeneration    

 & provision of consultation events.    

 Acquisition of land for new build programme     

6.6 CCTV – Multi Storey 310 0  

 Provision of CCTV for the multi storey service    

6.7 Adaptations Disabled 1,250    62  

 Installation of level access showers, ramps, stair lifts and kitchen adaptations    

6.8 Special Initiatives/Barrier Free Housing 150 0  

 Provision of specialist facilities or housing for tenants with particular needs i.e. extensions   

6.9 Housing For Varying Needs- Amenity/Adaptations 300 (12)  

 Conversion of properties to Amenity Level standard    

6.10 Housing For Varying Needs- Extra Care/Adaptations 430 (75)  

 Adaptations required to ensure existing sheltered housing stock meets current standards   

6.11/ 
6.12 

Roads/Paths 100 0  

 Upgrade of Roads to an adoptable standard and the Formation or upgrading of paths 100 0  

6.13 Garages    

 Upgrade of Garages 0 0  

6.14 New Affordable Housing 500 357  

  3,760 321  

     

7 Service Development    

     

7.1 Conditions Surveys 50 0  

 Surveying of Council houses to identify failures against Scottish Housing Quality Standard   

7.2 Property Database 50 0  

 Various items of IT equipment including hardware and software    

7.3 Integrated Housing System 75 49  

 Various purchase of PC's and software packages    

  175 49  

     

     

8 Service Expenditure    

 Corporate Fees 5,405 160  

  5,405 160  

     

 Total Budget 46,923 3,793  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Page 1 of 3 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE:    Housing and Environment  
 
DATE:     26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR:    Pete Leonard & Ewan Sutherland 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:   2014/15 REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING  
 
REPORT NUMBER:  H&E/14/063 

 

 
1.   PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to  

i) bring to Committee members notice the current year revenue 
budget performance to date for the Services which relate to this 
Committee; and      

ii) advise on any areas of risk and management action. 
 

2.   RECOMMENDATION(S)  
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Committee: 

i) consider and note this report and the information on management 
action and risks that is contained herein; and 

ii) instruct that officers report the year end position to the appropriate 
committee. 

 
 
3.   FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
  
 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
3.1. The HRA which has gross expenditure budget of £83M is ring-fenced and 

is funded mainly from housing rents.  
 
3.2. The forecast position on the HRA, as outlined, indicates that there will be 

a working balance of £7.2M after taking account of the 2014/15 outturn 
and other agreed commitments.  This is in excess of the recommended 
minimum level of £6.3M.  
 
 
General Fund  

3.3. The total Housing and Environment budget amounts to £36.5M net 
expenditure, excluding the HRA budget. 

 

Agenda Item 5.2

Page 53



 
Page 2 of 3 

3.4. The forecast position indicates an under spend of £130K. 
 
3.5. Further details of the financial implications are set out in section 5 and 

appendix A attached.  
 
 
 4.  OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 None 
 
5.  BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
5.1    The Service revenue monitoring reports and associated notes are attached 

at Appendix A 
 

Financial Position and Risks Assessment 
 
Housing Revenue Account 
The projected net saving for the year is forecast at £23M. It is anticipated 
this will be used to provide a CFCR contribution to fund the capital 
programme and increase the working balance.   
 
General Fund 
In overall terms the position forecasts an under spend of £130K on the 
total Housing and Environment Budget (excluding the HRA).   
 

5.2 The areas contributing to this movement are as follows   
     £’000 
Grounds Maintenance (190) 
Environmental  
Supporting People 

150 
(140) 

HMO, PLR & PSHG 40 
ASSL 10 

 (130) 

  

  

• Grounds Maintenance is forecasting an under spend of £190K mainly due to 
an increase in recoveries from Housing Revenue Account based on previous 
year’s income. 

• The forecast for Environmental is £150K over budget as a result of a 
decrease in recoveries from Housing Revenue Account based on previous 
year’s activity.  

• Supporting People are forecast to be £140K below budget due mainly to a 
reduction in services to a reduction in services to be received from outside 
agencies due to staff shortages. 

Page 54



 
Page 3 of 3 

• An over spend of £40K in HMO/PLR & PSHG is forecast as a result of a PBB 
saving of £200K in Private Landlord Registration fee not being utilised.  This 
is offset by a reduction in disabled adaptation budget of £70K that is no 
longer required and a reduction in admin and management fees. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

As a recognised top priority the Council must take the necessary 
measures to balance its budget. Therefore Committees and Services are 
required to work within a financial constraint. Every effort is being focused 
on delivering services more efficiently and effectively. 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
To ensure the anticipated forecast outturn is maintained the service has been -   
 

•       Managing controllable costs for example staff vacancies and overtime 

•       Maximising the potential income streams of the service. 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS  
 Financial ledger data extracted for the period. 
 
9.   REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Helen Sherrit 
Finance Partner   
hsherrit@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
01224 346353 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014/15

DIRECTORATE : Housing and Environment

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

6,844 1,711 1,534 (177) 6,745 (99) (1)% 0

(1,850) (463) (533) (71) (1,850) 0 0 0

30,222 7,556 6,829 (727) 30,195 (27) (0)% 0

1,254 314 258 (56) 1,252 (2) 0% 0

36,470 9,118 8,088 (1,030) 36,342 (128) (0) 0

(23,362) (9,404) (9,663) (259) (23,353) 9 0% 0

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

HOUSING INVESTMENT

HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT SERVICES

HEAD OF REGENERATION AND

TOTAL BUDGET

FORECAST TO YEAR END

HEAD OF HOUSING AND

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

YEAR TO DATE

COMMUNITY SAFETY

Page 57



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014 / 2015: HEAD OF HOUSING & COMMUNITY SAFETY

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

4,754 1,189 1,045 (144) 4,698 (56) -1% 0

2,543 636 684 48 2,740 197 8% 0

1,161 290 422 132 1,059 (102) -9% 0

69 17 11 (6) 68 (1) -1% 0

1,264 316 222 (94) 1,237 (27) -2% 0

6,880 1,720 1,456 (264) 6,770 (110) -2% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

16,671 4,168 3,840 (328) 16,572 (99) -1% 0

(9,827) (2,457) (2,306) 151 (9,827) 0 0% 0

(9,827) (2,457) (2,306) 151 (9,827) 0 0% 0

6,844 1,711 1,534 (177) 6,745 (99) -1% 0

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Overall Note

Employee Costs (56) 0

Property Costs 197 0

Administration Costs (102) 0

Transport Costs (1) 0

Supplies and Services (27) 0

Transfer Payments (110) 0

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income 0 0

(99) 0

This principally relates to an underspend of £54K within Supporting People as a result of current vacancies.

FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

STAFF COSTS

CAPITAL FINANCING

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

NET EXPENDITURE

INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS:

The underspend relates mainly to an anticipated lower spend in Supporting People.

Within this Income line there is a forecast reduction of £200K for Private Registered Landlords & an increase of £200K for

factoring as detailed in the Property costs.

The over spend mainly relates to factoring, an outturn of £200K has been included however this will be balanced by income

received.

The under spend principally relates to a forecast under spend within Other Housing.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

Principally the anticipated underspend is from Supporting People.

Page 58



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014 / 2015 :HEAD OF REGENERATION & HOUSING INVESTMENT

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

3,136 784 675 (109) 3,178 42 1% 0

56 14 7 (7) 56 0 0% 0

92 23 10 (13) 92 0 0% 0

489 122 150 28 489 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

3,773 943 842 (101) 3,815 42 1% 0

(5,623) (1,406) (1,375) 31 (5,665) (42) 1% 0

(5,623) (1,406) (1,375) 31 (5,665) (42) 1% 0

(1,850) (463) (533) (71) (1,850) 0 0% 0

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Employee Costs 42 0

Administration Costs 0 0

Transport Costs 0 0

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income (42) 0

0 0

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

Housing Repairs is recharged in full to Housing Revenue Account therefore there will is a corresponding

increase in income to reflect the over spend within staffing.

The anticipated outturn is based on the current level of staffing and the overspend is £42K from Housing

Repairs.

The outturn is based on actual to date and previous years spend.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS

INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

STAFF COSTS

YEAR TO DATE FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

Page 59



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014 / 2015 : HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT SERVICES

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

19,131 4,783 4,175 (608) 18,931 (200) -1% 0

950 238 213 (25) 1,008 58 6% 0

483 121 63 (58) 474 (9) -2% 0

2,498 625 592 (33) 2,484 (14) -1% 0

7,790 1,948 2,593 646 8,153 363 5% 0

8,974 2,244 2,048 (196) 8,685 (289) -3% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

39,826 9,957 9,684 (273) 39,735 (91) 0% 0

(9,604) (2,401) (2,855) (454) (9,540) 64 -1% 0

(9,604) (2,401) (2,855) (454) (9,540) 64 -1% 0

30,222 7,556 6,829 (727) 30,195 (27) 0% 0

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Employee Costs (200) 0

Property Costs 58 0

Administration Costs (9) 0

Transport Costs (14) 0

Supplies and Services 363 0

Transfer Payments (289) 0

Capital Financing Costs 0 0

Income 64 0

(27) 0

Staff costs are to date below budget, an underspend of £200K is being anticipated this is split over a very

wide variety of services including Grounds Maintenance, Waste & Street Sweeping.

The main reason for the forecast over spend is £88K for Other Collection relating to the potential additional

costs for renting alternative premises for the storage of bins this is in part reduced by an under spend within

Grounds Maintenance for refuse collection.

The main underspend is £9K for ASSL.

The forecast over spend relates to income £140K incorrectly budgeted within Street Sweeping this will be

corrected for 2015/16 which is netted off with potential increases in income from Grounds Maintenance

£210K.

This budget is for travelling expenses and outturns have been reviewed based on spend to date.

The predicted over spend principally relates to an increase in Waste of £329K relating to increased gate fee

charges and payments to the outside contractors.

The CFCR payment for waste has been reduced to reflect the potential increased costs noted in supplies and

services.

Capital Financing Costs have now been removed from the budgets and will be treated corporately.

TOTAL INCOME

NET EXPENDITURE

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS: INCOME

INCOME

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

FORECAST TO YEAR END

CAPITAL FINANCING

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

STAFF COSTS

Page 60



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014 / 2015 : OPERATIONAL SUPPORT MANAGER

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditur

e

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

1,170 293 262 (31) 1,110 (60) -5% 0

310 78 129 52 308 (2) -1% 0

72 18 11 (7) 72 0 0% 0

16 4 1 (3) 16 0 0% 0

403 101 34 (67) 403 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

1,971 493 437 (56) 1,909 (62) -3% 0

(717) (179) (179) 0 (657) 60 -8% 0

(717) (179) (179) 0 (657) 60 -8% 0

1,254 314 258 (56) 1,252 (2) 0% 0

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

None

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Overall Note

TOTAL INCOME

FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

STAFF COSTS

TRANSPORT COSTS

YEAR TO DATE

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

INCOME

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

TRANSFER PAYMENTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

LESS: INCOME

PROPERTY COSTS

GROSS EXPENDITURE

The movements relate to a reduction in staff costs which are then reallocated to Housing Revenue

Account.

NET EXPENDITURE

Page 61



APPENDIX A

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

REVENUE MONITORING 2014 / 2015 - HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

DIRECTORATE : HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT

DIRECTOR : PETE LEONARD

As at 30 June 2014

Full year

Revised

Budget

Revised

Budget

Actual

Expenditure

Variance

Amount
Outturn

Variance

Amount

Variance

Percent

Change

from last

report

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 % £'000

31,148 7,787 7,599 (188) 31,411 263 1% 0

11,759 2,940 2,622 (318) 10,435 (1,324) -11% 0

494 124 77 (47) 476 (18) -4% 0

2,276 569 806 237 3,233 957 42% 0

14,254 0 51 51 14,305 51 0% 0

59,931 11,419 11,155 (264) 59,860 (71) 0% 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0% 0

(130) (33) 0 33 (130) 0 0% 0

(83,163) (20,791) (20,818) (27) (83,083) 80 0% 0

(83,293) (20,823) (20,818) 5 (83,213) 80 0% 0

(23,362) (9,404) (9,663) (259) (23,353) 9 0% 0

VIREMENT PROPOSALS

FORECAST

VARIANCE CHANGE

REVENUE MONITORING VARIANCE NOTES £'000 £'000

Property Costs

263 0

Administration Costs

(1,324) 0

Supplies and Services

(18) 0

Transfer Payments

957 0

Capital Financing Costs

51 0

Income

80 0

9 0

PROPERTY COSTS

YEAR TO DATE FORECAST TO YEAR END

ACCOUNTING PERIOD 3

OTHER GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

ADMINISTRATION COSTS

SUPPLIES & SERVICES

TRANSFER PAYMENTS TOTAL

CAPITAL FINANCING COSTS

OTHER INCOME

GROSS EXPENDITURE

LESS: INCOME

INTEREST

Capital Financing Costs are posted at the end of the financial year. The over spend of £51K refers to the final payment

for the gas central heating lease which was not included in 2014-15 budget.

The forecasts for Dwelling House Rent Income and various other rents are based on current forecast level of income.

NET EXPENDITURE

TOTAL INCOME

The forecast over spend is principally made up of a number of services including rent £74K & maintenance of grounds

£185K.

The projected variance is principally due to a decrease in management & admin of £598K and former tenants arrears of

£700K based on the out-turn for 2013-14.

The Provision of meals outturn has been reduced by £18K to reflect the actual costs for 2013/14.

The main reason for the over spend is the loss of rent for Council Houses this is resulting from a higher than anticipated

volume of voids.

Page 62



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE      26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR     Gordon McIntosh 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Capital Monitoring – Housing & 

Environment Projects 
 
REPORT NUMBER:       EPI/14/157 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

To advise the Committee of the capital spend to date for the Housing & 
Environment projects included within the Non-Housing Capital 
Programme.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 The Committee note the current position. 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
The monies required to fund these projects are achieved through 
external borrowing, capital receipts and grant income. These projects 
are all accommodated within the Non-Housing Capital Programme. Any 
underspend, carry forward or overspend will have implications for the 
programme. There are no issues at present that would result in such 
implications. As part of the Council’s five year business plan, capital 
expenditure is now monitored within a five year timescale where 
appropriate. This has given budget holders the ability to profile across 
the full five years. In year monitoring will continue, alongside monitoring 
the complete Capital Programme.  
 
Some projects are now profiled for little or indeed no expenditure in the 
current financial year. In these instances, budget holders have profiled 
the intended expenditure in the appropriate financial year. Budget 
holders who are profiling slippage on a legally committed project into 
the next financial year(s) are also profiling this expenditure into the 
appropriate year. 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no other implications at this time but as projects progress or 
indeed fail to progress then other implications may arise and will be 
reported at an appropriate Committee. 

Agenda Item 5.3

Page 63



 

 

 
5. BACKGROUND / MAIN ISSUES 

 
As reported at the Finance & Resources Committee in June 2012 the 
overall responsibility for the monitoring / management of the Capital 
Programme lies with the Head of Asset Management & Operations. 
The Planning & Monitoring Officer within Asset Management & 
Operations is in regular contact with the Service Representative and 
the Capital Accountant, reporting in the first instance to the Corporate 
Asset Group. This ensures that the spend figures are always up to date 
and accurate. 
 
Housing & Environment has a total of 3 projects, totaling £13.421 
million allocated to it from the 2014/15 Non-Housing Capital 
Programme. The projects and total budget committed to each project 
included in the programme are:- 

 
1) Private Sector Housing Grant 

£1 million 
 

2) Victoria House 
£1.811 million 

 
3) Waste: Implement Waste Strategy 

£10.610 million 
 

Spend for all projects to the end of July is £1.135 million. Spend 
profiles provided by budget holders show it is anticipated that 
underspend this financial year will be picked up in the following 
financial year(s).  
 
Appendix A provides a breakdown of expenditure to date against 
budget. 

 
An update on the capital position will be reported to this Committee on 
28 October 2014. 

 
6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate - The capital programme encompasses projects which link to 
the Community Plan, Single Outcome Agreement, Corporate and 
Individual Service Plans. 
 
Public - This report will be of interest to the public as it outlines the 
Council’s capital spending to date on Housing & Environment projects. 

 
7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Non-Housing Capital Programme 2012/13 – Capital Monitoring Report 
approved at Finance & Resources Committee on 19 June 2012 

Page 64



 

 

 
8. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
David Marshall 
Planning & Monitoring Officer 
� 01224 523191 
� damarshall@aberdeencity.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

 

Appendix A: 
Capital Monitoring – Housing & Environment projects 

 
 

Project Description 
Revised 
budget Spend to July Profiled out - Five year 

 
2014/15 2014 Turn 2014/15 Budget 

       £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

 
 

Private Sector Housing Grant 1,000 208 700 
Rolling 

programme 

Victoria House 1,811 380 1,819 2,518 

Waste: Implement Waste Strategy 10,610 547 4,619 30,849 

Totals 13,421 1,135 7,138 
 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE  26th August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Development of an asset management model   
                                                 for the Council’s housing stock   
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/034 

 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to update the committee on the current 
position of the development of an asset management model for the 
Council housing stock.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
It is recommended that the committee: 
 
a) Notes the progress to date on the development of an asset  

                 management model for the Council’s housing stock.  
  

b) Approves the creation of an Asset Management Steering Group 
and Asset Management Action Group to identify and take forward 
the development of an Asset Management Plan. 

 
c) Instructs the Director of Housing & Environment to report annually 

on the future high level outcomes and how these will influence 
decision making on the housing stock. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The development of an asset management model specifically for the 
Council’s housing stock will support the production of the Housing 
Business Plan, Asset Management Plan and, therefore, the 
management of the Housing Revenue Account.  
 
Adopting an asset management approach to capital investment 
decision making, will assist us to comply with our statutory obligations 
under Best Value and the Prudential Code and strengthen the HRA 
asset  portfolio and in turn the performance of the Housing Business 
Plan. 

 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 67



 

 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The development of the Housing asset management model will ensure 
that financial and staff resources are targeted at those areas of the 
stock where they will be most effective.  The model will also provide a 
robust information base to support future decisions on the 
management and sustainability of the stock through an Asset 
Management Plan.  
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
As previously reported to this committee on 14 May 2013 officers have 
been working with Arneil Johnston, the Council’s Housing Consultant, 
to produce an asset management model for the Council’s housing 
stock.  
 
The model will produce an asset management outcome for each 
property; red for poorly performing stock; green for stock which is 
performing well and amber for stock which requires action to prevent it 
from future poor performance. 
 
The traffic light indicators will also be plotted on the Council’s GIS 
mapping system.  This is currently being tested and will go live in the 
coming weeks.  This will provide another option by which staff and 
elected members can view the asset management plan results.       

 
The outcomes for the whole stock are currently being assessed and 
tested by officers.  The timetable for final implementation of the model 
is: 
 
Task Timeline 

Elected members AMP information 
briefing sessions 

w/c 4/8/2014 

ACC Council staff AMP training 
sessions 

September 2014 

Development of AMP 
implementation action plan and 
formation of AMP officers working 
groups 

 
Sept/Oct 2014 

Inclusion of AMM outcomes on GIS 
mapping system 

September 2014 

Implementation of Asset 
Management Model 

October 2014 

 
The current whole stock position by property is shown on the pie chart 
below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 

 

Red, Amber Green by property score 

 
 
These results give an initial high-level overview of our stock’s 
performance.  On completion of the final outcomes officers will be able 
to interrogate these results to an area, block or individual property level 
to identify the reasons for poor performance and attempt to introduce 
improvement measures. 
 
Other high level outcomes show: 
 
Red Stock  
 
There are 3,229 properties highlighted as red in the asset management 
model.  The model shows that demand is not a key driver for the 
performance of these properties but that current and future costs are. 
 
48% of the red stock is showing poor current cost performance  
38% shows poor future cost performance. 
 
 
Green Stock  
 
7086 properties are classified as green with strong demand and low 
current costs. 
 
95% of green stock shows very low current costs 
92% of green stock shows very high demand  
30% of green stock has very low future costs 

Page 69



 

 

 
Amber Stock  
 
12,400 properties are classified as amber stock 
 
21% of amber stock is vulnerable to becoming red 
37% of amber stock is borderline green. 
 
Net Present Value (NPV) 
 
As well as providing a RAG score for each address the new model will 
also provide a net present value for individual addresses and for the 
whole stock.   
 
The NPV calculates the impact of the financial contribution a property, 
block or the whole stock will have on the HRA over a 30 year period.  
This is then shown as a positive or negative sum. 
 
Current results show that the whole stock has a positive NPV of £263 
million over the 30 years of the model and that 75% of the stock has a 
positive impact on NPV over that period. 

 
Future Development 
 
Following implementation of the model the information will be updated 
annually and can be used to: 
 

• Support decisions made on future expenditure at property, block 
and area level; 

• Allow Housing Managers to concentrate efforts to support tenants 
having difficulty with rent arrears and other tenancy issues; and 

• Support strategic decisions regarding the future of particular types 
of stock or stock in particular areas; 

 
To consider these matters and analyse other outcomes from the asset 
management model it is proposed that an Asset Management Steering 
Group of officers be set up.  The responsibilities of this group will be: 
 

• To develop the AMP strategy 

• To ensure this integrates with other housing agendas 

• To provide leadership on AMP system and process improvement 

• To co-ordinate area action plans 

• To direct and manage the annual model update 

• To deliver trend/outcome analysis and continually evaluate strategy 
 
In addition to this it is also proposed that a number of Asset 
Management Working Groups will be created on an area basis, 
mirroring the current Housing Management teams.  These groups will: 
 

• Analyse AMP output indicators on an area basis 

• Develop area proposals to meet AMP strategic objectives 

Page 70



 

 

• Devise, implement and monitor an area based action plan 
 
Creating the steering group and working groups will ensure that there 
is a clear understanding across housing and other partner services of 
the holistic approach needed to support proper asset management.  

 

6. IMPACT 
 
The Single Outcome Agreement refers to a need to enhance the 

           quality of housing and environment for individuals and the community. 
 

“Aberdeen – the Smarter City”, sets out the following policy targets: 
 
Smarter Living (Quality of Life): 
We will provide quality services to our council tenants to enable them 
to have a dry, warm home in a safe and enjoyable environment. 
 
Smarter Environment (Natural Resources): 
We will increase energy efficiency and introduce carbon reduction 
measures in our processes and our housing and non housing assets to 
reduce our carbon footprint, save money and to bring people out of fuel 
poverty. 
 
The development of a Housing Asset Management Plan will support 
these outcomes by ensuring that staffing and financial resources are 
targeted at those properties where they will have the most impact. 
It will also be possible to use the Asset Management Plan in 
conjunction with other strategic indicators to assess whether our assets 
will meet housing need now and in the future.  

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

Failure to adopt an Asset management Plan will put the Council at risk 
of not applying proper option appraisal processes in place and failing to 
apply recognised best value methodology when considering future 
investment in its housing stock. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
           Report on the Development of an asset management plan for the  
           Council’s housing stock, submitted to the Housing & Environment  
           committee of 14 May 2013 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
           Ian Perry 
           Housing Improvement Officer 
           iperry@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
           tel: (729)39242 

 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

"NOT FOR PUBLICATION 

This report is circulated for consultation purposes only and must not be discussed or the contents released to anyone or 
any organisation outwith the Council.  You should only discuss this with authorised Council employees.  If you are in any 
doubt about who you are able to disclose this information to please contact the report author or your Director or Head of 
Service.  If you are a member of a trade union and you are being consulted on this report as part of the Council's formal 
consultation procedures please adhere to these arrangements and contact the Head of Human Resources if you require 
any further advice." 

 
ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 

 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment 
 
DATE  26 August 014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Rent Arrears - Update 
 
REPORT NUMBER H&E/14/057 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to provide members with an update on the current level 
of rent arrears and the actions being taken to manage rent management 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that Committee note the report 
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
N/A 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Members will be aware from previous reports that rent arrears had been increasing 
significantly over the last three years.  Reports to the Housing and Environment 
Committee in January and March 2014 gave explanations for this and  outlined the 
actions being taken not only to minimise any further increase but also to try and 
improve our performance. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.2

Page 73



 

This report provides Member’s with further information. 
 
 
The table below shows a comparison in our performance for rent arrears for the 
months of Jan – June 2013 and 2014. 
 

 
 

Members can see at a glance that although the arrears in Jan and February 2014 
increased from the same time last year, there has been a real improvement in 
performance since March 2014 compared to figures from the same time last year. 
 
Clearly this has taken a huge effort by all the staff involved in the rent management 
process, and one which will be difficult to sustain over the coming months. 
 
As a result, officers are looking to introduce a new team of four staff, who will focus 
on cases at the Notice of Proceedings stage, the 1st stage of legal action.  A 
business case is currently being developed for staff who would have a focus on 
drilling down to the root cause of rent arrears and finding solutions to avoid the 
necessity of Court action.  It is proposed that these new staff would work outwith 
normal core hours and free up time for both the Housing Officers and Assistant 
Housing Officers to concentrate more of their time on their competing priorities. 
 
At the end of last year the post of Development Officer was created on a fixed term 
basis to concentrate on the development and strategy for rent arrears.  Given the 
success of this post a business case has recently been approved to make the post 
permanent. 
 

There are also a number of ongoing actions which are being developed to enable 
the Housing Management Teams to be able to better respond to the rent arrears.  
These include: 
 

• The process for claiming Rent Arrears Direct (direct deductions from benefits 
paid by Department of Work and Pensions) has now been designed and 
implemented..  This allows us to maximise the income generated through 
this payment channel to include charges for services such as heating. 

• A poster campaign was ongoing through most of July and August on “First 
Bus”.  This was aimed at giving out a joint message to neighbourhoods 
around the financial help available from both Housing Management and 
Money advice/Financial Inclusion Services 

• A new poster campaign has begun in conjunction with an on-line electronic 
reporting form to increase awareness and promote the reporting of 
suspected abandoned properties – given that neighbours are usually the first 

2013 Month 2013 Monthly Value 2014 Month 2014 Monthly Value Year on Year Diff £ % Diff 

            

Jan-13 £3,350,475.56 Jan-14 £3,905,995.56 £555,520.00 ↑16.6% 

Feb-13 £3,450,178.60 Feb-14 £3,946,349.76 £496,171.16 ↑14.4% 

Mar-13 £3,077,681.99 Mar-14 £2,933,283.39 -£144,398.60 ↓4.7% 

Apr-13 £3,427,571.06 Apr-14 £3,117,084.11 -£310,486.95 ↓9.1% 

May-13 £3,566,542.58 May-14 £3,291,748.75 -£274,793.83 ↓7.7% 

Jun-13 £3,283,224.73 Jun-14 £2,787,134.97 -£496,089.76 ↓15.1% 

Page 74



 

to notice anything suspicious in relation to a tenancy and therefore can play 
a significant role in helping the Council identify and take action at the earliest 
possible stage. 

• Poster campaign as well as the use of the television screens at Marischal 
College Customer Service Centre and at the Woodside Customer Access 
Point promoting payment by direct debit as well as encouraging claims for 
Discretionary Housing Payment. 

• Summer edition of Newsbite being used to include several articles around 
arrears, financial help, payment methods etc. 

• Court working group, continues to explore ways to reduce the number of 
cases reaching Court and how to be more effective managing the cases 
already within the Court arena. 

• Work continues on investigating ways in which we can be more flexible in 
introducing direct debits on any day of the month.  Testing is underway plus 
consideration of new software to ease the transition to wards greater 
flexibility. 

• Applications for Discretionary Housing Payments continues, with a large 
number of claims pending, awaiting the release of promised additional 
funding from Scottish Government. 

• A business case is being developed to introduce a new Arrears Intervention 
Team (described earlier).  These staff would have a city wide remit to 
administer the 1st legal recovery stage of rent arrears.  The team will be a 
specialist arrears team aligned to the current Arrears Recovery Team and 
will focus on drilling down to the root cause of rent arrears and finding 
solutions to avoid the necessity of Court action  The proposal is that this 
team will work outwith normal core hours and link heavily to the Financial 
Inclusion Team, Homeless Prevention Team, Welfare Hub and Housing 
Management Teams as well as external advice and support agencies.  

• Improved links with the Financial Inclusion Teams who are exploring how 
best their intervention with professional, financial advice can better support 
our tenants.  The team are considering several pre tenancy and early 
tenancy interventions. 

• External training is taking place during September for Housing Officers, 
Assistant Housing Officers and Arrears Recovery Officers around payment 
negotiation skills and how language can be used to influence discussions 
and outcomes with tenants in arrears. 

• Development of individual performance targets for Housing Officers within 
their patches.  The aim is to make the targets much more meaningful and 
realistic for staff to work towards. 

• Development of a suite of GIS mapped tasks for Housing Officers to use for 
better managing their area.  The system is being developed on the concept 
of “what else can I do in my area while I’m here”. 

• Procedural changes have been made to arrears cases which are undergoing 
bankruptcy or sequestration action.  Rather than simply writing off the debt 
and beginning any action afresh, cases will be managed to determine how 
the tenant is coping with their ongoing liability.  It is intended that this will 
encourage agencies working with these tenants to continue supporting them 
beyond the bankruptcy application stage. 

• A review of how lease signings are conducted is to be undertaken.  The 
proposal is to make sure that every new tenant is given clear information on 
what is expected of them as regards their rental liability.  Similarly we will 
review the procedure for the follow up routine visits to new tenants and on 

Page 75



 

how and when these visits should be carried out, this is with a view to 
improving performance in this area. 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The report has links to the Community Plan and our vision for the City to be an even 
better place to live and work, where people can expect high quality services to meet 
their needs. 
 
The report relates to the Single Outcome Agreement and the Council vision of 
Aberdeen – the Smarter City, in particular the strategic priority “Smarter Living 
(Quality of Life), where we challenge inequality and positively promote wellbeing 
building on cultural and physical activity. 
 
The report also relates to the following National Outcome Measures: 

• National Outcome C – “We live longer, healthier lives” 

• National Outcome 9 – “A safer and Stronger Scotland” 

• National Outcome 10 – “We live in well designed, sustainable places, where 
we are able to access the amenities and services we need” 

 
Given the changes to welfare benefits and the level of rent arrears, this  
Report is likely to have significant interest to the public 

 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 

 N/A 
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Housing and Environment Committee, 14 January 2014 

 Rent Arrears – Backgound Information and Update on Current Actions 
 
 Housing and Environment Committee, 11 March 2014 
 Rent Arrears Update 
 
  
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Wendy Carle 
Housing Manager 
wcarle@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Tel 01224489526 

Page 76



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment Committee 
 
DATE  26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Update on the Review of Void Processes 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/050 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED         Yes 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report provides members with updated information on the 
progress of revised practices for the management of void properties 
which were reported to this committee in January 2014 and thereafter 
introduced in February 2014. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
a) It is recommended that committee note the contents of the report, 

the progress made and the associated challenges. 
b) To note the actions already taken. 
c) To approve the proposed improvements as listed under 

Recommendations for Improvement  
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no additional financial implications arising from the 
amendments to working practices detailed within the report which will 
continue to be funded from current budget. However, there may be 
additional costs by engaging external contractors. 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council’s reputation could suffer should performance remain at the 
current level or further decline. In addition, there would be increased 
costs to the Homelessness Service through the increased demand for 
temporary accommodation necessitating the use of Guest House or 
Hotel accommodation.  
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 

Agenda Item 6.3

Page 77



 

 

The Council's performance in the management of void properties had 
substantially improved following an unsatisfactory inspection in 2005. 
The Council's performance at that time showed a Void Rent Loss of 
6.3% with an average relet period of 164 days for non-low demand 
stock and 274 days for low demand stock.  
 
Various improvements were identified and delivered and performance 
increased dramatically in the following years and has been sustained in 
more recent years. Void rent loss being consistently around 1% and 
turnover for all properties consistently around 40 – 50 days. 

 
 Performance dropped towards the end of 2012/13 and continued to 

decline throughout 2013/14. It was difficult to evidence the reasons for 
the downturn from the information being recorded. A revised system for 
the recording and classifying of voids was introduced in February 2014. 
It should be noted that the recording and classifying of voids will not 
improve performance itself but provides the means to identify problem 
areas and for appropriate solutions to be considered. 

 
 The changes introduced classifications of voids based on factors 

affecting turnover. These took account of policy and legislative 
requirements such as requirement to bring properties up to Scottish 
Housing Quality Standard by 31 March 2015, Major Works, Death and 
suitability for properties to meet the needs of clients requiring aids and 
adaptations. 

 
 Since the introduction of the new void classifications, gross voids as a 

% of stock has remained around 2.3%. Average relet times has 
improved from 88.7 days to 78.6 days. Void Rent Loss has remained 
consistent in the region of £130k - £140k per month or around 2% of 
gross debit.  

 
Since the introduction of the new void paths in February 2014, 678 void 
properties have been relet.  An analysis of these lets in terms of the 
number of days taken is as follows: 
 

 

 
Analysis of the paths has identified the following factors impacting on 
performance. 

 
Death Void Path:  

CITYWIDE                 

Void Path  ROUT DETH FAST SHQS VR3 MAJW E&A TOTAL 

Voids Re-let 292 123 4 11 222 14 12 678 

Total Days  14273 12362 84 756 23611 959 1225 53270 

Average Days 48.9 100.5 21.0 68.7 106.4 68.5 102.1 78.6 

Page 78



 

 

The void period and void rent loss commences on the Sunday following 
the death of the tenant. Council policy is to allow a two week clearance 
period to relatives/representatives of the tenant to clear the property 
before returning the keys. Where the relatives/representatives require 
an extended period, a weekly licence fee is charged. 
 
The Council is only able to commence relet/repair works following the 
return of the keys by the relatives/representatives. 
 
The average number of days following termination until the council can 
commence the process is 22.2 days.  
 
Thereafter, the average number of days for repairs to be completed are 
37.6 days and a further 32.8 days to complete the letting process. 

 
 Fast Track Void Path: 
 These voids are identified during the notice period and entry is 

provided by the outgoing tenant and is found to be in good order and 
thereby requiring minimal repairs, eg gas and electric checks. 

 
 Only 4 properties have been let under this path although entry had 

been gained to 63 properties during the notice period. The majority of 
the properties identified did not meet SHQS requirements. 

 
 Major Works Path/SHQS Paths: 
 The average time for repairs to be completed is 56.3 days and 41.3 

days respectively. These properties require additional works to be 
completed before the properties are ready for occupation. SHQS works 
should be consistent whereas Major Works are variable. 

 
 The average time for these properties to be let following completion of 

works is 14.8 and 17.5 days respectively. 
 
 Equipment & Adaptations Path: 
 These properties require the intervention of the Occupational Therapist 

in matching the needs of the prospective tenant with the vacancy 
including identifying any aids and adaptations that may be necessary. 
Furthermore, the amenity standard does not sufficiently meet the 
needs of the vast majority of clients without adaptations. 

   
 
 Routine Void Path: 
 The majority of properties should be classed as routine. The average 

repairs amounted to 32.2 days with the letting process completed in a 
further 12.8 days. 

 
 Void Breakdown as at 28 July 2014 
  
    Tilly/Woodside Mastrick MC City 
 Work in Progress  201    33    35 269 
 Ready for Let (F/Set) 101    40    16 157 
 Off Charge       9    74       7   90  

Page 79



 

 

 Total    516  147    58     516 
 
 The off-charge properties for Mastrick include properties affected by 

the Haudagain and Smithfield Court developments.  
  

Issues identified: 
 
 The analysis has highlighted a number of issues that require to be 

addressed 
 

• The impact of low or no demand voids 

• The number of properties not yet ready for letting due to 
outstanding repairs/improvements. 

• System/processes/communication gaps 
 

Low or No demand voids 
 
A number of properties have been on the voids system for a 

considerable time.  Most of these were void prior to the new system 

being introduced and are still on the “VR3” void path.  The barrier to 

getting these let is lack of demand.  The type of property which 

dominates this list is multi storey sheltered and amenity type housing.   

Sheltered and amenity type property in developments where there is 

lack of demand:   

Development  Size Type Number of 

void flats 

Combined 

number of 

void days at 

30 June 

2014 

Ashgrove Court 2 bedroom Sheltered 5 1386 

Castleton Court 2 bedroom Sheltered 4 1064 

Clifton Court 1 bedroom Sheltered 7 2527 

Donview House 1 bedroom Sheltered 8 2226 

Fullerton Court 1 bedroom Sheltered 5 1186 

Granitehill House 1 bedroom Sheltered 8 2030 

Hamewith* bedsit Sheltered 1 368 

Hilton Court 1 bedroom Sheltered 3 413 

Lord Hay’s Court 1 bedroom Sheltered 11 2198 

Meadow Court 1 bedroom Amenity 6 3388 

Page 80



 

 

Murray Court 1 bedroom Sheltered 1 140 

Seaview House 1 bedroom Amenity 2 931 

Seaton House 1 bedroom  Sheltered 12 4025 

Woodhill Court 2 bedroom Sheltered 6 1813 

 

*There is a high demand for Hamewith but no demand for bedsit type  

The majority of the low or no demand stock lies in those sheltered or 

former sheltered multis. The Housing for Varying Needs review made 

recommendations for the future use of every sheltered housing 

complex and a phased implementation commenced in April 2013. 

Impact of this review is ongoing and a further report to committee will 

be made on progress including any recommended changes by the end 

of this year. 

 The Council previously introduced a policy of adapting all bedsit and 
one bedroom cottages that became vacant to amenity standard. This 
policy was subsequently amended to assess the suitability and viability 
of converting future voids to amenity standard. Adapting one-bedroom 
cottages to amenity standard did not cause any issues other than the 
adaptations required delaying the letting process. Demand exists 
across the city for one-bedroom amenity properties. However, bedsit 
cottages are not as popular and demand is virtually non-existent even 
for high demand areas. Many applicants are moving from larger 
properties and find bedsit accommodation simply too small.  

 
 There were 5 bed-sit amenity cottages void as at 30 June 2014. The 

properties were in Hazlehead (3), Kincorth (1) and Torry (1). Although 
only a relatively small number, the impact on performance is 
significant. The combined void period of those properties amounted to 
1106 days as at 30 June 2014.    

   
 
 
Properties not ready for occupation: 
There has been no significant increase in the number of terminations in 
2013/14 to the previous year yet the number of voids not brought up to 
letting condition has significantly increased. 
 
A target of 70% of voids to be brought up to lettable condition within 3 
weeks was agreed some years ago. Targets have regularly been 
achieved or exceeded. However, performance has deteriorated and 
current performance is around 30% of properties completed within the 
3 week period. 
 
The main factors affecting performance are as follows: 
a) Volume of properties requiring SHQS or Major Works 

Page 81



 

 

b) Poor condition of properties returned by outgoing tenants 

c) Number of properties with sub-standard DIY or alterations 

d) Shortage of trades –  

• Reliance on Agency staff, which is extremely volatile 

• Limited trades available 

• Highly competitive employment market in Aberdeen area. 

e) Coordination of Repairs/Improvements 

f) Managing resources 

• Supervision of trades 

• Ability to prioritise voids 

 

Aids and adaptations process is lengthy and no guarantee that 

prospective tenant will accept property. 

 

Recommendations for improvement 

 

Actions to date: 

 

• Restructure of the Housing Access, Selections and Processing 

had increased the number of selectors available. Selecting for 

vacancies is no longer an issue 

• Increased hours for Agency Staff from out of Aberdeen from 37 

to 41 hours per week 

• Contractor appointed to take on all amenity upgrades and 

rewiring. 

• Specialist squad established to install kitchens under SHQS 

remit. 

• Communications between Housing Management, Repairs and 

Housing Improvements have been improved through a review of 

reports to ensure relevant information is passed between 

sections quickly. This will enhance future understanding of 

barriers or factors affecting performance and allow prospective 

tenants to receive appropriate advice or assistance. 

• Reduction in number of offers prior to deferment or satisfying 

homelessness duty. Success rate of offers has increased from 

50% in 2013 to 67%. 

 

Proposed Improvements (Repairs) 

• Appoint agency staff to permanent posts 

• Explore availability of other contractors 

• Improve supervision of depots by merging Northfield and Hilton 

depots (1 month) 

• Use of mobile technology to log repairs at point of inspection (3 

months) 

Page 82



 

 

• Transfer of Fire, Flood or other exceptional repairs to Response 

Repairs 

• Further improve communications with Housing Management 

regarding sharing of relevant information and prioritising voids 

• Improved coordination of works between void teams, contractors 

and housing improvements. 

 

Proposed Improvements (Other) 

• To instruct officers to re-assess suitability of bed-sit cottages 

previously adapted to amenity standard and where no longer 

viable to return these properties to mainstream stock. Sensitive 

lettings policy should apply. 

• To instruct officers to agree with OT Service on the following: 

a) Streamline assessments to avoid planning and 

development works without tenant commitment 

b) Tenant to demonstrate commitment by accepting 

tenancy prior to adaptations being fitted on the 

understanding that they would not incur liability for 

rent until such time as property was fit for occupation 

c) Level access showers be fitted as standard to 

amenity properties during void period to meet needs 

of this specific client group. 

d) To ensure all information on adaptations is recorded 

on the housing database to identify properties that 

have been adapted, can be adapted and to what 

degree, and those properties that cannot be adapted 

to further streamline process and avoid unnecessary 

delays 

• To approach clients with low priority on the Support List 

regarding the immediate availability of vacancies in low or no 

demand blocks. 

• To approach other agencies and RSLs about immediately 

available low or no demand stock 

 
6. IMPACT 

 
The community plan sets out our vision for the future of the City – an 
even better place to live and work, where people can expect high 
quality services to meet their needs. 
 
This project meets the following objectives: 
 

• Homes challenge – improve the quality of housing and 
environment for individuals and the community 

• Adopt and implement strategies to support independent living for 
people with special needs. 

Page 83



 

 

It also meets the objectives in the policy document “Aberdeen – the 
Smarter City”: 
 

• Smarter living – we will enhance the physical and emotional 
wellbeing of all our citizens by offering support and activities 
which promote independence, resilience, confidence and self 
esteem. 

 
Aberdeen City Waste Strategy – 2010 – 2015 
 

• Reduce, re-use and recycle – the recent changes to the 
clearance of empty property will assist this council to achieve its 
targets by recycling items to the next tenant.  

 
The contents of this report will treat citizens equally in terms of race, 
gender, LGBT, older people and people with disabilities.  
 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

None 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

 None 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Graham Souter 
Housing Manager  
GSouter@aberdeencity.gov.uk  
(01224) 522135 
 
Kiemon Stewart 
Operations Manager 
Kiestewart@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 489365 
 

Page 84



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE  26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Housing for Varying Needs Review – progress 

update 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/059 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to update elected members of the 
progress of the Review of Housing for Varying Needs – A Strategic 
Review of our Sheltered and Very Sheltered Housing. In particular the 
report will update committee of the progress of changes being 
introduced at ten locations where sheltered housing developments are 
progressing toward amenity housing. This change was recommended 
and approved by the Housing and Environment Committee on 15 
January, 2013. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

1. It is recommended that committee note the progress of the 
implementation plan at ten locations previously approved for 
transition from Sheltered to Amenity accommodation 
. 

2. Approve the recommendations to continue with the transition to 
amenity standard for all buildings except Berrymoss Court and 
Parkhill Court. 

3. Approve the amended recommendation for Berrymoss Court 
and Parkhill Court to be assessed as a single unit and returned 
to sheltered housing subject to consultation with the tenants. 
 

4. Note that Meadow Court and Seaview House continue to have 
demand issues and will be included in a future report to 
committee following completion of a review of all remaining 
complexes.   

 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

Agenda Item 6.4

Page 85



 

3.1 Physical changes to buildings will be funded from the housing 
revenue account and an award from the Change Fund for the 
installation of new telecare systems. 

 
3.2 The outcomes of the review are intrinsically linked to the 

proposals put forward within the 5 year Corporate Business Plan 
and the HRA Business Plan.  

 
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

4.1 Any changes to staffing levels, their remits, roles and 
responsibilities will be undertaken in full consultation with staff 
and their Trade Unions. 

 
4.2  Communication with tenants has been ongoing throughout the 

implementation phase with regular updates being provided to 
the Sheltered Housing Network/Forum and updates to the web 
pages of Aberdeen City Council’s site. 

 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
Where committee approval was agreed to change sheltered housing to 
amenity housing at ten locations, current tenants were given the option 
to apply to have their housing support service changed from sheltered 
housing to amenity housing.  Tenants were notified of this at a tenant 
meeting and by letter.   On site staff have completed the assessment 
process with 48 tenants and the housing support service has changed 
in 47 of these cases.  The locations included in this process were: 
 
Development 
Name 

House Type Location Size Amenity 
Assessments 
Approved 

Balmoral 
Court 

Multi storey Holburn 55 2 

Bede House 
Court 

Cottage Old Aberdeen 24 4 

Berrymoss 
Court 

Flatted Dyce 21 0 

Constitution 
Lane* 

Flatted King Street 8 2 

Constitution 
Street* 

Flatted King Street 8 0 

Craigton Park Flatted Mannofield 26 7 

Meadow 
Court 

Multi Storey Tillydrone 55 4 

Parkhill Court Flatted Dyce 20 1 

Regensburg 
Court 

Multi Storey Sheddocksley 55 9 

Seaview 
House 

Multi Storey Seaton 55 12 

South Flatted King Street 24 5 

Page 86



 

Constitution 
Street* 

Thorngrove 
Court 

Cottage Mannofield 12 0 

*Sheltered flats at Constitution Lane/Constitution Street/South 
Constitution Street are supported by on site staff based at Constitution 
Court  
 
Void turnover at these developments have also contributed to the 
implementation of the change to amenity housing in the following way: 
 
Development 
Name 

Size Amenity 
Assessments 
Approved 

Void turnover % of amenity 
tenants 

Balmoral 
Court 

55 flats 2 9 20% 

Bede House 
Court 

24 4 3 29% 

Berrymoss 
Court 

21 0 1 4.5% 

Constitution 
Lane 

8 2 2 50% 

Constitution 
Street 

8 0 0 0% 

Craigton Park 26 7 1 30.5% 

Meadow 
Court 

55 4 14 (9 void) 32.5% 

Parkhill Court 20 1 1 10% 

Regensburg 
Court 

55 9 12  38% 

Seaview 
House 

55 12 10 (2 void) 40% 

South 
Constitution 
Street 

24 5 2 29% 

Thorngrove 
Court* 

12 0 5 41.5% 

*Assessments have not been completed at Thorngrove Court as there 
are no on site staff – this transition will be progressed with telecare 
upgrades at occupied and void property.   
 
Review of Progress, July 2014: 
 
A multi agency review panel met to review the progress of the change 
to amenity housing at the 10 locations.  The review panel includes 
colleagues from Regeneration and Housing Investment, Housing & 
Environment, Social Care and Wellbeing and Bon Accord Care.  

 
The review panel was satisfied that the initial recommendations for the 
following buildings remained appropriate and that continuation of the 
transition to amenity was appropriate; 
Balmoral Court 
Bede House Court 
Constitution Lane/Constitution Street/South Constitution Street 

Page 87



 

Craigton Park 
Regensburg Court 
Thorngrove Court 
 
The review panel was satisfied that the initial recommendation for the 
following buildings needed further review due to continuing issues with 
demand for the properties: 
Meadow Court 
Seaview House 
 
The review panel was satisfied that the initial recommendation for the 
following buildings remained appropriate as they were not financially 
viable due to the low number of units. However, the buildings are in 
close proximity and would be financially viable as sheltered housing if 
jointly assessed. Accordingly, the review panel recommends that these 
buildings be returned to sheltered housing subject to consultation with 
the residents. This will re-instate sheltered housing provision to the 
Dyce area. 
Berrymoss Court 
Parkhill Court 
 
Assessments of each building are attached at Appendix A.  

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
 
The community plan sets out our vision for the future of the City – an 
even better place to live and work, where people can expect high 
quality services to meet their needs. 
 
This project meets the following objectives: 
 

• Homes challenge – improve the quality of housing and 
environment for individuals and the community 

• Adopt and implement strategies to support independent living for 
people with special needs. 

It also meets the objectives in the policy document “Aberdeen – the 
Smarter City”: 
 

• Smarter living – we will enhance the physical and emotional 
wellbeing of all our citizens by offering support and activities 
which promote independence, resilience, confidence and self 
esteem. 

 
Aberdeen City Waste Strategy – 2010 – 2015 
 

• Reduce, re-use and recycle – the recent changes to the 
clearance of empty property will assist this council to achieve its 
targets by recycling items to the next tenant.  

 

Page 88



 

The contents of this report will treat citizens equally in terms of race, 
gender, LGBT, older people and people with disabilities.  
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

None 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
• The Aberdeen City and Aberdeenshire Housing Needs & Demand 

Assessment 2010  
• Housing Statistics for Scotland 2011: Key Trends Summary 2011, 

Scottish Government 
• All our futures - Planning for a Scotland with an ageing population, 

Scottish Government 
• The Reshaping Care for Older People: A Programme for Change 

2011-2021, Scottish Government 
• Age, Home and Community: Strategy for Housing for Scotland’s 

Older People: 2012-2021, Scottish Government  
• The Review of Sheltered Housing in Scotland, York Health 

Economic Consortium (YHEC) on behalf of Scottish Government, 
2008 

• Shifting the Balance of Care, NHS Scotland 
• National Telecare Development Programme Scotland 
• Welfare Reform Act 2012 
 

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 
Graham Souter, Housing Manager, GSouter@aberdeencity.gov.uk, 
Tel: (01224) 522135 

Page 89



 

 
 
Appendix A 
 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 
BALMORAL COURT, HOLBURN STREET, AB10 7GW 

 

OVERVIEW/BACKGROUND 

 
Balmoral Court is a multi storey block built in 1969; the accommodation is 
arranged over nine floors and comprises 54 one bedroom flats and one two 
bedroom flat which was formerly warden accommodation.  The complex 
benefits from a common room with kitchen, laundry, hobby room, library, and 
off street parking.   
 
This development is changing from sheltered housing to amenity housing as 
per the recommendation of the Housing for Varying Needs Review panel in 
2012.  Since this change was introduced, two of the existing sheltered 
housing tenants have changed their housing support to amenity level and nine 
flats have been let as amenity as a result of void turnover.  
 
Demand: 

 
Demand for the complex as amenity housing is excellent for the one bedroom 
vacancies with four applications on the support list with “medium” priority and 
nine on the support list with a “low” priority.  There are three applicants on the 
support list for a two bedroom amenity flat – one has “high” priority and the 
other two have “medium” priority.  There is no challenge in letting this 
development and no void rent loss problem.   
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that this 
development should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 90



 

 

 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 

 
 

BEDE HOUSE COURT, ST MACHAR DRIVE, AB24 1UU 

11, 12, 13, 14 DUNBAR STREET, AB24 3UD 

 

OVERVIEW / BACKGROUND 

 

Bede House Court/Dunbar Street is a low rise complex built in 1963.  The 
total number of units at this complex is 24; 22 one bedroom cottages, one 
bedsit cottage and one two bedroom cottage.  The complex is beautifully kept 
and there are grassed areas around the accommodation.  The property is 
close to public transport links to the city centre and within easy access to 
shops and medical facilities. 
 
This development is changing from sheltered housing to amenity housing as 
per the recommendation of the Housing for Varying Needs Review in 2012.  
Since this change was introduced, four of the existing sheltered housing 
tenants have changed their housing support to amenity level and three 
cottages have been let as amenity housing as a result of void turnover. 
 
Demand: 

 

There are no applicants waiting for a bedsit amenity cottage and there are 52 
applicants waiting to be allocated a one bed amenity flat.  Void rent loss could 
potentially an issue in relation to bedsit amenity cottages but, at this time, no 
such void has been relet. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that this 
development should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91



 

 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 

 
BERRYMOSS COURT, NETHERVIEW AVENUE, DYCE, AB21 7DG 

 

OVERVIEW / BACKGROUND 

 
Berrymoss Court is a small low rise sheltered housing complex built in 1976.  
The complex was refurbished in 2007/08 and all former bedsit property was 
converted to small one bedroom units.  The accommodation is spread 
between three floors.  There are 21 units including 11 one bedroom/two 
person flats, nine one bedroom/one person flats and one three bedroom flat.   
 
This development is changing from sheltered housing to amenity housing as 
per the recommendation of the Housing for Varying Needs Review in 2012.  
Since this change was introduced, none of the current sheltered housing 
tenants have changed their housing support to amenity level and one flat has 
been let as amenity housing as a result of void turnover.    
 

Demand: 

 

Demand for the complex is low with two applicants on the medium priority list 
and seven on the low priority list.  There are no applicants on the urgent 
housing list for this area and house type and no applicants waiting for a three 
bed sheltered flat.  The area and house type: Dyce, amenity flat is used to 
allocate tenants to both developments in Dyce – Parkhill and Berrymoss. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

None of the existing tenants were interested in being assessed for amenity 
housing and there is low demand on the waiting list.  The multi agency review 
panel recommendation is that this development should continue as sheltered 
housing. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW  
 

 

CRAIGTON PARK, CRAIGTON ROAD, MANNOFIELD, AB15 7UF 

 

OVERVIEW / BACKGROUND 

 

Craigton Park is a modern low rise complex built in 1990; the accommodation 
is a cluster of blocks with all accommodation either at ground floor or first floor 
level.  There are 25 one bedroom flats and one two bedroom flat (two of the 
one bedroom flats are located in a cottage building on Craigton Road).  
Twelve of the flats are on the first floor level and fourteen are on the ground 
floor level.  The complex benefits from a common room with kitchen, guest 
accommodation and off street parking.   
 
The recommendation of the HVN Review panel was that this development 
should be let in future as amenity housing.  Since this change was introduced; 
1 flat has been let as amenity housing and seven tenants have been 
assessed as being adequately supported as amenity tenants. 
 
Demand: 

 
There are currently 40+ applications registered for an amenity flat in the 
Mannofield letting area.   
 
Twenty two applications on the one bedroom list have medium priority and the 
remainder have low priority.  There is a healthy waiting list for the two bed 
option with fourteen applications registered. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that this 
development should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



 

 

 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW  
 

 

MEADOW COURT, AUCHINLECK ROAD, TILLYDRONE, AB24 2YX 

 

OVERVIEW - BACKGROUND 

 

Meadow Court is a multi storey block constructed in 1971; it is arranged over 
nine floors and has 55 flats (54 one bedroom, one two bedroom).  The block 
benefits from a common room, laundry and off street parking.  The block is 
located in a pleasant area close to the River Don.  There are flower pots and 
seating areas outside the building.  
 
The recommendation of the HVN Review panel was that this development 
should be let in future as amenity housing.  Since this change was introduced; 
fourteen void flats have been/will be let as amenity housing and 4 tenants 
have been assessed as being adequately supported as amenity tenants. 
 
Demand: 

 

There are no applicants registered for a multi storey amenity flat and there are 
currently 7 long term void flats at this development.  The Housing Advice 
Service is currently contacting applicants on other housing lists to ascertain if 
these applicants would be interested in being considered for Meadow Court.  
 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The decision of the multi agency review panel is that the implementation of 
amenity housing at this development should continue at this time.  The 
challenges facing officers in letting Meadow Court will be reported to this 
committee in December 2014. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



 

 
 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 

PARKHILL COURT, BALLOCH WAY, DYCE AB21 7HF 
 

OVERVIEW - BACKGROUND 
 

Parkhill Court is a low rise sheltered housing complex built in 1976.  The 
complex was refurbished in 2009/10 and all former bedsit property was 
converted to small one bedroom units.  There are 20 flats including 9 one 
bedroom/two person flats, 9 one bedroom/one person flats and 2 two 
bedroom flats.    
 
This development is changing from sheltered housing to amenity housing as 
per the recommendation of the Housing for Varying Needs Review in 2012.  
Since this change was introduced, one of the current sheltered housing 
tenants have changed their housing support to amenity level and one flat has 
been let as amenity as a result of void turnover.    
 
Demand: 

 

Demand for the complex is low with two applicants on the medium priority list 
and seven on the low priority list.  There are no applicants on the urgent 
housing list for this area and house type and no applicants waiting for a three 
bed sheltered flat.  The area and house type: Dyce, amenity flat is used to 
allocate tenants to both developments in Dyce – Parkhill and Berrymoss. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

Only one of the existing tenants has been assessed for amenity housing and 
there is low demand on the waiting list.  The multi agency review panel 
recommendation is that this development should continue as sheltered 
housing. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



 

 

 

 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 

REGENSBURG COURT, SPRINGHILL ROAD, ABERDEEN 

 

OVERVIEW - BACKGROUND 

 

Regensburg Court  is a multi storey block built in 1968, it is arranged over 
nine floors and has 54 one bedroom flats and one two bedroom flat which is 
former warden accommodation.  The block has a common room, laundry, 
guest accommodation and off street parking.  The block is conveniently 
located close to public transport, shops and medical facilities. 
 
The recommendation of the HVN Review panel was that this development 
should be let in future as amenity housing.  Since this change was introduced; 
twelve void flats have been let as amenity housing and 9 tenants have been 
assessed as being adequately supported as amenity tenants. 
 
Demand: 

 

Demand for this development is adequate with two applicants on the medium 
support list and 2 on the low support list.  There has always been an adequate 
supply of tenants waiting to be allocated this development and there is no 
issue with void rent loss. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that this 
development should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



 

 
 
 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 
 

SEAVIEW HOUSE, SEATON CRESCENT, SEATON, ABERDEEN 

 

OVERVIEW / BACKGROUND 

 

Seaview House is a multi storey block constructed in 1973; the 55 flats are 
arranged over nine floors.  There are 54 one bedroom flats and one two 
bedroom flat which was formerly warden accommodation.  The block benefits 
from a common room with kitchen, laundry and off street parking.  Some flats 
in the block have added desirability based on their view of the sea, the city or 
Pittodrie Stadium. 
 
The recommendation of the HVN Review panel in 2012 was that this 
development should be let as amenity housing.  Since this change was 
introduced; ten void flats have/will be let as amenity housing and twelve 
tenants have been assessed as being adequately supported as amenity 
tenants. 
 
Demand: 

 

Demand for this development is poor and there has been an issue with long 
term voids and void rent loss. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The decision of the multi agency review panel is that the implementation of 
amenity housing at this development should continue at this time.  The 
challenges facing officers in letting Seaview House and the neighbouring 
buildings at Donview House, Seaton House and Lord Hay’s Court will be 
reported to this committee in December 2014. 
 
 

Page 97



 

 
 
 
 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW – JULY 2014 

 

 
SOUTH CONSTITUTION STREET, AB24 5HA 

 

 

 
 

CONSTITUTION LANE & CONSTITUTION STREET 

 

OVERVIEW/BACKGROUND 

 

South Constitution Street is a modern low rise complex built in 1985; the 
accommodation is a cluster of blocks with 21 one bedroom flats and 4 two 
bedroom flats.  Two further blocks at Constitution Lane and Constitution 
Street provide a further sixteen flats.  The accommodation is either at ground 
floor or first floor level with no lift access.  This accommodation is linked to 
Constitution Court and tenants at these satellite blocks can take part in social 
events at the residents lounge.  
 
Of the forty flats at this location, twenty nine tenants remain as sheltered and 
eleven are amenity tenants. 
 
Demand: 

 

Demand for this type of property is good for both one and two bedroom 
options.  There are seventeen applicants on the support list for one bed and 
nine for the two bed option.   
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that these 
developments should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  

Page 98



 

 
 
 

SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                   Cottages 1 – 5                                    Showing Thorngrove House 
 
 

THORNGROVE COURT, GREAT WESTERN ROAD, AB10 6NQ 

 

 

OVERVIEW/BACKGROUND 

 
Thorngrove Court  is a cluster of 12 one bedroom cottages built in 1964. It is 
located within a peaceful walled compound between Countesswells Road and 
Thorngrove Avenue.  Tenants have access to a central garden where 
benches are located. 
 
The cottages were linked to Thorngrove Home but this building was sold by 
the Council in 2002/2003 and has been developed as a private facility for 
elderly residents providing 55 flats.   
 
A daily welfare check is provided by staff based at Craigielea which is located 
close by.  In future, a telecare solution will be introduced to support welfare 
checks and tenants who require personal will care will continue to receive this. 
 
Demand: 

 

There is an excellent demand amenity type cottage in the Mannofield letting 
area.  There are 3 applicants registered with high priority, fifty two applicants 
with medium priority and forty nine with low priority. 
 
REVIEW JULY 2014 

 

The recommendation of the multi agency review panel is that this 
development should continue to be changed to amenity housing.  
 
 

  

Page 99



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 100



 

 1

 
 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE   HOUSING AND ENVIRONMENT   
  
DATE     26 AUGUST 2014  
 
DIRECTOR    PETE LEONARD  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  POLICY AMENDMENTS – HAUDAGAIN 

IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 
 

REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/053 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
This report provides members with information on proposals to ensure the 
timeous re-housing of tenants whose homes will be affected by the Haudagain 
Improvement Scheme. This includes changes to our allocation policy, 
clarification on rent management and details on Homeloss and Disturbance 
payments.  
 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
 That committee approves the following:- 
 

• The provision of payments equivalent to a Home Loss Payment 
and Disturbance Payments to tenants whose homes are 
required for the Haudagain Improvement Scheme when they 
move with immediate effect.  

 

• In order to alleviate the issues around mixing of sexes and 
further future rehousing it is proposed that where mixing of 
sexes occurs we would offer the household larger 
accommodation if the eldest child has reached the age of 5.  

 

• “Grants in the first instance to the Director of Housing and 
Environment and subsequently the Head of Service for Housing 
and Community Safety delegated powers to provide tenants 
whose homes are required for the Haudagain Improvement 
Scheme an appropriate level of priority within the housing lists 
and flexibility in terms of areas of choice, house sizes and 
number of offers.”      

  

Agenda Item 6.5

Page 101



 

 2

• Notes that with immediate effect, all void properties across the 
city will initially be offered to appropriate tenants whose homes 
are being acquired for the Haudagain Improvement Scheme. 

 

• All affected applicants will be placed on the Urgent List and 
provided withy the highest priority and further prioritized by the 
length of their current tenancy.  

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The payment of £1,500 as an equivalent to a Home Loss Payment 
(HLP) when tenants move will cost the Housing Revenue Account in 
the region of £174,000 for the 116 Tenancies currently required. This 
figure is approximate and may change when the final design is 
completed. 
 
In terms of Disturbance Payments (DP), we have been advised by 
Asset Policy that it would be prudent to budget for an amount of £3,000 
per property giving a total of £348,000 for the 116 tenancies. However 
it is anticipated that some re-housing of tenants should come in below 
this figure. The total figure is approximate and may change when the 
final design is completed. 
 
It should be noted that other properties in close vicinity of the proposed 
road scheme may need to be decanted since they will require structural 
repairs due to the phased demolition of adjacent properties as part of 
the Improvement Scheme.  
 
It is estimated that the total expenditure for the HLP and the DP will be 
in the region of £552,000 spread over a period of 3 years. 
 
The budget for the Home Loss Payment and the Disturbance Payment 
will be borne by the Housing Revenue Account and will be included in 
the budget process for 2015/16 onwards.  
 
Officers will engage with the Scottish Government to establish if the 
Council can receive financial compensation for the home loss and 
disturbance payments which will be made in advance of the CPO 
process.  

  
 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The approval of the Delegated Power will provide officers with the 
flexibility to assist the transfer of tenants to alternative accommodation 
in order to provide vacant possession of our properties to make way for 
the construction of the relief road and the development of the 
regeneration areas.  
 

Page 102



 

 3

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
The proposed Haudagain Improvement Scheme is aimed at easing the 
congestion at the Haudagain Roundabout and will result in the 
acquisition of around 132 council properties and a number in private 
ownership by the Scottish Government. However this may change as 
the design is finalised.   
 
The current status for the 132 properties identified so far for acquisition 
is:-   
 

• Void   -  3 

• Temporary H’less -  13 

• Tenanted  -  116   
 
To date 86 tenanted households have been contacted in order to 
provide them with information and to document their household details 
and family composition in order to provide advice on re- housing 
options. These discussions will provide an understanding of their 
rehousing needs. Where tenants wish to remain in the area every effort 
will be made to provide for this, where tenants want to move further 
afield to reflect their family, employment or other requirements we will 
look to assist. 
 
It is important that the council re-houses the tenants in a timeous and 
orderly manner in line with the programme timescales so as to 
minimize disruption to the tenants. It is also vital that the council 
provide vacant possession of its properties in the affected site when the 
Scottish Government Compulsory Purchases the land from the council. 
This will ensure that we maximize the compensation we receive for the 
properties so it can be re invested in housing services/projects for the 
benefit of our tenants.  
 
Home loss and Disturbance Payments 
 
Under the Land Compensation Act, 1973 and the Housing (Scotland) 
Act 1987, social landlords are obliged to make Home Loss and 
Disturbance Payments to tenants if they are to be displaced due to 
demolition or other redevelopment proposals affecting their home.  
 
Home Loss Payments - are a fixed amount, this is currently £1,500 
per property and paid if a tenant is forced to move out of their home for 
example, because the landlord has bought it to demolish it or another 
government body requires the land for as in this case a road 
development scheme.  
 
However in this particular case we are looking to rehouse tenants in 
advance of the Scottish Government purchasing the land from the 
council by way of a Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO. We need to 

Page 103



 

 4

provide the Scottish Government with vacant possession of the land for 
the CPO process so that the council can maximise the compensation it 
receives. It will therefore be essential for the council to make payments 
equivalent to a Home Loss Payment with immediate effect, to tenants 
ahead of the statutory process in order to assist the process of re-
housing the tenants. The council would automatically be required to 
pay a Home Loss Payment to a tenant moved by the council on the 
grounds that the house is to be demolished once a CPO process 
commences.  
 
 
Disturbance payments - are made if you have to vacate your home 
on a permanent basis or for a temporary period. They will meet the 
reasonable costs of providing moving expenses  
 
The following expenses will generally be covered by a Disturbance 
Payment: Officers will be available to provide help and assistance to 
tenants who are not able to manage the move by themselves. 
 
• Cost of removal by a removal company 
• Alternatively, cost of self drive hire and petrol (within the limits of 
option one). 
• Disconnection and reconnection of white goods.  
• Telephone disconnection and reconnection charges. 
• Redirection of mail. 
• Cost of carpets and curtains including fitting or altering tenants 
carpets and curtains  
 
Allocations 
 
Our current allocation policy provides various levels of priority 
depending on an applicant’s circumstances, even those who have 
some degree of priority are still waiting a considerable time to be 
rehoused due to the demand for council housing.       
 
All the households whose homes will be affected by demolition will 
need to be re-housed by a given date circa late 2016; however some of 
the households may wish to move immediately, while others may have 
some commitments or personal reasons which may mean they wish to 
delay for a period, their transfer to another council house. 
 
Due to the large numbers of potential transfers involved and the 
relatively small numbers of properties available each month for relet it 
will be imperative to start the process of rehousing the tenants as soon 
as possible. 
 
In order to achieve this in an orderly and timeous manner and having 
regard for individual circumstances of each of the tenants it will be 
necessary to provide these tenants with an appropriate level of priority 

Page 104



 

 5

within our housing lists and to provide a degree of flexibility in terms of 
areas of choice and number of offers.   
 
In order to lessen the impact of re-housing so many households, the 
council is currently not re-letting any properties which become vacant 
within the area to be acquired for the road scheme; this action was 
approved by this committee at its meeting on the 14th June 2013.  
 
It will be necessary to contact all the residents on an individual basis to 
discuss their housing needs and advise them of their housing options 
including re-housing by the council. This process will take some time 
and will need to be conducted with sensitivity and understanding.  
 
The families whose homes are required by the Haudagain 
Improvement Scheme will have individual aspirations and timescales 
relating to the most suitable time for them to move and it would be 
appropriate that senior officers have the necessary delegated powers 
in place to enable them to assist the affected tenants in a flexible way.    
 
It is therefore proposed that the following Delegated Power is approved 
by this committee:- 
 
“Grants in the first instance to the Director of Housing and Environment 
and subsequently the Head of Service for Housing and Community 
Safety delegated powers to provide tenants whose homes are required 
to make way for the Haudagain Improvement Scheme an appropriate 
level of priority within the housing lists and flexibility in terms of areas of 
choice, house sizes and number of offers.”      
 
Mixing of sexes 
 
In addition it will be appropriate to relax the criteria on mixing of sexes, 
our current policy states that  
 
“One bedroom each is required for a child under eight years of age and 
a child over eight years of age of different sexes, where they cannot 
share with any other child of the family” 
 
The rule highlighted means that if a household has for example a 
Parent(s) and two children a boy aged 5 or less and a girl aged 7 or 
less, they would be entitled to a property with 2 bedrooms, however 
when the girl reaches 8 they would be entitled to a 3 bedroom property. 

There may be some households whose homes are to be acquired as 
part of the Haudagain Improvement Scheme who may fall into this 
category. If we follow the current policy we would provide them with a 2 
bedroom property. However within a short period of time the household 
could apply for a larger property under the bedroom size rules. In order 
to provide this household with larger accommodation they would be 

Page 105



 

 6

required to complete an application and wait on the transfer list until a 
suitable offer was made, this could take many months or years.  

During this period the children would be getting older and the mixing of 
sexes in the same bedroom could pose issues whilst they wait for an 
allocation of a larger property. There would also be the additional 
resources required by the household in moving again e.g. carpets and 
curtains. 

In order to alleviate these issues it is proposed that where mixing of 
sexes occurs we would offer re-housing to the household to larger 
accommodation if the eldest child has reached the age of 5.  
 
The tenants who fall into this category would be informed of the 
current occupation rules of the Welfare Reform age qualification which 
states that the eldest child must be 10 years of age to qualify for a 
separate bedroom. If the tenants are on housing benefit and of 
working age their entitlement to such benefits may be reduced, the 
tenant would then need to make the choice on whether to accept or 
reject the offer of a larger property.  
 

 

Two Households 

During individual meetings with tenants, it has become apparent that 
the household composition for some tenancies has changed over time. 
Some have reduced because children have left home; some however 
have seen an increase in the occupants e.g. extra family members 
such as parents coming to stay. If we have properties where tenants 
have moved their family in over time, we would have to take any 
members of the family into account when moving the tenant.  
 
However this does not place an obligation on us to offer 
accommodation that exceeds the capacity of the property which they 
currently occupy unless this is due to new members of the household 
such as new children. We may however at our discretion offer a larger 
property but we are not obliged to do so. Similarly we would not have to 
rehouse any family members in their own separate accommodation. If 
they wanted to go down that route they would have to apply for housing 
in their own right. Housing options advice would be provided to the 
occupants in order for them to secure alternative accommodation.  
 
 
 
Priority 
 
In order to re-house the affected tenants timeously it is proposed to 
place them on the Urgent housing list and provide them all with the 
highest priority available. It is also proposed that applicants will be 

Page 106



 

 7

further prioritised by the length of time they have been tenants in their 
current homes.  
 

Rent Management 

 
Tenants who are in or may get into rent arrears during the re-housing 
phase will be treated in the same way as all other tenants and in line 
with our current Rent Management Policy. It may therefore be 
necessary for tenants who have a decree against them for rent arrears 
or other housing debts to use the homeloss payment to offset the 
outstanding amounts. Tenants who do not have a decree against them 
may also use some or all of their Home Loss Payment to settle any 
outstanding debts to the council which may include current/former 
arrears, legal expenses or re-charges. There may be some tenants 
who may still have large outstanding balances even after the whole 
Home Loss Payment has been used to pay for arrears. However 
tenants should still have in place a suitable repayment arrangement in 
line with current policy.   
 

6. IMPACT 
 
 Public Interest 
 

This report is likely to be of interest to the public in general and in 
particular to those who live in and around the Middlefield area. 
 
Councillors and other decision-makers must actively consider the 
general equality duty when deciding whether to approve a new or 
revised policy or practice.  Assessing impact is an important part of 
this, as reinforced by recent court cases, which have found that the 
duty to assess impact is mandatory and it must be fulfilled prior to 
taking the decision on the function or policy in question.  The duty 
cannot be delegated – it must be considered by the person or persons 
with the ultimate responsibility for the policy or the service and for the 
decision to implement the policy.  
 
During the re-housing process tenants whose homes are being 
acquired will receive the highest priority under our allocations policy. 
This may result in others on our housing list being bypassed for certain 
allocations  

 

 
 

The community plan sets out our vision for the future of the city.-an 
even better place to live and work, where people can expect high 
quality services to meet their needs. 
 
This proposal meets the following objectives 
 

Page 107



 

 8

• Homes Challenge – Improve the quality of housing and 
environment for individuals and the community. 

 
 It also meets the objectives in the policy document Aberdeen – the 
 Smarter City 
 

• Smarter Living - We will enhance the physical and emotional 
wellbeing of all our citizens by offering support and activities 
which promote independence, resilience, confidence and self 
esteem. 

.  
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

If we do not adopt the recommendations outlined in this report there is 
a risk that we will not be in a position to provide vacant possession of 
the site to the Scottish Government and thereby reduce the 
compensation we would receive from the Compulsory Purchase Order 
process.  
 
The recommendations also provide the policy framework which will 
help the affected tenants to be re-housed in a timeous and stress free 
manner. 
 
 

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 Allocation policy 
  
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS  

 
Kevin Kelly 
Housing Policy Development Officer 
Tel – 523947 
E-mail – kkelly@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 108



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
 

 E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 F

o
rm

     
 

A
b

e
r

d
e

e
n

 
C

i
t

y
 
C

o
u

n
c

i
l

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 F

o
rm

 

A
b

e
r

d
e

e
n

 
C

i
t

y
 
C

o
u

n
c

i
l
     

E
H

R
IA

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 t

h
is

 f
o
rm

 

“E
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
le

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 a

s
 y

o
u
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 f
o
rm

. 
 

T
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 f
o
rm

, 
th

e
 w

o
rd

 “
p
ro

p
o
s
a
l

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
la

n
, 
p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

, 
re

p
o
rt

 o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e

e
m

b
ra

c
e
s
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

a
s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g

. 
P

le
a
s
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 “

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

T
e
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
” 

a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

. 

 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
t 

Im
p

a
ct

 

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 s
e
p
a
ra

te
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o
m

p
a
n
y
 t

h
is

 f
o
rm

 –
 

“E
q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 I
m

p
a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

–
 t

h
e
 G

u
id

e
.”

  

P
le

a
s
e
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 a

s
 y

o
u
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
is

 f
o
rm

. 
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l”
 r

e
fe

rs
 t
o
 p

o
lic

y
, 

o
c
e
d
u
re

, 
re

p
o
rt

 o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
. 
T

h
is

 t
h
e
n
, 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 s

e
tt
in

g
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

, 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 

. 
P

le
a
s
e
 a

ls
o
 r

e
fe

r 
to

 t
h
e
 “

C
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
o
rm

. 
 

Page 109



P
a

g
e

 |
 2

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  

 
1

:E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t-

 E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
  

 
N

a
m

e
 o

f 
P

ro
p

o
s
a
l:

 
 P

o
lic

y
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 –
 H

a
u
d
a
g
a
in

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 

  

D
a
te

 o
f 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t:
  

 0
9
/0

7
/2

0
1
4
 

 

S
e
rv

ic
e
: 

 
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

: 
 

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 N

a
m

e
(W

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

):
 

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

 

D
a
te

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
(W

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

):
 

 2
6
/0

8
/2

0
1
4
 

 W
h

o
 d

o
e
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

a
ff

e
c
t?

  
 

 P
le

a
s
e
 T

ic
k
 �

 
 

  
E

m
p
lo

y
e
e
s
  
  

  J
o
b
 A

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
  S

e
rv

ic
e
 U

s
e
rs

  
  
 

 
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 P

u
b
lic

  
 

�
 

 �
 

 

Page 110



P
a

g
e

 |
 3

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

  O
th

e
r 

(L
is

t 
b
e
lo

w
) 

 
  

 
2

: 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t-
 P

re
-s

c
re

e
n

in
g

 
 

 Is
 a

n
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
re

q
u

ir
e
d

?
 

  

 Y
e

s 
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

N
o

 

 If
 N

o
, 
w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

is
 d

e
c
is

io
n

?
 

(O
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 8

 o
f 
th

e
 

fo
rm

).
 

    N
A

 

              

 

�
 

 

Page 111



P
a

g
e

 |
 4

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

   

3
: 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

  a
- 

W
h

a
t 

a
re

 t
h

e
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 
in

te
n

d
e
d

 e
ff

e
c
ts

 o
f 

th
is

 
p

ro
p

o
s
a
l?

 
    

T
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
is

 t
o
 a

m
e
n
t 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
p
o
lic

y
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 t
im

e
o
u
s
ly

 
a
n
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 
d
is

ru
p
ti
o
n
, 
re

-h
o
u
s
e
 a

ll 
th

e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 w
h
o
s
e
 h

o
m

e
s
 

a
re

 b
e
in

g
 a

c
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 H

a
u
d
a
g
a
in

 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
. 
 

 

 b
- 

W
h

a
t 

e
q

u
a
li
ty

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 

a
v
a
il

a
b

le
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

th
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l?

  
 

 (P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 

n
o
te

s
) 

       

 W
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 h

o
ld

 s
o
m

e
 d

a
ta

 o
n
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 h

e
a
d
in

g
s
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 

a
m

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
d
a
ta

 w
e
 c

a
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
 d

e
p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
t 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

h
is

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
. 
 

 S
e
x
 -

 6
3
 F

e
m

a
le

, 
5
3
 M

a
le

 
A

g
e
 –

 T
B

A
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 –

 N
o
n
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
lit

y
 –

 2
1
 U

K
, 

3
1
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
, 

1
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 

1
 N

/I
re

la
n
d
, 
2
1
 E

a
s
te

rn
 

E
u
ro

p
e
, 
 

E
th

n
ic

 O
ri
g
in

 –
 4

0
 W

h
it
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
, 
5
 W

h
it
e
 O

th
e
r 

B
ri
ti
s
h
, 

6
0
 W

h
it
e
 O

th
e
r,

 1
 

B
a
c
k
, 
1
 A

s
ia

n
, 
 

R
e
lig

io
n
 –

 8
 C

h
ri
s
ti
a
n
 

  

Page 112



P
a

g
e

 |
 5

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 

  
 c
- 

L
is

t 
th

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 

fr
o

m
 a

n
y
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a
ti

o
n

 
th

a
t 

re
la

te
 t

o
 e

q
u

a
li

ti
e
s
 

a
n

d
/o

r 
h

u
m

a
n

 r
ig

h
ts

 
is

s
u

e
s
 e

.g
. 
w

it
h

 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

u
s
e
rs

, 
U

n
io

n
s
 o

r 
m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 

th
a
t 

h
a
s
 t

a
k
e
n

 p
la

c
e
 i

n
 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l.

  
 

 T
h

e
re

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

ro
p

-i
n

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

a
t 

th
e

 L
o

ca
l 

A
re

a
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 o

ff
ic

e
 

o
v

e
r 

th
e

 p
a

st
 6

 m
o

n
th

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s 
th

e
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 S

co
tl

a
n

d
 f

o
rm

a
l 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

  T
h

e
re

 h
a

s 
a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
h

o
u

se
 v

is
it

s 
b

y
 

th
e

 l
o

ca
l 

a
re

a
 t

e
a

m
, 

th
is

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

d
u

ct
e

d
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 t
h

e
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
cu

st
o

m
e

r 

se
rv

ic
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

. 

 T
h

e
 d

ro
p

-i
n

 s
e

ss
io

n
s 

h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
 w

it
h

 d
e

ta
il

s 
a

n
d

 

ti
m

e
sc

a
le

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

cq
u

is
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s.
 T

h
e

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

s 
w

it
h

 

te
n

a
n

ts
 h

a
v

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

 t
o

 g
a

th
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 R
e

- 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v

ic
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
-a

ss
u

ra
n

ce
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

. 

T
e

n
a

n
ts

 a
re

 o
b

v
io

u
sl

y
 a

n
xi

o
u

s 
a

n
d

 s
e

e
k

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 r
e

a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

 

a
b

o
u

t 
re

 h
o

u
si

n
g

. 
 

 

 d
- 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
A

s
s
e
s

s
m

e
n

t 

 If
 a

p
p
lic

a
b
le

, 
s
ta

te
 a

n
y
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 

c
o
s
t 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

o
r 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l.
  

 

 C
o

s
ts

 (
£
) 

 
  I

m
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 c

o
st

   
   

£
  

 £
1

7
4

,0
0

0
 H

o
m

e
le

ss
 P

a
y

m
e

n
t 

+
£

3
4

8
,0

0
0

  
  

   
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

  
  

   
   

  
   

   
  

   

D
is

tu
rb

a
n

ce
 P

a
y

m
e

n
ts

 

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
 P

ro
je

c
te

d
 S

a
v
in

g
s
  
  
  
  
  

 
£
  
 N

o
n
e
  
 

Page 113



P
a

g
e

 |
 6

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 e
- 

H
o

w
 d

o
e
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 s

e
c
to

r 
e
q

u
a
li
ty

 d
u

ty
: 

to
 e

li
m

in
a
te

 

d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

, 
h

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 v

ic
ti

m
is

a
ti

o
n

; 
a
d

v
a
n

c
e
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
; 

a
n

d
 f

o
s
te

r 
g

o
o

d
 

re
la

ti
o

n
s
?

 

 In
 p

ro
ce

e
d

in
g

 w
it

h
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
b

e
 p

o
si

ti
v

e
, 

fl
e

xi
b

le
 a

n
d

 p
ro

a
ct

iv
e

 i
n

 f
in

d
in

g
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v

e
 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

a
ll

 a
ff

e
ct

e
d

 t
e

n
a

n
ts

. 
S

p
e

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 w

h
e

n
 r

e
h

o
u

si
n

g
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 

d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s 

a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
ie

s 
w

it
h

 s
ch

o
o

l 
ch

il
d

re
n

 e
n

su
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

e
d

s 
a

re
 a

ss
e

ss
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
d

e
q

u
a

te
ly

 c
a

te
re

d
 f

o
r.

  

 T
h

e
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
il

l 
e

n
d

e
a

v
o

u
r 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 l

o
ca

ti
o

n
 d

e
si

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 a

ff
e

ct
e

d
 

te
n

a
n

ts
 b

e
a

ri
n

g
 i

n
 m

in
d

 t
h

e
 a

v
a

il
a

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

su
it

a
b

le
 p

ro
p

e
rt

y
. 

 

  f-
 H

o
w

 d
o

e
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 
li

n
k
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 E

q
u

a
li
ty

 O
u

tc
o

m
e
s
?

 

W
it

h
 a

 g
o

o
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
fu

l 
n

e
e

d
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
m

a
y

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

s:
 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 f
e

e
l 

sa
fe

 in
 t

h
e

ir
 h

o
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 i

n
 a

 c
it

y
 t

h
a

t 
is

 f
a

m
il

y
 f

ri
e

n
d

ly
 b

y
 n

ig
h

t 
(p

ri
m

a
ri

ly
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

tt
le

d
 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 a

n
d

 p
e

rh
a

p
s 

fo
r 

G
y

p
sy

/ 
T

ra
v

e
ll

e
rs

, 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
ll

o
w

. 

  A
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
m

e
e

ts
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s,
 c

u
lt

u
re

 a
n

d
 l

if
e

st
y

le
 o

f 
G

y
p

sy
/T

ra
v

e
ll

e
r)

 s
 n

o
rm

a
ll

y
 r

e
si

d
e

n
t 

in
, 

a
n

d
 

v
is

it
in

g
, 

th
e

 c
it

y
 o

f 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

. 
  

 

Page 114



P
a

g
e

 |
 7

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 R
e

d
u

ce
d

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 i
n

 e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

tt
a

in
m

e
n

t 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

u
p

il
s.

 

P
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 c
h

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 s
o

ci
a

l 
ca

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

m
e

t.
  

 

E
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

s.
 

4
: 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

- 
T

e
s

t 
 W

h
a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

w
il
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

h
a
v
e
 o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 A

c
t 

2
0
1
0
 ?

 

P
ro

te
c
te

d
  

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
: 

 

N
e
u

tr
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
n

d
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
, 
ju

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 
w

h
e
re

 a
 ‘
G

e
n

u
in

e
 D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 R
e
a
s
o

n
’*

 e
x
is

ts
  

*(
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t
e
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
) 

A
g

e
 (

P
e
o
p
le

 o
f 
a
ll 

a
g
e
s
) 

 
 

 
 

�
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 v

e
ry

 y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 o

r 
e
ld

e
rl
y
 f

a
m

ily
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 m
y
 f

in
d
 m

a
n
a
g
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 o

r 
w

o
rr

ie
d
 

a
b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
  

 
(M

e
n
ta

l,
 P

h
y
s
ic

a
l,
 

S
e
n
s
o
ry

 a
n
d
 C

a
re

rs
 o

f 
D

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

) 
  

 

 
 

�
 

P
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 m

a
y
 n

o
t 
b
e
 i
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
io

n
 t

o
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
m

o
v
in

g
 h

o
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 o

r 
w

o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 n

e
e
d
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

G
e
n

d
e
r 

R
e
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
 

�
 

 
 

 

M
a
ri

ta
l 
S

ta
tu

s
 

(M
a
rr

ia
g
e
 a

n
d
 C

iv
il 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
) 

 
 

�
 

 
 

 

Page 115



P
a

g
e

 |
 8

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

  P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
M

a
te

rn
it

y
  

   

    

 
�

 
P

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
o
r 

w
it
h
 s

m
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 

b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 

re
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 

a
s
 s

tr
e
s
s
 f
re

e
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

e
d
 o

r 
w

o
rr

ie
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
ir
 

n
e
e
d
s
 n

o
t 
b
e
in

g
 m

e
t 

A
ls

o
 a

d
d
 a

b
o
u
t 
w

o
rr

ie
s
 o

f 
n
e
e
d
s
 

n
o
t 

m
e
t 

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 I
m

p
a

c
t 

A
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

T
e

s
t:

 
 W

h
a
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

w
il
l 
im

p
le

m
e
n

ti
n

g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

h
a
v
e
 o

n
 e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 
c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 A

c
t 

2
0
1
0
 ?

  

P
ro

te
c
te

d
  

C
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
: 

 

N
e
u

tr
a
l 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

P
o

s
it

iv
e
 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 

Im
p

a
c
t:

 

P
le

a
s
e
 √

 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
n

d
 i
f 

a
p

p
li
c
a
b

le
, 
ju

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 
w

h
e
re

 a
 ‘
G

e
n

u
in

e
 D

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 R
e
a
s
o

n
’*

 e
x
is

ts
  

*(
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 t
e
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
) 

R
a
c
e
  

(A
ll 

R
a
c
ia

l 
G

ro
u
p
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

G
y
p
s
y
/T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
) 

  
 

 
 

�
 

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 f
ir
s
t 
la

n
g
u
a
g
e
 i
s
 n

o
t 
E

n
g
lis

h
 m

a
y
 h

a
v
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 
 

R
e
li

g
io

n
 o

r 
B

e
li

e
f 

o
r 

N
o

n
-b

e
li

e
f 

  

�
 

 
 

 

S
e
x
 

(W
o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
) 

 
 

�
 

 
 

 

S
e
x
u

a
l 
O

ri
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

  
 

�
 

 
 

 

Page 116



P
a

g
e

 |
 9

E
q

u
a

li
ty

 a
n

d
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 I
m

p
a

ct
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
 1

8
/0

2
/1

4
  

 (H
e
te

ro
s
e
x
u
a
l,
 L

e
s
b
ia

n
, 

G
a
y
 A

n
d
 B

is
e
x
u
a
l)
 

 O
th

e
r 

 
(e

.g
.:
 P

o
v
e
rt

y
) 

 

�
 

 
 

 

 

5
: 

H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
c

t 
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t 
T

e
s

t 

 D
o

e
s
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
l 

h
a
v
e
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

to
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
n

 a
n

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l’
s
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

?
  
E

v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
n

d
 ,

 i
f 

a
p

p
li

c
a
b

le
, 
ju

s
ti

fi
c
a
ti

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

is
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

a
te

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 2
 o

f 
p

ro
to

c
o

l 
1
: 

R
ig

h
t 

to
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

  

 A
rt

ic
le

 3
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

n
o

t 
to

 b
e
 s

u
b

je
c
te

d
 t

o
 t

o
rt

u
re

, 
in

h
u

m
a
n

e
 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

 
X

 

 
X

 

Page 117



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

0
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 o
r 

d
e
g

ra
d

in
g

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o

r 
p

u
n

is
h

m
e
n

t 
E

v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 6
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 a

 f
a
ir

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

li
c
 h

e
a
ri

n
g

 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 8
: 

 R
ig

h
t 

to
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 

fo
r 

p
ri

v
a
te

 a
n

d
 f

a
m

il
y
 l

if
e
, 

h
o

m
e
 a

n
d

 c
o

rr
e
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

c
e

 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
0
: 

F
re

e
d

o
m

 o
f 

e
x
p

re
s
s
io

n
 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

 

 A
rt

ic
le

 1
4
: 

R
ig

h
t 

n
o

t 
to

 b
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 d

is
c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

  

X
 X

 

 
X

 

 
X

 

Page 118



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

1
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

6
: 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

a
ti

n
g

: 

 
 P

le
a
s
e
 r

a
te

 t
h

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 e

q
u

a
li
ty

 
a
n

d
 h

u
m

a
n

 r
ig

h
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
(P

le
a
s
e
 s

e
e
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

te
rm

in
o
lo

g
y
) 

  

 

R
e
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
a
t 

ra
ti

n
g

: 
     

 It
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
e
x
is

ts
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 r
is

k
 m

a
y
 b

e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 o

r 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

 

 O
th

e
r 

a
rt

ic
le

 n
o

t 
li
s
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 s

ta
te

: 

 Y
e
s
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 N

o
  

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
: 

   

 R
e
d
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
 R

e
d
  

  
  
  
  
  
 A

m
b
e
r 

  
  
  
  
  

G
re

e
n
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
A

m
b
e
r 

 

 
X

 

 
�

 
 

 

Page 119



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

2
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

   
   

  

7
: 

A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

n
in

g
  

 A
s

 a
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 t
h

is
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t,
 w

h
a
t 

a
c
ti

o
n

s
 a

re
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e
 o

r 
re

d
u

c
e
 a

n
y
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
a
d

v
e
rs

e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 o
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
, 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e
rs

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 s

h
a
re

 c
h

a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti

c
s
 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 E

q
u

a
li

ty
 A

c
t 

2
0
1
0
?

  

  I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 R
is

k
 a

n
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
m

: 
 

 

  R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
e
d

 A
c
ti

o
n

s
: 

 
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 

L
e
a
d

: 

 C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
D

a
te

: 
 

 R
e
v
ie

w
 

D
a
te

: 

 T
e
n

a
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
 d

is
a
b

il
it

y
 

   

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

it
h
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
a
s
 s

tr
e
s
s
 f

re
e
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

N
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
e
t?

  

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it

h
 

 
 

 A
g

e
 

   

E
ld

e
rl
y
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

w
it
h
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
a
s
 s

tr
e
s
s
 f

re
e
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

N
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it

h
 

 
 

Page 120



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

3
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
e
t?

 

 P
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 M
a
te

rn
it

y
 

  

P
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t 
o
r 

w
it
h
 

y
o
u
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 

w
it
h
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
-h

o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
a
s
 s

tr
e
s
s
 f

re
e
 a

s
 

p
o
s
s
ib

le
. 

N
e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
e
t?

 
 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it

h
 

 
 

R
a
c
e
 

W
h
e
n
 n

e
e
d
e
d
, 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

f 
a
n
 

in
te

rp
re

te
r 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 r

e
-

h
o
u
s
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 i
t 
a
s
 

s
tr

e
s
s
 f
re

e
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
. 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it

h
 

 
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

 
A

ff
e
c
te

d
 t

e
n
a
n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

w
it
h
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
u
p
d
a
te

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 r

o
a
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 k

e
p
t 

in
fo

rm
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

n
 r

e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s
. 

M
a
rt

in
 S

m
it

h
 

 
 

8
: 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 

  C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
  

(N
a
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

) 
: 

G
ra

e
m

e
 S

tu
a

rt
, 

K
e

v
in

 K
e

lly
, 

M
a

rt
in

 S
m

it
h

, 
S

a
n

d
ra

 W
o

o
d

, 
K

a
th

e
ri

n
e

 A
n

d
e

rs
o

n
 

 C
h

e
c
k
e
d

 b
y
 (

E
q

u
a
li

ty
 C

h
e
c
k
):

 
 

 

Page 121



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

4
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

  S
ig

n
e
d

 o
ff

 b
y
 (

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
e
rv

ic
e
) 

: 
 

 

 P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
n
d
 a

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n
ic

 c
o
p
y
 o

f 
y
o
u
r 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 E

H
R

IA
 -

 w
it
h
o
u
t 
s
ig

n
a
tu

re
s
 -

 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
/o

r 
c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
: 

 E
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 T

e
a
m

 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 H

u
b

 1
3
 

S
e
c
o
n
d
 F

lo
o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

M
a
ri
s
c
h
a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e
 

B
ro

a
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 

A
B

1
0
 1

A
B

 
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 0

1
2
2
4
 5

2
3
0
3
9
  
E

m
a
il 

s
a
n
d
ra

b
@

a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 

 
9
: 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 T
e
rm

in
o

lo
g

y
: 

 

 
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

T
h
is

 s
e
c
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
 o

b
v
io

u
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
a
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 m

e
d
ia

 c
o
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
u

ta
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
a
m

a
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
a
 f
u
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
, 
fo

r 
e
x
a
m

p
le

 a
ro

u
n
d
 s

e
n
s
it
iv

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

Page 122



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

5
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 P
re

-s
c
re

e
n

in
g

 

R
a
ti

n
g

: 

 

s
u
c
h
 a

s
 m

a
rc

h
in

g
, 
G

y
p
s
y
/ 

T
ra

v
e
lle

r 
is

s
u
e
s
, 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 t

o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
. 

It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 w

h
y
 a

 f
u
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
, 

e
x
a
m

p
le

, 
th

e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

. 

 A
s

s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
R

a
ti

n
g

: 
 

 

A
ft

e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t

h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t,
 r

a
te

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 
 

R
e
d

: 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 t
h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 i
t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

w
e
 w

ill
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
te

 
(d

ir
e
c
t,
 i
n
d
ir
e
c
t,
 u

n
in

te
n
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
r 

o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 

a
g
a
in

s
t 
o
n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 n

in
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 P
ro

te
c
te

d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 
It
 i
s
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
th

a
t 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

b
e
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
fu

rt
h
e
r 

w
o
rk

 o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
is

 p
e

rf
o
rm

e
d
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 d

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
. 

R
e
d

 A
m

b
e
r:

  
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 i
t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n
t 
th

a
t 

a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
e
x
is

ts
 t
o
 o

n
e
 o

r 
m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 n

in
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 
P

ro
te

c
te

d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
 g

e
n
u
in

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 m

a
y
 e

x
is

t 
th

a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 
le

g
it
im

is
e
 o

r 
ju

s
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
a
n
d
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

ta
k
e
n
. 

A
m

b
e
r:

 A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 t

h
is

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 i
t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
a
 r

is
k
 o

f 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
e
x
is

ts
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 r
is

k
 m

a
y
 b

e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 o

r 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t.
  

G
re

e
n

: 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 o
n
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 P
ro

te
c
te

d
 C

h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g
e
. 
 

  E
q

u
a
li

ty
 D

a
ta

: 
 

 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
o
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 t

h
a
t 
m

a
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 h
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 

b
e
in

g
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 c

a
n
 a

ff
e
c
t 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
s
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 s

h
a
re

 t
h
e
 n

in
e
 P

ro
te

c
te

d
 

C
h
a
ra

c
te

ri
s
ti
c
s
 –

 r
e
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 h

e
re

a
ft
e
r 

a
s
 ‘
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 G

ro
u
p
s
’.
 

 E
x
a
m

p
le

s
 o

f 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 D

a
ta

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 
(t

h
is

 l
is

t 
is

 n
o
t 
d
e
fi
n
it
iv

e
) 

  
 

Page 123



P
a

g
e

 |
 1

6
E

q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 H
u

m
a

n
 R

ig
h

ts
 I

m
p

a
ct

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

 1
8

/0
2

/1
4

  

 

1
: 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 r

a
te

s
 b

y
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

2
: 

C
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 b
y
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

3
: 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 w

it
h
d
ra

w
a
l 
o
f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 b

y
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

4
: 
G

ri
e
v
a
n
c
e
s
 o

r 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 u

p
h
e
ld

 a
n
d
 d

is
m

is
s
e
d
 b

y
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

 G
e
n

u
in

e
 

D
e
te

rm
in

in
g

 
R

e
a
s
o

n
  

 

C
e
rt

a
in

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
y
 b

e
 c

a
p
a
b
le

 o
f 

b
e
in

g
 j
u
s
ti
fi
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
s
 t
h
a
t:
  

 
(i
) 

A
 g

e
n
u
in

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g
 r

e
a
s
o
n
 e

x
is

ts
  

(i
i)

 
T

h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e
 l
e
g
it
im

a
te

 a
im

s
 o

f 
th

e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 

 
W

h
e
re

 t
h
is

 i
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
, 
it
 i
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
n
d
 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 i
s
 s

o
u
g
h
t 

p
ri
o
r 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 a

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t.
 

H
u

m
a
n

 R
ig

h
ts

 
T

h
e
 r

ig
h
ts

 s
e
t 
o
u
t 

in
 t

h
e
 E

u
ro

p
e
a
n
 C

o
n
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

, 
a
s
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 
th

e
 U

K
 L

a
w

 b
y
 t

h
e
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

ig
h
ts

 A
c
t 
1
9
9
8
. 

 L
e
g

a
l 

S
ta

tu
s
: 

 
T

h
is

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t 

is
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
u
s
 i
n
 “

Id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 e

lim
in

a
ti
n
g
 u

n
la

w
fu

l 
D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
, 
H

a
ra

s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 V

ic
ti
m

is
a
ti
o
n
” 

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 T

h
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 A

c
t 

P
u
b
lic

 
S

e
c
to

r 
D

u
ty

 2
0
1
1
. 
A

n
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p
a
c
t 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

is
 n

o
t,
 i
n
 i
ts

e
lf
, 
le

g
a
lly

 b
in

d
in

g
 a

n
d
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 

b
e
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 s
u
b
s
ti
tu

te
 f
o
r 

le
g
a
l 
o
r 

o
th

e
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
. 
 

 

Page 124



HAUDAGAIN IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 
 

RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
CENTRAL ISSUE – SCOTTISH GOVERNMENT CANCELS THE IMPROVEMENT SCHEME 

 

 
 

 
 

ID 
Description Type 

Im
p

a
c
t 

L
ik

e
li
h

o
o

d
 

S
c
o

re
 

Counter-measures / 
Updates 

Owner 

 I
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 

 U
p

d
a
te

d
 

Status 

1 

Scottish Government no 
longer funds the 

construction of the road 
(Haudagain) including all 

compensation costs  

Strategic  4 2 
 

8 
 

Assurances given by 
Keith Brown MSP, 

minister for Transport 
at Committee 

meeting on 6 May 
2014 

 
Council appointed 

external advisors to 
help with 

negotiations on 
impact of road for 

housing /environment 
of Middlefield to ratify 

extent of 
compensation costs    

JQ/SW April  2014 15/08/14 Open 

2 

The Council delaying re-
housing of affected 

tenants until the financial 
terms of the CPO are 
legally finalised  will 

negatively impact on the 
road construction 
programme, with 

economic consequences 
and reputational damage 

to the Council. 
Also, there would be an 
opportunity cost circa 

£8m related to the lower 
value of compensation 
received by the Council 

for the units being CPO’d. 

Operation
al 

3 4 12 

Council Housing and 
Environment 
Committee to 

consider approving 
recommendations to 
prioritise allocations 
policies for tenants 

involved   to facilitate 
process  on 26 
August 2014 

 
 

DU/JQ April 2014 15/08/14 Open  

3 

The Council commencing 
re-housing as soon as 

practical in order to avoid 
delays to the roads 

programme will result in 
rent loss of upper limit 

circa £800k over 3 years, 
depending on the rate of 

re-housing. 
This would not be 

mitigated against until the  
CPO process is formally 

concluded in 2017.  
Additional costs will 

include Homeloss and 
Disturbance payments 

which should be factored 
into discussions with 

Transport Scotland when 
CPO process begins.   

 

Financial 2 3 6 

Early discussions on 
CPO process have 

taken place, but 
more formal 

discussions will take 
place when 

Transport Scotland 
have formalized their 

route. 
 
 

JQ/SW April 2014 15/08/14 Open 

Page 125



Key 
 

Impact 

Catastrophic 4 

Serious  3 

Material 2 

Negligible 1 

Likelihood  

Very High 6 

High 5 

Significant 4 

Low 3 

Very Low 2 

Almost Impossible 1 

 

Score 

Between 1-7 Green Low Risk Not a priority   

Between 8-14 Amber Medium Risk Quick wins now plus medium term plan to address 

Between 15-24 Red High Risk  Address immediately   

Type 

Project 

Operational 

Strategic 

Outwith Project  

 

Page 126



 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment  
 
DATE  26th August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard  
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Proposed Extended Use of Enforcement Funding 
 
REPORT NUMBER H&E/14/052 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED  Yes/No 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
The purpose of this report is to update committee on progress made in 
property repair and maintenance within the private sector since the 
introduction of the Enforcement Fund in January 2013 and outline 
proposals to increase the effectiveness of the scheme. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that committee agree to: -  
 

Authorise the Director of Housing and Environment to extend the 
use of the current Enforcement Fund to encompass Mixed 
Tenure Housing as detailed at 5.2 below. 

 
 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

 
There are no new financial implications for the Council arising out of 
this report as it seeks to use monies already identified for the use 
requested in this report. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council has a duty under the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, (the 
2006 Act), to manage Below Tolerable Standard (BTS) housing in its 
area.  The proposals within this report, while not directly targeted at 
BTS housing, will help to reduce the risk of BTS housing arising. 
 
 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

Agenda Item 6.6

Page 127



 

 
5.1 A report to Committee on 15th January 2013 outlined a proposal to use 

the Enforcement powers offered to Local Authorities through the 
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 and how this could be funded from 
Private sector Housing Grant funding and topped up as and when 
required from surplus Landlord Registration fee income.  The 
Committee resolved to: - 

 
“(i) to authorise the Director of Housing and Environment to utilise 
the enforcement and funding options as detailed in section 5.3 of 
the report, by (a) continuing to earmark the £1.081m Private Sector 
Housing Grant ring fenced monies to carry out enforcement of 
property repairs for private sector housing; and (b) agreeing to add 

to the earmarked reserve such amounts as deemed appropriate, 
from any surplus of Landlord Registration fee income on an 
annual basis;” 

 
Introduction of this funding was originally targeted at the traditional 
granite tenement properties but has on occasion included other 
property types.  This has had a very positive effect on the repair and 
improvement of this part of the stock, with £403,905 of Local Authority 
funding enabling a total of £2,278,582 worth of repair works to be 
carried out.  An additional £299,253 has been enabled simply by the 
use of letters advising owners that the Council would enforce works if 
they failed to take action.  This is done by utilising Work Notices or 
Missing Shares legislation from the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006. 
 
The enforcement fund had a balance of £645,807 as at 31st July 2014. 
 
Monies spent by the Council through this legislation are recoverable via 
the use of a Repayment Charge which secures the debt against the 
Title Deeds of the property and is currently repayable in 30 annual 
instalments.  The authority is allowed to recover administration costs 
and interest charges as part of the process.   
 
Section 76ZA of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2014, (the 2014 Act), when 
introduced, will allow the 30 year period to be reduced, dependant on 
level of costs to be recovered and owners ability to pay, to a mutually 
agreeable period ranging from between 5 and 30 years. 
 
In the majority of cases an agent is required, especially where there are 
a number of owners involved.  Monies are paid up front into a 
Maintenance account for the property and the Council makes payment 
to that account, or direct to the Agent if appropriate.  Whichever 
method is adopted, the Council requires to know before the contract 
commences who has and has not deposited their share of the monies.  
This ensures that the Council is aware of its commitments prior to the 
Missing Shares or Work Notices being served. 
 

Page 128



 

Work Notices can only be used for Repair and or Maintenance of a 
property; it cannot be used to enforce Improvement works. 
 
 

5.2 Proposal for moving ahead: - 
 

5.2.1 In order for the proactive repair programme to be more effective it 
is envisaged that more use of enforcement powers, either through 
Work Notices or Maintenance Orders, will be used on non-
tenement properties.  This will reduce the threat of disrepair to 
adjoining properties and assist in enhancing neighbourhoods.  
This means that both semi-detach and detached properties can 
be assisted, although the latter is unlikely to receive much 
attention through Work Notices but more likely through 
Maintenance Orders.   

 
5.2.2  Mixed Tenure Housing; Enforcement powers have seldom been 

used in mixed tenure housing, that is, where Aberdeen City 
Council have ownership of at least one flat in the tenement.  It has 
been the practice that the Housing Revenue Account, where 
approval has been gained from co-owners, front fund any works 
and seek reimbursement from the owners on completion.   

  
 The proposal is that works to these properties should be treated in 

the same manner as any other works involving homeowners 
where the Council has to enforce works.  It is intended that the 
enforcement fund be used to pick up missing shares and secure 
this debt along with administration costs and interest as per the 
rest of the private sector housing stock. 

  
5.2.3 Section 74 of the 2014 Act amends the Maintenance Order 

legislation within the Housing (Scotland) Act 2006, by simplifying 
the process for Local Authorities.  This section has not yet been 
introduced.    Maintenance Orders brings enforcement capabilities 
and therefore a need for funding resources if utilised.  The benefit 
of Maintenance Orders over Works Notices is that it requires 
owners to prepare a maintenance plan for a 5 year period and to 
implement it.  Failure to do so allows the local authority to 
implement on their behalf.  It is anticipated that this should 
encourage owners to be more involved in the planning and repair 
of their property than would be the case by simply enforcing via a 
Work Notice.  The use of these amended powers will be tested 
when available, to ensure its practical implementation is 
successful. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
This report links to the 5 year Corporate Business Plan, and individual 
Service Plans in that it: - 

Page 129



 

 

• Protects the public from poor quality private sector housing and 
safe guards the built environment and granite heritage;  

 

• Helps with retention of a large stock of quality, well-maintained 
affordable housing that match the highest of standards;  

 
This report will be of interest to homeowners, particularly those in 
mixed tenure housing, where the council will move towards 
implementing a uniform method of assisting those in the private 
housing sector to repair and maintain their homes; by reflecting the 
model of charging interest where the owner does not have the financial 
resources to meet their liabilities and secures the debt against their 
property. 

 
 
7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The proposals presented in this paper are an opportunity risk in that, if 
implemented, the proposals help to: -  
 

• Reduce the incidence of BTS housing from occurring, 

• Promotes well maintained homes for our citizens to live, 

• Reduce exposure to the Council of potential bad debt from 
private sector owners, by securing that debt against their 
property’s Title Deeds. 

• Reduces potential losses to the Council who currently borrow to 
cover the owners cost of works.  The proposal therefore reduces 
loss of interest on our loans. 

 
A system is already in place to monitor these secured sums and is 
currently being reviewed and enhanced in light on the Private Sector 
Housing, Internal Audit Report 2013/2014. 

 
 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Housing (Scotland) Act 2006 
Housing (Scotland) Act 2014 (as passed) 
Housing and Environment Committee Report, 15th January 2013 

 
 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 
 

Name:   Andy Pitblado  
Job Title:  Private Sector Housing Strategy Officer  
Email Address: apitblado@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
Phone Number: (52)2339  

Page 130



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing & Environment 
 
DATE  26th August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Scottish Social Housing Charter and Annual 

Report to Tenants 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E/14/056 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
This report provides details of Aberdeen City Council’s performance as 
required by the Scottish Social Housing Charter and includes 
information on the preparation of the first Annual Report to Tenants as 
well as the key findings from the Tenants Satisfaction Survey. 
 
 

2. RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
It is recommended that Committee note the contents of this report, the 
work undertaken on the first Annual Report to Tenants and note that a 
presentation on the Tenants Satisfaction Survey is scheduled for 2nd 
September 2014.  
 
 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The introduction of Scottish Housing Charter required a Tenants 
Satisfaction Survey to be commissioned which is likely to be 
undertaken on a 3 yearly cycle. The Annual Report to Tenants will be 
made available to all tenants. The costs of these actions will be funded 
from the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
 

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Once the full details from the Tenants Satisfaction Survey and 
performance details for other landlords is available further analysis of 
our performance will be undertaken in order to identify specific actions 
which need to be taken to help improve our performance. 
 
 

Agenda Item 6.7

Page 131



 

 

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 
 
The Scottish Social Housing Charter (the Charter) 
 
The Charter was approved by resolution of the Scottish Parliament in 
2012. It has effect from 1 April 2012 and continues to have effect until 
the Parliament approves a revised Charter. The Charter replaces the 
performance standards contained in the guidance that the Scottish 
Ministers issued under section 79 of the Housing (Scotland) Act 2001 
in November 2006.  

 
 It does not replace any of the legal duties that apply to social landlords, 

but in a number of cases the outcomes describe the results that social 
landlords should achieve in meeting their legal duties.   

      
 The Scottish Social Housing Charter sets the service outcomes and 

Standards which social landlords i.e. Local Authorities and RSLs, 
should be delivering to their tenants and other customers. The Charter 
will help to improve the quality and value of the services that social 
landlords deliver for their tenants and other customers and supports 
the Scottish Government’s strategic objective of a safer and stronger 
Scotland.  It will do so in the following ways:  

 

• By providing tenants and other customers with a clear statement 
of what they can expect from social landlords, and helping them 
to hold landlords to account;   
 

• It will focus the efforts of social landlords on achieving outcomes 
that matter to their tenants and other customers;  

 

• It will provide the basis for the Scottish Housing Regulator (the 
Regulator) to assess and report on how well landlords are 
performing.  This will enable the Regulator, tenants and other 
customers, as well as social landlords to identify areas of strong 
performance and areas where improvement is needed.   

 
  The Charter is set out in 7 sections covering the following housing 

services:  
 

• Equalities;  

• Customer / Landlord Relationship;  

• Housing Quality and Maintenance;  

• Neighbourhood and Community;  

• Access to Housing and Support;  

• Getting Good Value from Rents and Service Charges;  

• Other Customers i.e. Gypsy Travellers, Homeless and 
Factored Owners   

 
It contains a total of 16 outcomes and standards that social landlords 
should aim to achieve when performing their housing activities. Other 
social landlords will be published by the Regulator by the end of  

Page 132



 

 

August 2014 so we can benchmark our performance with similar 
organisations.  
 
 
The Scottish Housing Regulator (the Regulator) 
 
The introduction of the Charter Under the 2010 Act also saw the 
formation of the Scottish Housing Regulator whose statutory objective 
is to safeguard and promote the interests of current and future tenants, 
homeless people and other others using services provided by social 
landlords. It will monitor assess and report on how well social 
landlords, individually and collectively are achieving the Charter’s 
outcomes. 2013/14 is the first year for which we have had to report 
performance to the Regulator. All our performance data was submitted 
by 30th May 2014. The Regulator will publish 18 indicators to show 
performance across organisations during August, this will assist in the 
benchmarking process. 
 
 
Annual Report to Tenants 
 
As part of the Regulator’s requirements Aberdeen City Council has to 
report its performance against the Charter to all tenants by end 
October 2014. We are working in close consultation with our tenant 
groups on the content and design of the report. Appendix 3 provides an 
example of one of the pages. 
 
 
Tenant Satisfaction Survey (TSS) 
 
As part of the SSHC reporting requirements social landlords must 
undertake a TSS at least once every 3 years, to supplement the 
Performance Management data. The TSS took the form of a 
comprehensive face to face survey with 1,314 of our tenants in 
accordance with the Housing Regulators guidelines. In addition to the 
mandatory 8 questions, we also asked a number of questions on a 
variety of topics such as anti-social behaviour, repairs, rent 
management and tenant priorities. IBP Research and Strategy are the 
company procured who undertook the work on our behalf.  
 
IBP Research and Strategy are currently working on a more detailed 
report and members will be provided with copies as soon as they are 
available. Members will note that a presentation of the survey results 
will take place at 2pm on September 2nd in the Town House. The 
Charter headline results can be found in appendix 1. 
 
 
Performance 
 
The performance for the 18 ‘national’ indicators to be published by the 
Regulator are detailed at Appendix 2 with the City Council’s 

Page 133



 

 

performance shown against other local authorities performance and 
that of Glasgow Housing Association. 
 
This information is not yet published by the Regulator so the names of 
the other landlords have not been included. 

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 
Corporate – None arising from this report.   
 
Public – This report will be of interest to the public and in particular 
tenants of the City Council given their direct interest in the service 
provided by the City Council and the comparison of its performance 
with that of other landlords.  
 
A report will be made available to all tenants so they will receive this 
information in due course. 
 
 

7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 

The report provides factual information on the Council’s performance in 
relation to the Scottish Housing Charter Indicators.  
 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
SSHC  
SHBVN  
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Graeme Stuart - Housing Strategy and Performance Manager 
Phone: (52)3043 
E-mail: gstuart@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 134



 

 

Appendix 1 
INTERIM SUMMARY OF TENANT SATISFACTION SURVEY FINDINGS 

Results based on 1,314 respondents, 

 
Charter Indicator Question Wording Very 

Satisfied / 

Very 

Good 

Fairly 

Satisfied / 

Fairly 

Good 

Total 

Satisfied 

/ Good 

Neither 

/ Nor 

Fairly 

Dissatisfied 

/ Fairly 

Poor 

Very 

Dissatisfied 

/ Very 

Poor 

No 

Opinion 

Percentage of tenants 

satisfied with the overall 

service provided by their 

landlord (Charter Indicator 

1) 

Taking everything into account, 

how satisfied or dissatisfied are 

you with the overall service 

provided by Aberdeen City 

Council’s Housing Service? 

33% 53% 86% 7% 4% 3% 0% 

Percentage of tenants who 

feel their landlord is good 

at keeping them informed 

about their services and 

decisions (Charter Indicator 

3). 

How good or poor do you feel 

Aberdeen City Council’s Housing 

Service is at keeping you 

informed about their services 

and decisions. 

31% 54% 85% 9% 4% 2% - 

Percentage of tenants 

satisfied with the 

opportunities given to them 

to participate in their 

landlord’s decision making 

processes (Charter 

Indicator 6). 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are 

you with the opportunities given 

to you to participate in Aberdeen 

City Council Housing Service’s 

decision making processes? 

28% 52% 80% 16% 2% 1% - 

Percentage of tenants 

satisfied with the standard 

of their home when moving 

in (Charter Indicator 9). 

Thinking about when you moved 

in, how satisfied or dissatisfied 

were you with the standard of 

your home? 

31% 45% 76% 7% 9% 9% - 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
5



 

 

Charter Indicator Question Wording Very 

Satisfied 

Fairly 

Satisfied 

Total 

Satisfied 

Neither 

/ Nor 

Fairly 

Dissatisfied 

Very 

Dissatisfied 

No 

Opinion 

Percentage of existing 

tenants satisfied with the 

quality of their home 

(Charter Indicator 10). 

Overall, how satisfied or 

dissatisfied are you with the 

quality of your home? 

38% 51% 89% 4% 6% 2% - 

Percentage of tenants who 

have had repairs or 

maintenance carried out in 

last 12 months satisfied 

with the repairs and 

maintenance service 

(Charter Indicator 16). 

Thinking about the last time you 

had repairs carried out, how 

satisfied or dissatisfied were you 

with the repairs service provided 

by Aberdeen City Council’s 

Housing Service? 

47% 34% 81% 6% 7% 6% - 

Percentage of tenants 

satisfied with the 

management of the 

neighbourhood they live in 

(Charter Indicator 17). 

Overall, how satisfied or 

dissatisfied are you with 

Aberdeen City Council Housing 

Service’s management of the 

neighbourhood you live in? 

41% 45% 86% 7% 5% 2% - 

Percentage of tenants who 

feel the rent for their 

property represents good 

value for money (Charter 

Indicator 29).  

 

Taking into account the 

accommodation and the services 

Aberdeen City Council’s Housing 

Service provides, to what extent 

do you think that the rent for 

this property represents good or 

poor value for money? Is it…’ 

16% 54% 70% 13% 13% 4% - 

 
 
 

P
a
g

e
 1

3
6



 

 

Appendix 2 
 

 
 
 

 

0

5000

10000

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

Aberdeen City Council

Total Housing Stock

0

20000000

40000000

60000000

80000000

100000000

120000000

140000000

160000000

Aberdeen City 

Council

Total amount of rent due to be collected in the year

Page 137



 

 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Aberdeen City Council

Average Weekly Rent

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage average weekly rent increase to be applied

Page 138



 

 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of Tenants satisfied with the overall service provided by 

their landlord

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of Tenants who feel their landlord is good at keeping them 

informed

Page 139



 

 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of Tenants  satisfied with the opportunities given to them 

to participate in their landlord's decision making processes

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of stock meeting the Scottish Housing Quality Standard 

(SHQS)

Page 140



 

 

 
 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

Aberdeen City Council

Average length of time taken to complete emergency repairs (hours)

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Aberdeen City Council

Average length of time taken to complete non-emergency repairs 

(days)

Page 141



 

 

 
 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of reactive repairs carried out in the last year completed 

right first time

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of repairs appontments kept

Page 142



 

 

 
 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of tenants who have had a repair or maintenance carried 

out in the last 12 months satisfied with the repairs and maintenance 

service

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of anti-social behaviour cases reported in the last year 

which were resolved within locally agreed targets

Page 143



 

 

 
 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Aberdeen City Council

Average time to re-let properties in the last year

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

Aberdeen City Council

Percentage of rent due lost through properties being empty during 

the last year

Page 144



 

 

 

92

94

96

98

100

102

104

Aberdeen City Council

Rent collected as percentage of total rent due in the reporting year

Page 145



Page 146

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
COMMITTEE  Housing and Environment 
 
DATE  26 August 2014 
 
DIRECTOR  Pete Leonard 
 
TITLE OF REPORT  Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan 
 
REPORT NUMBER: H&E-14-061 
 
CHECKLIST RECEIVED Yes 
 

 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
 

The Public Health etc (Scotland) Act 2008 places a duty on Health 
Boards and Local Authorities to co-operate on health protection 
matters, and produce a Local Health Protection Plan. This report seeks 
Committee approval of the draft Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan 
for the period 2014 to 2016. (Appended to this Report) 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION(S)  

  
(a) That the Committee approves the Grampian Joint Health Protection 

Plan appended to this report. 
(b) That the Committee instructs the Director of Housing and 

Environment to ensure that the health protection priorities outlined in 
the plan continue to be resourced. 

(c) That the report is referred, for information, to the Social Care and 
Wellbeing Committee. 

 
3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

 
The Joint Health Protection Plan is a formalisation of existing 
partnership working arrangements between NHS Grampian and 
Aberdeen City, Aberdeenshire and Moray Councils.  As such the 
delivery of the plan can be met within the existing budget for statutory 
services, provided there is no reduction in financial or staffing 
resources 
 

 
4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Joint Health Protection plan links to the Environmental Health and 
Trading Standards Service plans including a number of statutory 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 147



 

 

service plans that sit beneath this.  The plan also links to the work in a 
number of other services across the council 
 

 
5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES 

 
Aberdeen City Council works closely with partners in NHS Grampian, 
Aberdeenshire Council, Moray Council, and other agencies to deliver 
services to protect the health of the Grampian population.  
 
Health Protection is now the accepted term to describe the work that 
encompasses the surveillance, investigation, control and prevention of 
communicable disease and environmental hazards to human health.   
 
This Joint Health Protection Plan (JHPP) provides an overview of 
health protection priorities, provision and preparedness for NHS 
Grampian, Aberdeen City, Aberdeenshire and The Moray Councils as 
required by the Public Health etc (Scotland) Act 2008.  
 
This is the third Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan and covers the 
period from 2014 to 2016 and has been prepared by NHS Grampian in 
collaboration with Aberdeen City, Aberdeenshire and The Moray 
Councils.  
 
In the 2014-16 Plan the three Local Authorities have presented their 
activities and highlighted various aspects of their work.  The JHPP links 
to other service delivery plans across Grampian, and also the Single 
Outcome Agreements (see section 6, below).  
 
The main section of the plan describes the national and local priorities 
for health protection and what actions are planned over the next two 
years.  The appendices provide more detail on the planning 
infrastructure, resources and operational arrangements, capacity and 
resilience, and public involvement. 
 
In addition to Aberdeen City’s Housing and Environment Committee, 
the JHHP will be considered by the following Council and NHS 
Committees: 
 
• NHS Grampian Board 
• Aberdeenshire Council Infrastructure Service Committee  
• The Moray Council Planning & Regulatory Services Committee   

 
 

6. IMPACT 
 

Corporate –  
The JHPP links to the Community Plan and Single Outcome 
Agreement overall vision of Aberdeen to be an attractive, clean, 
healthy and safe place to live and work 
 

Page 148



 

 

The JHPP also links to the following objectives in the Council’s 5 year 
Corporate Business Plan: 
 

• We will protect the health, safety and rights of consumers and the 
public through developing a more focused and improved Environmental 
Health & Trading Standards service and Public Analyst service 

• We will play our part in partnership working on community safety, 
protecting vulnerable people, health and wellbeing and other 
community planning priorities 

• We will work to protect the public from poor-quality, private sector 
housing and to maintain the built environment and granite heritage 

• We will contribute to a greener, cleaner and safer city through 
developing and improving our Grounds Maintenance and Street 
Cleaning services 
 
Public - This report is likely to be of interest to the public, as it refers to 
the arrangements in place for health protection in Grampian.  
 
Equalities and Human Rights Impact  
An assessment has been completed for the JHPP. The JHPP has an 
overall positive effect on inequalities in health which it seeks to address 
through targeted interventions aimed at protecting those most at risk 
from a variety of communicable diseases and environmental hazards  
 

 
7.        MANAGEMENT OF RISK 
 
 The Public Health etc (Scotland) Act 2008) places a duty on Health 

Boards and Local Authorities to co-operate on health protection 
matters, and produce a Local Health Protection Plan.  Should the plan 
not be approved by committee there will be a risk that the Council fails 
to properly implement statutory requirement.  This may lead to legal 
challenges, censure by central Government and its agencies, this in 
turn would lead to serious reputational damage and may even require 
emergency measures to be put in place to rectify any failings. 

 
8. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Draft Joint Health Protection Plan (Appendix ) 

 
 

 
9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS 

 
Hazel Stevenson 
Environmental Protection Team Leader 
hstevenson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
(01224) 523390 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



J
o

in
t 

H
e
a
lt

h
 P

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0
1
4
-2

0
1

6
 

    
 

Page 151



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 
T

h
is

 J
o

in
t 

H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 (
J
H

P
P

) 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 (
c
o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

) 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 p

re
p

a
re

d
n
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
s
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a

lt
h

 e
tc

 (
S

c
o
tl
a

n
d

) 
A

c
t 

2
0
0

8
. 

w
w

w
.o

p
s
i.
g
o

v
.u

k
/l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
/s

c
o

tl
a

n
d

/a
c
ts

2
0

0
8

/p
d
f/

a
s
p

_
2

0
0

8
0
0

0
5
_

e
n
.p

d
f 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 t
h

e
 t
h

ir
d

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 J

o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 p
e

ri
o
d

 f
ro

m
 1

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
4

 t
o

 3
1

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 
p

re
p

a
re

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
e

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

. 
  

 T
h
e

 m
a

in
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

la
n

 d
e

s
c
ri
b
e

s
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

h
a

t 
a

c
ti
o
n

s
 w

e
 p

la
n

 t
o
 t

a
k
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
 T

h
e

 a
p
p

e
n
d

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
il 

o
n

 o
u

r 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e
, 

a
n
d

 p
u

b
lic

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t.

 
 W

e
 h

o
p
e

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
 w

ill
 f

in
d

 t
h

is
 p

la
n

 o
f 

in
te

re
s
t 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e
 p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

 l
iv

e
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 M

o
ra

y
. 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
S

ir
 L

e
w

is
 R

it
c
h

ie
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
r 

Ia
n

 R
o

b
e

rt
s
o
n

  
 

 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
P

ro
te

c
ti
v
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

M
rs

 C
a

ro
le

 J
a

c
k
s
o

n
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

r 
D

o
n

n
ie

 M
a

c
k
a

y
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
P

re
m

is
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 
 

 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
 

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
T

h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 152



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
 

T
h

is
 J

H
P

P
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
  

  

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 B
o

a
rd

 
•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

H
o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

•
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  

•
 

T
h
e

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 &

 R
e

g
u

la
to

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
  
 

T
h
e

 p
la

n
 i
s
 a

 p
u
b

lic
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 o

n
 t

h
e
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 a
t 

w
w

w
.n

h
s
g
ra

m
p

ia
n

.o
rg

 
a

n
d

 o
n

 r
e
q
u
e

s
t 

fr
o
m

  

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

  
  

 
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

 
 

 
  

S
u

m
m

e
rf

ie
ld

 H
o
u

s
e

 
2

 E
d
a

y
 R

o
a

d
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 A

B
1
5

 6
R

E
 

E
-m

a
il:

 g
ra

m
p
ia

n
.h

e
a

lt
h

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
@

n
h

s
.n

e
t 

T
h
is

 p
la

n
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 l
a
rg

e
 p

ri
n
t 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

fo
rm

a
ts

 a
n
d
 l
a

n
g
u
a
g

e
s
, 

u
p
o

n
 r

e
q

u
e
s
t.

 
P

le
a
s
e
 c

a
ll 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 (

0
1
2
2
4
) 

5
5
1
1

1
6
 o

r 
(0

1
2
2
4
) 

5
5
2

2
4
5
. 

Page 153



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
 

 In
d

e
x

 o
f 

c
o

n
te

n
ts

  
  

  H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
: 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
  

 
 

 
  

P
a

g
e

  
 5

 
 A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 1
 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
N

H
S

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 
3

4
 

 
 

 
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
: 
p

la
n
n

in
g
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 
3

7
  

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
: 

re
s
o
u

rc
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

 
4

3
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 4
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 
 

 
 

P
a

g
e

  
5

2
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
  

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
: 
p

u
b

lic
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f
e

e
d

b
a

c
k
  

 
 

 
P

a
g
e

  
 5

4

Page 154



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
 

H
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

: 
n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 l

o
c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

c
ti

o
n

s
  

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e
n

c
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 i
s
 t
h

e
 t
e

rm
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 t
h

e
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

, 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
, 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
a
n

d
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

a
z
a

rd
s
 t
o

 h
u
m

a
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

. 
  

 T
h

is
 p

la
n

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f
u

tu
re

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

H
e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
 a

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

h
ie

f 
M

e
d

ic
a
l 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

( w
w

w
.s

e
h

d
.s

c
o

t.
n

h
s
.u

k
/c

m
o
/C

M
O

(2
0

0
8

)0
0

a
.p

d
f)

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n
to

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

ri
o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

lo
c
a

l 
ri
s
k
s
 

a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
ro

m
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
. 
  
 

 T
h
e

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

 a
n
d

 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 T
e
a
m

 w
ill

 b
e

c
o

m
e
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
o

b
lig

a
te

 n
e

tw
o

rk
. 
W

e
 a

w
a

it
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

p
o

rt
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

fl
u
e

n
c
e

 o
u

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
4

-2
0

1
6

. 
 

  C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

 E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n
 i
s
 a

n
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
c
o

m
p

o
n
e

n
t 
o
f 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 i
s
 a

n
 

a
tt

ra
c
ti
v
e

 a
re

a
 f

o
r 

in
w

a
rd

 m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
, 
e

s
p
e

c
ia

lly
 f

ro
m

 E
a

s
te

rn
 E

u
ro

p
e

 a
n

d
 m

a
n

y
 m

ig
ra

n
t 

w
o

rk
e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
n

-E
n

g
lis

h
 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
y
 f

ir
s
t 

a
rr

iv
e

. 
A

c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

, 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
ie

s
, 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 h

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e

 t
h

e
 L

a
n

g
u
a

g
e

 L
in

e
 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n
 o

v
e

r 
6
0

0
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 t
h
e

 p
o

o
l 
o
f 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f

a
c
e

 t
o

 f
a

c
e

 
in

te
rp

re
te

rs
. 
T

h
e

re
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 g
re

a
t 
d

e
a

l 
o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

h
e

a
lt
h

 c
a

re
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
re

a
d

ily
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 l
o

c
a

l 
e
th

n
ic

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

la
n

g
u

a
g
e

s
. 

S
p

e
c
if
ic

 m
a

te
ri
a

l 
is

 p
ro

d
u

c
e
d

, 
if
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 T
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 n

e
e

d
s
 o

f 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 d

is
a
b

ili
ti
e
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 w
id

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
to

 h
e

lp
 o

v
e

rc
o
m

e
 a

n
y
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

. 
   

Page 155



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
6
 

1
. 

M
a

n
a
g

in
g

 t
h

re
a

ts
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b

li
c

’s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 
 

O
u

r 
o
v
e

rr
id

in
g
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 p

re
s
e

n
t 

a
 t
h

re
a

t 
to

 t
h
e
 p

u
b

lic
’s

 h
e

a
lt
h
. 

 T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

in
g
 t

o
 b

o
th

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
b

le
 d

is
e

a
s
e
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 2

4
 h

o
u

rs
 a

 d
a

y
. 

  
T

h
is

 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 i
s
 d

e
p
e

n
d
a

n
t 
o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 s
u

rv
e

ill
a
n

c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 t
o

 d
e

te
c
t 

c
h
a

n
g
e

s
 i
n

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 
a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
e

x
p

o
s
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 i
n
 a

n
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 a
n

d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

w
a

y
. 

 
In

 2
0

1
2

-1
4

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 t
h

e
 I
n
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 D

is
e
a

s
e

 I
n

c
id

e
n
t 

P
la

n
 (

fo
rm

e
rl
y
 

th
e

 O
u

tb
re

a
k
 P

la
n

) 
in

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 r
e
v
is

e
d

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

c
id

e
n

ts
: 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 R

o
le

s
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

f 
N

H
S

 l
e

d
 I
n

c
id

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

T
e
a

m
, 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0
1

1
. 
In

 a
d
d

it
io

n
, 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
In

c
id

e
n

t 
P

la
n

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
d

 a
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
in

g
le

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e

, 
o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
 a

n
d

 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 
2

 y
e

a
rs

. 
  
 

 A
c

ti
o

n
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 w

ill
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
c
lu

s
io

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 N

H
S

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

th
e

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
o
u

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
 

 2
. 

M
a

jo
r 

In
fe

c
ti

o
u

s
 D

is
e
a

s
e
s

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 P

a
n

d
e
m

ic
 I

n
fl

u
e

n
z
a
 

 P
a

n
d
e
m

ic
 I

n
fl
u

e
n

z
a

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

ri
s
k
 o

n
 t

h
e

 C
a
b

in
e

t 
O

ff
ic

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a

l 
R

is
k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

o
f 

C
iv

il 
E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
ie

s
 (

2
0

1
3

).
  

In
fl
u
e

n
z
a
 

p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
s
 

a
re

 
in

tr
in

s
ic

a
lly

 
u

n
p

re
d

ic
ta

b
le

 
w

it
h

 
re

g
a

rd
 

to
 

ti
m

in
g
, 

s
e

v
e

ri
ty

 
a

n
d

 
im

p
a

c
t.

 
 

In
 

c
o

m
p

a
ri
s
o

n
 

w
it
h

 
p

re
v
io

u
s
 

in
fl
u
e

n
z
a
 

p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
s
, 

th
e

 H
1

N
1
 (

2
0

0
9

) 
in

fl
u
e
n

z
a

 p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 m
ild

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 n

o
 g

ro
u
n

d
s
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

la
c
e

n
c
y
. 

  
 M

a
jo

r 
In

fe
c
ti
o

u
s
 D

is
e
a
s
e

 p
re

p
a

re
d
n

e
s
s
 i

s
 a

n
 i

n
te

g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

in
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

iv
il 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t.
  

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
 

p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
 i
s
 m

o
s
t 

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 a

 n
e

w
 s

u
b

ty
p

e
 o

f 
th

e
 I

n
fl
u
e

n
z
a

 A
 v

ir
u

s
, 

th
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 m
u

s
t 

b
e

 a
d

a
p

ta
b

le
, 

fl
e

x
ib

le
 

a
n

d
 s

c
a

la
b

le
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 d
e
m

a
n

d
s
 o

f 
a

n
y
 l
o

c
a

l 
m

a
jo

r 
in

fe
c
ti
o

u
s
 d

is
e

a
s
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

t.
  

 
 F

ro
m

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
, 
n

e
w

 c
iv

il 
c
o

n
ti
n

g
e

n
c
y
 s

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a
 L

o
c
a

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 (
L
R

P
) 

a
t 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 
R

e
g
io

n
a

l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 
(R

R
P

) 
a

t 
N

o
rt

h
 

o
f 

S
c
o
tl
a

n
d

 
L
e

v
e

l.
 

 
T

h
e

s
e

 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 

g
ro

u
p

in
g
s
 

a
re

 
c
o

n
v
e

n
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 a
n

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
 g

iv
e

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
. 

 I
n
 m

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

c
e

s
, 

it
 i

s
 c

ri
ti
c
a
l 

th
a

t 
p

a
rt

n
e

r 

Page 156



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
7
 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 m

a
k
e

 j
o
in

t 
d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
 i

n
 a

 u
n

if
ie

d
 m

a
n

n
e

r,
 w

it
h

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
. 

 A
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 l
e

v
e

l 
M

a
jo

r 
In

fe
c
ti
o

u
s
 D

is
e
a

s
e

 P
la

n
 (

M
ID

P
) 

w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0
1

2
. 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 r

e
ta

in
s
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l

o
c
a

l 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
s
p
e

c
ts

 o
f 

a
n

 i
n
c
id

e
n

t,
 

ir
re

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

 o
f 

a
 R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 l
e
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

. 
 A

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 M

ID
P

 w
a

s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 i

n
 2

0
1

3
, 

w
h

ic
h
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 (
h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

) 
re

s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
in

fe
c
ti
o
u

s
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 i
n

c
id

e
n

t.
 

A
c

ti
o

n
s
  

 

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 a
n

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 u
p

-t
o
-d

a
te

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

la
n

s
, 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 U

K
 I

n
fl
u
e

n
z
a

 
P

a
n

d
e
m

ic
 P

re
p
a

re
d

n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 2

0
1
1

. 
  

 
R

e
g
u

la
r 

e
x
e

rc
is

e
s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 t
o

 t
e
s
t 

a
n
d

 v
a

lid
a

te
 a

s
s
u
m

p
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p
la

n
s
 a

re
 f

it
 f

o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

, 
w

o
rk

a
b

le
, 

a
n
d

 
th

a
t 

s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

ly
 t

ra
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

re
p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
c
ti
v
a

te
 t
h

e
m

. 
  

 
A

ll 
s
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 N

H
S

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o

n
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

s
 (

B
C

P
s
) 

in
 p

la
c
e
 p

lu
s
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 

s
u

rg
e

 c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 p
la

n
s
 c

a
n

 b
e

 g
e

n
e

ri
c
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 t
o

 b
o
th

 p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
 i
n
fl
u
e
n

z
a

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
m

a
jo

r 
o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 o

f 
in

fe
c
ti
o

u
s
 d

is
e

a
s
e

. 
 

 

Page 157



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
8
 

3
. 

Im
m

u
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 V
a
c

c
in

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

b
le

 d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 

 Im
m

u
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 u

p
ta

k
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
h
o

o
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 r

e
m

a
in

 g
e

n
e
ra

lly
 g

o
o

d
 a

s
 d

o
e

s
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
z
a

 v
a

c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 u

p
ta

k
e

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 
p

e
o
p

le
 

a
g
e

d
 6

5
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 o
ld

e
r.

 D
u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1
2

-2
0

1
4

, 
s
e

v
e

ra
l 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t
o

 t
h
e
 c

h
ild

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
 i
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 w

it
h

in
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 i
n

 a
c
c
o

rd
a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
. 

T
h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 a
n

 M
M

R
 c

a
tc

h
-u

p
 i
n
 2

0
1
2

 f
o

r 
u

n
im

m
u
n

is
e
d

 a
n
d

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 i
m

m
u

n
is

e
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 o

f 
m

e
a

s
le

s
 i
n

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
W

a
le

s
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
E

u
ro

p
e

. 
A

 U
K

-w
id

e
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
 o

f 
w

h
o

o
p

in
g
 c

o
u
g
h

 w
h

ic
h
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e
d

 i
n

 2
0
1

2
 h

a
s
 n

e
c
e

s
s
it
a

te
d

 t
h

e
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
n

 o
ff

e
r 

o
f 

a
 

b
o

o
s
te

r 
im

m
u
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

w
o

m
e

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 p

re
g
n

a
n

c
y
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
ir
 b

a
b

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
w

e
e

k
s
 o

f 
lif

e
. 
In

 2
0

1
3

, 
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
n
e

w
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t-

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 v
a

c
c
in

e
s
 s

a
w

 R
o
ta

 v
ir
u

s
 v

a
c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 i
n
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 f
o

r 
a
ll 

b
a

b
ie

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 f

ir
s
t 

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 o

f 
in

fa
n

c
y
 a

n
d

 
S

h
in

g
le

s
 v

a
c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
. 

C
h
a

n
g
e
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 M

e
n

in
g
o

c
o

c
c
a

l 
C

 v
a

c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 

b
o

o
s
te

r 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

is
 d

e
v
a

s
ta

ti
n

g
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

e
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 a

d
u

lt
s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
2

0
1
3

 s
a
w

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 r
o
ll-

o
u

t 
o
f 

s
e
a

s
o

n
a

l 
fl
u

 v
a

c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 t
o

 p
re

-s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

n
d

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 a
g
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
o
ff

e
ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 v
a

c
c
in

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
n

u
a

lly
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e
d

 b
e
tw

e
e

n
 2

 a
n

d
 1

7
 y

e
a

rs
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a

rs
. 

 

A
c

ti
o

n
  

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
ill

: 
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
c
h

ild
 a

n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 v

a
c
c
in

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

4
 -

 2
0

1
6

. 
 

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 u
p

d
a

te
 o

u
r 

e
x
is

ti
n
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 f

o
r 

v
a

c
c
in

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ta

b
le

 d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
m

e
rg

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

. 

4
. 

T
u

b
e
rc

u
lo

s
is

 (
T

B
) 

 

T
h
e

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 T

B
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 w

a
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl
y
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

2
0

1
1

. 
F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

p
re

v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

T
u

b
e

rc
u
lo

s
is

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 o

u
r 

p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 m
a

n
a

g
e

 T
u

b
e

rc
u
lo

s
is

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
m

a
in

 f
ir
m

ly
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
re

c
e
n

t 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 

g
o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 

 F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

r 
n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
T

B
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 n
o

ti
fi
e
d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

-2
0
1

2
, 

c
a

s
e

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3
 w

h
e

n
 o

n
c
e

 a
g
a

in
 o

v
e

r 
5
0

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
e

 d
is

e
a

s
e

 w
e

re
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

y
e

a
r.

 T
B

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

lly
 l
if
e

 t
h

re
a

te
n

in
g
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u
ir
in

g
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
m

o
n

th
s
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

le
x
 a

n
ti
b

io
ti
c
 t

re
a
tm

e
n

t 
to

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 

Page 158



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
9
 

c
u

re
 a

n
d

 s
o
 t

h
is

 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

c
o
n

c
e

rn
. 

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 e
ff

o
rt

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 

to
 b

e
 n

e
e

d
e

d
 t

o
 m

in
im

is
e

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
ra

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
. 

 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 l
e

a
d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
T

B
 c

a
s
e
s
, 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

tr
a
c
in

g
 a

n
d
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
ts

 i
n

 l
ia

is
o

n
 w

it
h

 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

 
N

e
w

 e
n

tr
a
n

t 
s
c
re

e
n

in
g
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
o

s
e

 i
n
d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 p
re

s
e

n
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 

p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 r
is

k
. 

 

5
. 

  
 G

a
s

tr
o

in
te

s
ti

n
a
l 
il
ln

e
s

s
  

G
a

s
tr

o
in

te
s
ti
n

a
l 
(G

I)
 a

n
d

 z
o

o
n

o
ti
c
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 p
o

s
e

 a
 c

le
a

r 
a
n

d
 p

re
s
e
n

t 
d

a
n

g
e

r 
in

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

. 
T

h
e
 i
n

c
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
o

m
e

 G
I 

in
fe

c
ti
o
n

s
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
rl
y
 E

 c
o

li 
O

1
5

7
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n

, 
a

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

in
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 t

h
a
n

 t
h
e

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

. 
T

h
is

 m
a

y
 b

e
 a

tt
ri
b
u

te
d
 t

o
 t
h

e
 l
a

rg
e

 
ru

ra
l 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 l
a

rg
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 o

n
 p

ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
h

ic
h
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

s
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
e

x
p

o
s
u

re
 t

o
 

a
n

im
a

l 
fa

e
c
e

s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 c

o
n

c
e

rt
e
d
 e

ff
o

rt
 b

y
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 T
e
a

m
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
C

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 i
n

 s
u

rv
e

ill
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
G

I 
ill

n
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 i
n

 r
a
is

in
g
 p

u
b

lic
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
in

fe
c
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 

o
n

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 
h

a
s
 l
e
d

 t
o
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
E

 c
o

li 
O

1
5

7
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
G

I 
in

fe
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 r
e
c
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
A

 R
e

p
o

rt
 o

n
 t

h
e

 E
p

id
e
m

io
lo

g
y
 o

f 
G

a
s
tr

o
in

te
s
ti
n
a

l 
In

fe
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 i
n
 2

0
1

2
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 W

e
b

s
it
e
. 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 H
e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 T
e
a

m
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 b

u
ild

 o
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

u
b

lic
 i
s
 p

ro
te

c
te

d
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 m
e
n

a
c
e

 o
f 

G
I 

ill
n

e
s
s
e

s
 

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 H
e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 i
n
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 t

h
re

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 t

h
e

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 

o
f 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
  

Page 159



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
0

 

6
. 

S
e

x
u

a
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 B
lo

o
d

 B
o

rn
e

 V
ir

u
s

e
s

 (
H

e
p

a
ti

ti
s

 B
, 

H
e
p

a
ti

ti
s

 C
 a

n
d

 H
IV

) 
 

B
lo

o
d

 b
o

rn
e

 v
ir
u

s
 d

is
e
a

s
e

s
 (

B
B

V
: 

H
IV

, 
h

e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 B

, 
h
e

p
a
ti
ti
s
 C

) 
a
re

 a
 m

a
jo

r 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

. 
In

 t
h

e
 U

K
 i
t 
is

 
e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n
fe

c
te

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
s
e

 v
ir
u

s
e

s
 a

re
 u

n
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

in
fe

c
ti
o
n

s
 

a
re

 i
n

 m
ig

ra
n

ts
 f

ro
m

 c
o
u

n
tr

ie
s
 w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
a

le
n

c
e
 o

f 
B

B
V

s
 a

re
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
. 

In
 2

0
1

1
 t
h

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

p
u
b

lis
h

e
d

 a
 S

e
x
u

a
l 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 B

lo
o
d

 B
o

rn
e

 V
ir
u

s
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 2
0
1

1
-1

5
 w

h
ic

h
 o

u
tl
in

e
d

 t
h

e
 v

is
io

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 s
e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 (
S

H
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 B
B

V
 

d
is

e
a

s
e

s
 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

. 
T

h
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 r

e
it
e

ra
te

s
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d
 f

o
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
e

d
-u

p
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
th

ir
d

 s
e

c
to

r 
a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 a

n
d

 B
B

V
 d

is
e
a

s
e

s
. 
 

In
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 B

B
V

 w
o

rk
 i
s
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
H

 a
n

d
 B

B
V

 M
a

n
a

g
e

d
 C

a
re

 N
e

tw
o

rk
 (

M
C

N
) 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 M
C

N
 s

e
ts

 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 S

H
/B

B
V

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

In
 2

0
1

2
/1

3
 f

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r,

 t
h

e
 S

H
/B

B
V

 M
C

N
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

e
re

; 
 

 
P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
u
n

in
te

n
d
e

d
 p

re
g
n
a

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
a

b
o

rt
io

n
  

 
In

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

B
B

V
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 i
n
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d
  

 
C

a
re

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 w
it
h

 h
e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 B

, 
h

e
p
a

ti
ti
s
 C

 a
n
d

 H
IV

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
s
. 
 

S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 S

H
/B

B
V

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
, 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 M

C
N

 a
n
d

 i
n

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 i
ts

 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 h

a
s
  

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

 H
IV

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

 

 
R

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 

d
ri
e
d

 b
lo

o
d

 s
p

o
t 

(D
B

S
) 

te
s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 n
o

n
 N

H
S

 s
it
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

 d
ru

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 

n
e

e
d

le
 e

x
c
h

a
n

g
e

 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 i
n

je
c
t 

d
ru

g
s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 h

e
p
a

ti
ti
s
 B

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 r

e
p
e

a
t 
a

b
o

rt
io

n
, 
in

c
re

a
s
e

d
 B

B
V

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 p
ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
, 

w
o

rk
p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 u

n
iv

e
rs

it
y
 s

e
tt

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 v
ir
a

l 
h

e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 a

n
d

 H
IV

. 

Page 160



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
1

 

A
c

ti
o

n
s

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
ill

: 
 

 
C

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 n

o
v
e

l 
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 ‘
h

a
rd

 t
o
 r

e
a

c
h

’ 
a

t 
ri
s
k
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n
 

 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 H

B
V

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 g

a
p

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

. 
 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

e
 r

e
p

e
a

t 
a
b

o
rt

io
n

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 g

a
p

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 
 

W
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 w
o

rk
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
3

rd
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 

w
it
h

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 B

B
V

 d
is

e
a

s
e
 i
n
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
. 

7
. 

H
e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 A

s
s

o
c
ia

te
d

 I
n

fe
c

ti
o

n
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
th

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 I
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 (

H
A

I)
 W

o
rk

 p
la

n
, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

H
e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
In

s
p

e
c
to

ra
te

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

C
lo

s
tr

id
iu

m
 d

if
fi
c
ile

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
, 

 S
ta

p
h

y
lo

c
o

c
c
u

s
 a

u
re

u
s
 b

a
c
te

ra
e
m

ia
 a

n
d

 s
u

rg
ic

a
l 
s
it
e

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
in

 a
ll 

h
e
a

lt
h

 
c
a

re
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

. 
S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d
 w

e
b

 s
it
e

 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.h
p

s
.s

c
o

t.
n

h
s
.u

k
/h

a
iic

/s
s
h

a
ip

/i
n

d
e

x
.a

s
p

x
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
: 

 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 I
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 f
o

r 
s
u

rv
e

ill
a
n

c
e

, 
a

n
d

 m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
 

 
E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 i
n

fe
c
ti
o
n

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 c
o
n

tr
o
l 
p
o

lic
ie

s
, 
p

ro
to

c
o

ls
 a

n
d

 g
u

id
e

lin
e

s
 

 
P

ro
v
id

in
g
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 i
n

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o
n

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
fo

r 
a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 -

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

o
s
e

 i
n

 t
h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 

 
Im

p
le

m
e

n
ti
n

g
 q

u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 o
f 

h
e
a

lt
h

c
a

re
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 

Page 161



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
2

 

  8
. 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

 w
it

h
in

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

  
  
 L

o
c
a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
te

c
ti

o
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
ls

 w
it

h
in

 L
o

c
a
l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
C

it
y
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e

 
M

o
ra

y
 

N
o

te
s
 a

n
d

 l
in

k
e
d

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

s
 

M
o
n

it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 a

ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
  

 
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
N

o
 

D
e
ta

ile
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 a

n
d
 n

o
 A

ir
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
c
la

re
d
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
o
n
it
o
rs

 n
it
ro

g
e
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 l
e

v
e
ls

 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

u
rb

a
n
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

A
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 m
a
d
e
 o

f 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
m

a
y
 g

iv
e
 r

is
e
 t

o
 a

ir
 q

u
a

lit
y
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 b

io
m

a
s
s
 b

o
ile

rs
. 

 h
tt

p
s
:/
/a

b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
P

ro
g
re

s
s
R

e
p
o

rt
_

2
0
1
1
.p

d
f 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h

 S
c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
3
 A

ir
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a
s
 (

A
Q

M
A

s
) 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
c
la

re
d
: 
 

C
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
; 
W

e
lli

n
g
to

n
 R

o
a
d
 (

Q
u
e
e
n
 E

liz
a
b
e
th

 I
I 

B
ri
d
g

e
 –

 
B

a
ln

a
g

a
s
k
 R

d
);

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 A

n
d
e
rs

o
n
 D

r/
H

a
u
d
ig

a
in

 
rb

t/
A

u
c
h
m

ill
 R

d
 c

o
rr

id
o
r 

A
n
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

d
e
ta

ili
n
g

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

ir
 q

u
a
lit

y
 i
n
 t

h
e
 3

 A
ir
 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
A

re
a
s
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 

a
n
d
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
3
. 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 c
o
m

p
le

te
s
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

p
o
rt

s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 

Page 162



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
3

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g

u
id

a
n
c
e
. 
 N

o
 D

e
ta

ile
d
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 p

o
llu

ta
n
ts

 w
e
re

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
q

u
ir
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
3
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 n

o
 A

ir
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

A
re

a
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
c
la

re
d
. 
 N

it
ro

g
e
n
 d

io
x
id

e
 

le
v
e

ls
 a

re
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

t 
1
7
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
 F

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 

o
p
e
n
in

g
 i
n
 2

0
1
2
 o

f 
th

e
 A

9
6
 F

o
c
h
a
b
e
rs

 –
 M

o
s
s
to

d
lo

c
h
 

B
y
p
a
s
s
, 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
o
u
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

le
v
e

ls
 a

t 
th

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

o
in

t 
in

 F
o
c
h
a
b
e
rs

 H
ig

h
 S

tr
e
e
t 

d
u
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 f
lo

w
. 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
o
ra

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/f

ile
8
6
8
4
8
.p

d
f 

 

C
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
n
o
is

e
/ 

a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

n
o
is

e
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g

 n
o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
V

is
it
s
 a

re
 

m
a
d
e
 o

u
tw

it
h
 n

o
rm

a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
 h

o
u
rs

 o
n
 a

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 b

a
s
is

. 
A

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

e
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

o
n
 c

e
rt

a
in

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 n

o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
T

h
e

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

ls
o
 l
ia

is
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
ils

 A
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n
d
 a

 m
e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
in

d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l/
in

d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
’s

 A
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
(A

S
B

IT
),

  
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o
u
rs

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 

d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 n

o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

, 
tr

a
n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

S
a
fe

ty
 t

e
a
m

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
. 
 T

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

s
 a

ll 
o
th

e
r 

n
o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
  

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 c

a
m

e
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
N

o
is

e
 D

ir
e
c
ti
v
e
 (

E
N

D
) 

in
 2

0
1
3
 w

h
e
n
 t

h
e
 C

it
y
’s

 
tr

a
n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 w
a
s
 m

a
p
p
e
d
 f

o
r 

n
o
is

e
. 
 T

h
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
a
p
s
 w

e
re

 u
s
e
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 C
a
n
d
id

a
te

 N
o
is

e
 

Page 163



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
4

 

M
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

A
re

a
s
 (

(N
M

A
s
) 

a
n
d
 C

a
n
d
id

a
te

 Q
u
ie

t 
A

re
a
s
 

(C
Q

A
s
).

  
A

 d
ra

ft
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
  

N
o
is

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 (

N
A

P
) 

p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 

h
o
w

 n
o
is

e
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

N
M

A
s
 a

n
d
 C

Q
A

s
.  

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 
fo

r 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
n
g

 n
o
is

e
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
 T

h
e
 A

n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
B

e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

T
e
a
m

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 i
ts

 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

a
rd

e
n
s
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 n

o
is

e
 

c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

.V
is

it
s
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 o

u
tw

it
h
 n

o
rm

a
l 
w

o
rk

in
g
 h

o
u
rs

 
o
n
 a

 p
re

-a
rr

a
n
g

e
d
 b

a
s
is

. 
 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n

 a
n
d
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 l
a
n
d
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d
 t
e
a
m

 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 s

it
e

 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

P
a
rt

 
II

A
 o

f 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
0
, 
a
n
d
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
y
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 
fr

o
m

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 4
 f

o
rm

a
lly

 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

C
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d
 s

it
e
s
 i
n
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
, 
o
n
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

te
d
 a

n
d
 2

 o
th

e
rs

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 

re
m

e
d
ia

l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
. 
T

h
e
 f
o
rt

h
 s

it
e
 

is
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 S

E
P

A
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
s
tr

a
te

g
y
/i
n

d
e
x
.a

s
p
 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 C

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d
 t

e
a
m

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

s
 i
ts

 a
re

a
 f
o
r 

s
it
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 h
is

to
ri
c
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 

p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 r

is
k
 t
o
 h

u
m

a
n
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

r 
th

e
 w

id
e
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
  

W
e
 a

ls
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

s
it
e
s
 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
fo

r 
c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 r
e
m

e
d
ia

te
d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 

th
e
m

 s
u
it
a
b
le

 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 n

e
w

 u
s
e
. 

  

Page 164



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
5

 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
ts

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 C

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 L

a
n
d
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
3
. 
 P

o
te

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
 s

it
e
s
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

a
in

ly
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 s

c
re

e
n
e
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 

s
u
it
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 s

it
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t s

. 
 I
n
 

2
0
1
3
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

u
n
d
e
rt

o
o
k
 t

h
e
 r

e
m

e
d
ia

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

re
in

s
ta

te
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
tw

o
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
g

a
rd

e
n
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 s

it
e

 o
f 
th

e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

F
o
c
h
a
b
e
rs

 g
a
s
 w

o
rk

s
. 
 T

h
e
 g

ro
u
n
d
w

o
rk

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

E
lg

in
 F

lo
o
d
 A

lle
v
ia

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o
r 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

in
d
u
s
tr

ia
l 
s
it
e
s
 w

it
h
 s

o
il 

fr
o
m

 s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 s
it
e
s
 

b
e
in

g
 t
re

a
te

d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
u
s
e
d
 i
n
 f

lo
o
d
 e

m
b
a
n
k
m

e
n
ts

 

a
n
d
 r

e
s
to

ra
ti
o
n
 w

o
rk

s
.  

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
o
ra

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/f

ile
8
8
4
6
7
.p

d
f 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
o
ra

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/f

ile
8
8
4
6
8
.p

d
f 

In
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
n
u
is

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 o

w
n
e
rs

 e
tc

 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

, 
n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
rs

 e
tc

. 
h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
s
tr

a
te

g
y
/i
n

d
e
x
.a

s
p
 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
in

v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

s
 o

f 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

m
a
y
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
. 

 T
h

e
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 t
a
k
e
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

b
a
te

 t
h
e
 

n
u
is

a
n
c
e
 e

g
. 
G

iv
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

r 
ta

k
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 

a
g

a
in

s
t 
o
w

n
e
rs

 o
r 

a
u
th

o
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
. 

Page 165



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
6

 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 

o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
a
k
e

s
 t

h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

b
a
te

 a
n
y
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
th

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o
 m

a
y
 b

e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
. 

M
o
n

it
o
r 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

 
s
e
t 

u
p
 b

y
 G

y
p
s
y
/T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
. 
 T

h
e
 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 

id
e
n
ti
fy

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
ra

n
s
it
 s

it
e
s
  

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

m
a
n
a
g

in
g
 u

n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 p

o
lic

y
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
  

O
ff

ic
e
r/

M
e
m

b
e
r 

S
u
b
 C

m
t 
m

e
e
ts

 r
e
g

u
la

rl
y
 t

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
r 

G
y
p
s
y
 T

ra
v
e
lle

r 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a

 
tr

a
n
s
it
 s

it
e
 a

t 
A

ik
e
y
 B

ra
e
,M

in
tl
a

w
:a

 d
e
c
is

io
n
 o

n
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

to
 

p
ro

c
e
e
d
 w

it
h
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
. 

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 a

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 G

R
E

C
(G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 R

e
g

io
n
a
l 
E

q
u
a
lit

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il)

 t
o
 

a
d
d
re

s
s
 G

y
p
s
y
/T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

ri
v
a
te

h
o
u
s
in

g
/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

  
 W

it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
, 

u
n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 G

y
p
s
y
 T

ra
v
e
lle

rs
 L

ia
is

o
n
 O

ff
ic

e
r,

 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

e
a
ls

 w
it
h
 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 n

u
is

a
n
c
e
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
s
e
 e

n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

. 
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 u

n
a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 e

n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 n

o
ti
fi
e
s
 o

th
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
 U

n
a
u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 

e
n
c
a
m

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

to
c
o
l 
a
n
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 

P
e
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 

Page 166



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
7

 

 
a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 s

e
a
g

u
ll 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
n
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1

4
, 

o
ff

e
ri
n
g
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 a
t 
p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 

ra
te

s
. 
T

h
e
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 l
a
s
t 
fo

r 
3
 y

e
a
rs

.  
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
p
e
s
ts

/i
n
d
e

x
.a

s
p
 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 a

ll 
p
e
s
t 
m

a
tt
e
rs

. 
 W

h
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
h
e
 p

e
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
ill

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

ro
d
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 

in
s
e
c
t 

in
fe

s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
h
a
rg

e
 f
o
r 

a
n
y
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.

 
 T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 p

e
s
t 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

tr
e
a
ts

 r
o
d
e
n
t 

a
n
d
 i
n
s
e
c
t 
in

fe
s
ta

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g

re
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 H

o
u
s
in

g
, 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t
re

a
t 
p
e
s
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 

p
re

m
is

e
s
. 
T

h
e
 P

e
s
t 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

a
ls

o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 A

n
im

a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 /
W

e
lf
a
re

 a
n
d
 D

o
g
 W

a
rd

e
n
 d

u
ti
e
s
. 

 

P
ro

m
o
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 d

o
g
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 
a
n
d
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 s

tr
a
y
 d

o
g

s
. 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 w
ill

 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
it
s
 A

n
ti
 d

o
g

-
fo

u
lin

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
. 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

tr
ik

e
s
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t.
 A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 t

o
 s

e
rv

e
 f

ix
e
d
 p

e
n
a
lt
y
 

n
o
ti
c
e
s
. 
A

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g

e
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 d

o
g

 o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
n
 1

4
/1

5
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

n
im

a
ls

/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 T

e
a
m

 
c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 c

it
y
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 d

o
g
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
 I
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

Page 167



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
8

 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
ro

m
o
te

 a
n
d
 

e
d
u
c
a
te

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 o
f 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 d

o
g

 
o
w

n
e
rs

h
ip

.  
 T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
ro

m
o
te

s
 t

h
e
 G

re
e
n
 D

o
g

 W
a
lk

e
rs

 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

lo
n
g

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
 A

n
im

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

a
n
d
 P

e
s
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

d
e
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

ll 
s
tr

a
y
/l
o
s
t 

d
o
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 

e
n
fo

rc
e
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 

D
o
g

s
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 
2
0
1
0
 w

it
h
 2

 
d
o
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
n
o
ti
c
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 d

u
ri

n
g
 2

0
1
3
/1

4
. 
 T

h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 a

 t
h
re

e
 f

o
ld

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

o
g

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 d
u
ri
n
g

 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 
 

M
in

im
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 t
o
 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

e
v
it
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

d
o
g
 f

o
u
lin

g
, 

ill
e
g

a
l 
d
u
m

p
in

g
 a

n
d
 

g
ra

ff
it
i.
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 W
a
s
te

 C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 f

ly
ti
p
p
in

g
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t/

in
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 W

it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 -

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 j
o
in

tl
y
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 

te
a
m

s
. 
 T

h
e
 C

it
y
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 a

n
d
 D

o
g
 W

a
rd

e
n
s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
p
a
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 i
s
s
u
e
 F

P
N

’s
 f

o
r 

d
o
g
 f

o
u
lin

g
. 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 s

h
a
re

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
s
e

 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
 T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

re
m

o
v
e
s
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
fr

e
e
 o

f 
c
h
a
rg

e
. 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 w

a
rd

e
n
s
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

d
o
g

 f
o
u
lin

g
 a

n
d
 f

ly
 t
ip

p
in

g
 

p
a
tr

o
ls

. 
5
 f
ix

e
d
 p

e
n
a
lt
y
 n

o
ti
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
s
s
u
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
3
. 

 
A

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 o

n
 d

o
g

 f
o
u
lin

g
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
, 

in
v
o
lv

in
g

 t
h
e
 w

a
rd

e
n
s
, 

lo
c
a
l 
g

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
. 

 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 

w
in

d
 t

u
rb

in
e
s
 f

o
r 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 h

a
s
 a

 c
o
re

 

Page 168



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
1
9

 

n
o
is

e
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
d
o
w

 f
lic

k
e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 o

f 
n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rs

.  

te
a
m

 t
h
a
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
te

 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
A

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

re
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t
o
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

e
rm

is
s
io

n
s
. 
T

w
o
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
A

b
a
te

m
e
n
t 
N

o
ti
c
e
s
 a

re
 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
. 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
/1

5
 t

a
k
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

lo
c
a
l 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
in

 n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 r
e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
.  

  h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t/

in
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e

s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
e
n
ts

 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 
 T

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
w

o
rk

lo
a
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

ls
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 

n
o
is

e
 f

ro
m

 e
x
is

ti
n
g

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
s
.  

 

 

B
U

IL
T

 E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 
 

 
 

 
 

 Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 s

u
b
-s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
iv

in
g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 t

a
k
in

g
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
e
g

a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
iv

in
g

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
. 
T

h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 p

ri
v
a
te

ly
 

te
n
a
n
te

d
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
. 

A
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t

a
k
e
n
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

o
s
e
 

la
n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

h
a
t 

d
o
n
’t
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n

c
e
 

w
it
h
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

Page 169



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
0

 

w
w

w
.b

e
tt

e
rr

e
n
ti
n
g

s
c
o
tl
a
n
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

ri
v
a
te

h
o
u
s
in

g
/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

  
 W

it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 d

e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 

b
y
 t

h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
. 
 T

h
e
y
 a

re
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 

fo
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 

a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
d
w

e
lli

n
g

s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 i
n
 a

 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 s

ta
te

 o
f 

re
p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
re

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 o
ff

ic
e
rs

 
w

ill
 t

a
k
e
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 a
c
ti
o
n
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 l
iv

in
g

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
. 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 t

a
k
e

s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

a
c
ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 h

o
u
s
e
s
 f
a
il 

to
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
o
le

ra
b
le

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 

a
ls

o
 w

h
e
n
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 a
re

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g
 p

o
o
r 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 a

n
d
 d

is
re

p
a
ir
. 
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 i
s
 a

ls
o

 

e
n
g

a
g

e
d
 i
n
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
id

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t

o
 b

ri
n
g
 l
o
n
g

 t
e
rm

 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 b

a
c
k
 i
n
to

 u
s
e
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
a
d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

h
o
rt

a
g

e
. 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
e
a
n
s
, 

b
y
 w

a
y
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
, 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

g
ra

n
ts

, 
to

 e
n
a
b
le

 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
. 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 s

ta
te

s
 

th
e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 

p
ra

c
ti
c
a
l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 f

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
h
e
lp

 c
a
n
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 

a
d
a
p
ta

ti
o
n
s
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

w
o
rk

s
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
 C

a
re

 a
n
d
 R

e
p
a
ir
 P

ro
je

c
t 
to

 h
e
lp

 p
e
o
p
le

 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
6
0
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 t

h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

o
 c

a
rr

y
 

o
u
t 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 

liv
e
 a

t 
h
o
m

e
 

w
w

w
.c

a
s
tl
e
h
ill

.c
o
.u

k
 

 In
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 U

n
it
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 

a
d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

u
b
lic

 o
n
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
S

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
n
d
 a

ls
o
 a

d
m

in
is

te
rs

 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 

Page 170



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
1

 

a
p
p
ro

v
in

g
 g

ra
n
t 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
k
in

g
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

g
ra

n
ts

.  
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
’s

 H
o
m

e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 T

e
a
m

 i
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

M
o
ra

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
A

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 t

h
e
 

a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 g

ra
n
ts

. 

S
e
e
k
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 o

f 
p
ri
v
a
te

 r
e
n
te

d
 

h
o
u
s
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 L

a
n
d
lo

rd
 

R
e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
. 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

W
it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
, 
M

o
ra

y
 a

n
d

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
, 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
 R

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
.  

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 l
ia

is
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

 r
a
n
g

e
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

re
 f

it
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
p
e
r.

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

to
 a

s
s
is

t 
la

n
d
lo

rd
s
 t

o
 m

a
n
a
g

e
 

th
e
ir
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
.  

 h
tt

p
s
:/
/w

w
w

.l
a
n
d
lo

rd
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
s
c
o
tl
a
n
d
.g

o
v
.u

k
/P

a
g

e
s
/P

ro
c
e
s
s
.a

s
p
x
?
C

o
m

m
a
n
d
=

S
h
o
w

H
o
m

e
P

a
g

e
 

 

S
e
e
k
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 h
o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 m

u
lt
ip

le
 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 (

H
M

O
s
) 

a
re

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e
 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 

S
c
o
tt

is
h
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
c
u
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a
l 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
. 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 H
M

O
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

id
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
, 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
H

M
O

s
, 
a
n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
. 
In

 2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

th
e
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
ill

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 j
o
in

t 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 

w
it
h
 P

o
lic

e
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
, 
Im

m
ig

ra
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 

R
e
s
c
u
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 t

a
rg

e
t 
s
u
s
p
e
c
te

d
 u

n
lic

e
n
c
e
d
 H

M
O

s
, 

w
it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t

o
 d

e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 u

n
s
u
it
a
b
le

 l
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 l
iv

in
g

 c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 o

f 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
ts

. 
h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

ri
v
a
te

h
o
u
s
in

g
/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 W

it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 H

o
u
s
e
s
 i
n
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 O

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

d
e
a
lt
 w

it
h
 b

y
 t

h
e
 P

ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
i n

g
 U

n
it
. 

 

Page 171



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
2

 

M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 H

M
O

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

in
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 d

e
a
ls

 w
it
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h
e
 l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 o

f 
H

M
O

s
 

a
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t,
 w

o
rk

in
g

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h

 

o
th

e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 F

ir
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
s
c
u
e
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 P

o
lic

e
 S

c
o
tl
a

n
d
. 

 

H
O

M
E

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 S
A

F
E

T
Y

 
F

O
O

D
 S

A
F

E
T

Y
 

 
 

 
 

H
o
m

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

 

ü
 

 
- 

W
it
h
in

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 H
o
m

e
 S

a
fe

ty
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t

o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 t

e
a
m

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1
1

. 

 P
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
r 

in
te

re
s
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 f
o
o
d
 b

y
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 F

S
A

, 
lo

c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 s
e
t 

ta
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 m

in
im

is
in

g
 

th
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 p

o
is

o
n
in

g
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

/ 
o
u
tb

re
a
k
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
a
n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

 

ü
   

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

d
u
c
e
s
 a

n
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
F

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 

F
e
e
d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d

 a
 R

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r’
s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 e

le
c
te

d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 I

n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 
In

 
a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

th
e
 F

o
o
d
 H

y
g

ie
n
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 

o
p
e
ra

te
d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
T

h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
E

a
t 

S
a
fe

 
a
w

a
rd

 f
o
r 

fo
o
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 a
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 o
f 
fo

o
d
 

h
y
g

ie
n
e
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fo

o
d
 l
a
w

 i
s
 

p
ro

m
o
te

d
 w

it
h
 4

0
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

tt
a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 a

w
a
rd

. 
 In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 a

n
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 

w
it
h
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
h
ig

h
 r

is
k
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 ,

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 
C

it
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 t

h
e
 “

E
a
ts

a
fe

” 
a
w

a
rd

 f
o
r 

h
ig

h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 
fo

o
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

 T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
ro

d
u
c
e
s
 a

 F
o
o
d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 F

S
A

  
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
/t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

p
la

n
s
. 
T

h
e
 F

o
o
d
 H

y
g

ie
n
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 E

a
t 

Page 172



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
3

 

S
a
fe

 a
re

 p
ro

m
o
te

d
. 
A

 h
ig

h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 i
s
 g

iv
e
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 b

o
rn

e
 d

is
e
a
s
e
s
 w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 

o
f 

a
ll 

c
a
s
e
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 2
4
 h

o
u
rs

.  
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
o
ra

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/f

ile
8
4
3
8
4
.p

d
f 

 

M
in

im
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
ill

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y
 o

c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

e
x
p
o
s
u
re

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

tr
e
s
s
) 

a
n
d
 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 s

a
fe

ty
, 
th

ro
u
g
h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

tc
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
v
e
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 f

o
r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 t

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 d

ro
p

-i
n
 

a
d
v
is

o
ry

 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 
a
c
ro

s
s
 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
. 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 
a
re

 
in

 
a
tt

e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 f
re

e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 

lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 d

u
ty

 h
o
ld

e
rs

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

re
a
. 

T
h
is

 c
o
v
e
rs

 
a
ll 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
  

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
la

n
 f

o
r 

  
o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 p

ro
je

c
t 
s
e
e
k
in

g
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

o
 

s
m

a
ll 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
..

  
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
d
h
e
re

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
C

o
d
e
 f
o
r 

it
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e
 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 i
ts

 

o
th

e
r 

re
g

u
la

to
ry

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
. 

 T
h
e
 r

is
k
 b

a
s
e
d
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 

lo
c
a
l 
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
.  

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
ic

e
n
c
e
 a

ll 
s
k
in

 
p
ie

rc
e
rs

 a
n
d
/o

r 
ta

tt
o
o
is

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

e
y
 c

o
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
,A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 
C

it
y
 

a
n

d
 

M
o

ra
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

s
 

lic
e
n
c
e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 
w

h
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 

s
k
in

 
p
ie

rc
in

g
 

a
n
d
 

ta
tt
o
o
in

g
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

a
s
 

a
 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 

C
iv

ic
 

Page 173



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
4

 

in
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

o
s
e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
a
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 s

p
re

a
d
 o

f 
in

fe
c
ti
o
n

 
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

(S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

1
9
8
2
 

(L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

o
f 

S
k
in

 
P

ie
rc

in
g

 a
n
d
 T

a
tt
o
o
in

g
) 

O
rd

e
r 

2
0
0
6
. 

 
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

a
fe

ty
/l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
/G

u
id

e
_

V
e
rs

io
n
_
1
-6

.p
d
f 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/o

n
lin

e
/l
ic

e
n
s
e
s
/t
a
tt
o
o
.a

s
p
 

  h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.m
o
ra

y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/d

o
w

n
lo

a
d
s
/f

ile
9
1
9
3
1
.p

d
f 

  

A
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
s
p
e
c
t 
a
n
d
 

re
g

u
la

te
 s

u
n
b
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 P

u
b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h
 

e
tc

 (
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

A
c
t 

2
0
0
8
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 r
e
g

u
la

te
s
 t

h
e
 s

a
le

 a
n
d
 h

ir
e
 o

f 
s
u
n
b
e
d
s
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 
p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
, 

w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
h
ib

it
 o

p
e
ra

to
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

llo
w

in
g

 u
s
e
 o

f 
s
u
n
b
e
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
ir
 p

re
m

is
e
s
 b

y
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
; 
p
ro

h
ib

it
 

o
p
e
ra

to
rs

 f
ro

m
 a

llo
w

in
g

 u
n
s
u
p
e
rv

is
e
d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
u
n
b
e
d
s
 o

n
 

th
e
ir
 p

re
m

is
e
s
; 

p
ro

h
ib

it
 t
h
e
 s

a
le

 o
r 

h
ir
e
 o

f 
s
u
n

b
e
d
s
 t

o
 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

1
8
. 
R

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 v
is

it
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
4

-1
5
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
4
/1

5
 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 r
e
g

u
la

te
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
, 
s
a
le

 a
n
d
 h

ir
e
 o

f 
s
u
n
b
e
d
s
 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
s
. 

 O
v
e
r 

re
c
e
n
t 
y
e
a
rs

 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 i
n
 M

o
ra

y
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
u
n
b
e
d
s
 

h
a
s
 g

ra
d
u
a
lly

 f
a
lle

n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
4
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 n
o
w

 o
n
ly

 t
w

o
 

ta
n
n
in

g
 s

a
lo

n
s
. 

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

’ 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
 

re
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
, 

p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 

5
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 3

 
A

d
m

in
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 d
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 p

e
rt

a
in

in
g

 t
o
 p

ri
v
a
te

 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
. 
T

h
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
g

ra
n
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 

Page 174



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
5

 

w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
 g

ra
n
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
, 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.  

a
n
n
u
a
lly

 i
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 £

3
0

0
 a

n
d
 £

4
0
0
K

. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

ri
v
a
te

 e
s
ta

te
s
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e

 
th

e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
w

a
te

r 
s
a
fe

ty
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
. 

P
u
b
lic

it
y
 i
s
 t

o
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n

 
1
4
/1

5
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 m

o
re

 u
s
e
rs

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 s

u
p
p
lie

s
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
w

a
te

r.
a
s
p

 
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.p
ri
v
a
te

w
a
te

rs
u
p
p
lie

s
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

ri
v
a
te

_
w

a
te

r/
C

C
C

_
F

ir
s
tP

a
g

e
.j
s
p
 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

: 
T

h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

T
e
a
m

 c
a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
th

e
 d

u
ti
e
s
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 p

ri
v
a
te

 w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
. 

U
p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
g

ra
n
ts

 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 

e
n
q

u
ir
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
e
b
s
it
e
:  

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
/p

la
n
n
in

g
_

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t/
e

n
v

ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l/
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l_
h
e
a
lt
h
/p

o
l_

W
a
te

r_
p
o
llu

ti
o
n

.a
s
p
 

T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
re

s
e
n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 2

 f
u
ll 

ti
m

e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 
in

v
o

lv
e
d
 i
n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
2
-2

0
1
3
 t

h
e
re

 
w

a
s
 g

ra
n
ts

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 a

re
a
 i
n
 a

n
 o

n
g

o
in

g
 

e
ff

o
rt

 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 t
h
e
 u

p
ta

k
e
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
lie

s
. 
 £

8
8
,0

4
4
.9

8
 i
n
 p

ri
v
a
te

 w
a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
lie

s
 

g
ra

n
t 
w

a
s
 p

a
id

 o
u
t 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 1

s
t  J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 

3
1

s
t  D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
a
t 

s
a
m

e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

1
2
6
 g

ra
n
ts

 w
e
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f

o
r 

a
 f

ig
u
re

 o
f 

£
9
9
,6

2
9
.8

7
. 

D
u
ri
n
g

 2
0
1
3
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 b

y
 p

ri
v
a
te

 
w

a
te

r 
s
u
p
p
ly

 y
ie

ld
s
 f

a
ili

n
g
, 
g

e
n
e
ra

lly
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

ir
s
t 
ti
m

e
 i
n
 

th
e
ir
 k

n
o
w

n
 h

is
to

ry
, 

d
u
e
 t
o
 l
o
w

 g
ro

u
n
d
 w

a
te

r 
le

v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 

lo
w

 p
re

c
ip

it
a
ti
o
n
. 
S

in
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
ts

 i
n
 J

u
ly

 

Page 175



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
6

 

2
0
0
6
 t

o
 6

th
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
 a

 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 

£
4
9
0
,1

5
5
.8

2
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

p
a
id

 o
u
t,
 w

it
h
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
g
ra

n
ts

 d
u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 c

la
im

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

M
o
ra

y
 i
s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
k
e
y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

to
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt
is

h
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 
 

M
in

im
is

in
g

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 s

m
o
k
e
/ 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 e
x
p
o
s
u
re

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
, 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t,
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 i
n
 

p
u
b
lic

 p
la

c
e
s
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

th
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
m

o
k
in

g
 b

y
 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
n
g

 s
a
le

 o
f 

to
b
a
c
c
o
 p

ro
d
u
c
ts

 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
ra

g
e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 

ill
ic

it
 t

o
b
a
c
c
o
 s

a
le

s
. 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
g

u
la

te
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 

p
u
b
lic

 p
la

c
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 P

ro
h
ib

it
io

n
 o

f 
S

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 C

e
rt

a
in

 
P

la
c
e
s
 (

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
) 

R
e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 2

0
0
6
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
 d

u
ly

 a
u
th

o
ri
s
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/s

a
fe

ty
/c

le
a
ri
n
g

.a
s
p

 
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
’s

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 a

 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
te

s
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 c

it
y
 r

e
ta

ile
rs

, 
m

o
n
it
o
rs

 
ill

e
g

a
l 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 g

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
n
 

th
e
 r

e
g

is
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o
 r

e
ta

ile
rs

. 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a
m

 w
it
h
in

 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
/E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
t 

w
it
h
 S

m
o
k
in

g
 B

a
n
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n

. 
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 c

o
m

p
ly

 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 b

a
n
n
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 p

u
b
lic

 p
la

c
e
s
. 
 V

e
ry

 

fe
w

 c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 o
f 

n
o
n
-c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 

c
o
n
c
e
rn

 m
a
in

ly
 s

m
o
k
in

g
 i
n
 w

o
rk

 v
e
h
ic

le
s
. 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 c

a
rr

ie
s
 o

u
t 
a
 t
o
b
a
c
c
o
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
 a

g
e
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t

e
s
t 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 ‘
in

te
g

ri
ty

 c
h
e
c
k
s
’,
 t
h
e
 b

a
n
 o

n
 v

e
n
d
in

g
 

m
a
c
h
in

e
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
ti
g

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
to

 i
lli

c
it
 s

a
le

s
 o

f 
to

b
a

c
c
o
 

Page 176



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
7

 

b
y
 u

n
re

g
is

te
re

d
 s

e
lle

rs
. 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
 a

lc
o
h
o
l 

c
o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 n

e
w

 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 –

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t,
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
w

a
re

n
e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 w

o
rk

 
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 4

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

O
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
h
o
 w

ill
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n
 j
o
in

t 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 

1
4
/1

5
 w

it
h
 P

o
lic

e
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 m

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

lic
e
n
c
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
. 

 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/l
ic

e
n
s
in

g
/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
  A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 h

a
s
  

2
  

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
o
 

a
re

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
  

in
 a

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 a

n
d
 a

ls
o
 

re
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

  
a
b
o
u
t 
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
d
 p

re
m

is
e
s
. 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 h

a
s
 0

.4
 F

T
E

 L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 w
h
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 o

n
 

a
lc

o
h
o
l 
lic

e
n
s
in

g
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 c

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 

fr
o
m

 c
o
n
s
u
m

e
rs

 a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 

P
ro

te
c
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 

w
e
lf
a
re

 a
n
d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

 a
n
d
 a

n
im

a
ls

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 r

a
is

in
g

 s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

e
s
 l
ic

e
n
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

th
e
s
e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
s
 

a
n
d
 c

a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
fa

rm
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 4

 A
n
im

a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
lf
a
re

 
In

s
p
e
c
to

rs
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
liv

e
s
to

c
k
 o

n
 

fa
rm

s
, 
a
t 
m

a
rk

e
ts

 a
n
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

a
ti
o
n
. 

A
n
 A

n
im

a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
lf
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 i
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
n
u
a
lly

 i
n
 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 A

H
V

L
A

.  
 h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/a

n
im

a
ls

/i
n
d
e
x
.a

s
p

 
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 m

a
k
in

g
 m

in
o
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 

A
n
im

a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 W

e
lf
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

 
w

it
h
  

A
H

V
  
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.  

 

Page 177



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
8

 

T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 h
a
s
 1

 A
n
im

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

w
h
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
s
 j
o
in

t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 f
a
rm

 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
im

a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 

fo
o
d
/f
e
e
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 

R
e
a
c
ti
v
e
 v

is
it
s
 a

re
 a

ls
o
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 

o
u
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 i
n
te

lli
g

e
n
c
e
 o

r 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 A

H
V

L
A

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g

 A
n
im

a
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 
a
n
d
 W

e
lf
a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 

u
p
d
a
te

d
. 

 

P
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 

w
e

ll -
b
e
in

g
 b

y
 p

ro
te

c
ti
n
g

 p
u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 a

d
v
is

o
ry

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
  

 

ü
 

 
- 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
p
e
ra

te
s
 a

 f
u
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

o
ff

e
ri
n
g

 a
 s

e
le

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
v
e
r 

1
2
 f

o
o
d
 a

n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
c
h
a
ri
ta

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
 a

n
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
A

 c
o
re

 F
o
o
d
 a

n
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a
m

 
p
ro

m
o
te

s
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
s
 h

y
g

ie
n
ic

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g
 a

t 
a
n
n
u
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
s
h
ir
e
, 
p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
F

o
o
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 W

e
e
k
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
ts

 o
n
 w

id
e
 a

n
d

 
v
a
ri
e
d
 t

o
p
ic

s
 f

o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 
c
o
lle

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 g

ro
u
p
s
. 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
fo

o
d
 

s
a
fe

ty
 w

e
e
k
 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 h

e
a
lt
h
y
 e

a
ti
n
g

. 
  

A
b
e
rd

e
e
n
 C

it
y
 a

ls
o
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 F

o
o
d
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
 F

o
o
d
 H

y
g

ie
n
e
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 

p
u
b
lis

h
in

g
 

fo
o
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 o

n
lin

e
. 

P
a
n
d
e
m

ic
 f

lu
 p

re
p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s
 

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

In
 A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 a

n
d

 M
o

ra
y
 t

h
is

 i
s
 

o
rg

a
n
is

e
d
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t

h
e
 E

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
ra

d
o
n
 

g
a
s
 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 p

re
m

is
e
s
.  

 
ü

 
ü

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 l
ia

is
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 

A
g

e
n
c
y
. 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 r

e
c
o
g

n
is

e
d
 a

re
a
 o

f 
h
ig

h
 r

a
d
o
n
 

Page 178



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
2
9

 

le
v
e

ls
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 r

a
d
o
n
 m

a
p
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 i
n
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
h
o
ts

p
o
ts

. 
 

R
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 o
ff

e
re

d
 f
re

e
 r

a
d
o
n
 s

a
m

p
lin

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

P
S

 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
4
.  

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 o
ff

e
rs

 a
d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
te

s
ts

 f
o
r 

ra
d
o
n
 

a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 A

g
e
n
c
y
. 

In
s
p
e

c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
o
rt

 
h
e
a
lt
h
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
. 

 B
o
rd

e
r 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 p

o
s
t 
lo

c
a
te

d
 a

t 
P

e
te

rh
e
a
d
 

h
a
rb

o
u
r.

 

 
ü

 
ü

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 v
e
s
s
e
l 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

t 
th

e
 p

o
rt

s
 o

f 
P

e
te

rh
e
a
d
 a

n
d
 F

ra
s
e
rb

u
rg

h
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

is
s
u
e
 o

f 
s
h
ip

 s
a
n
it
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 h

y
g

ie
n
e
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

s
. 
T

h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

o
p
e
ra

te
s
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
s
 o

n
ly

 B
o
rd

e
r 

In
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 P

o
s
t 

w
h
e
re

 i
m

p
o
rt

e
d
 c

o
n
s
ig

n
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
fr

o
z
e
n
 f

is
h
e
ry

 p
ro

d
u
c
ts

 
fr

o
m

 3
rd
 c

o
u
n
tr

ie
s
 a

re
 i
n
s
p
e
c
te

d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

E
U

 e
n
tr

y
 

re
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
n

s
p

e
c
t 

in
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
3
0
0
 s

h
ip

s
 

a
t 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 H
a
rb

o
u

r 
in

 a
d

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 i
ts

 o
th

e
r 

p
o

rt
 

h
e
a
lt

h
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

il
it

ie
s
.  

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
s
p
e
c
ts

 f
e
e
d
 i
m

p
o
rt

e
d
 

in
to

 B
u
c
k
ie

 H
a
rb

o
u
r 

a
n
d
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f

o
r 

th
e
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 b

e
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 i
f 

a
n
y
 f

o
o
d
 

in
te

n
d
e
d
 f

o
r 

h
u
m

a
n
 c

o
n
s
u
m

p
ti
o
n
 (

e
.g

. 
g
ra

in
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

d
is

ti
lli

n
g

 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
) 

is
 i
m

p
o
rt

e
d
. 
  

 

  G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

T
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 

q
u
a
lif

ie
d
 s

ta
ff

 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 e
m

p
lo

y
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

s
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 S

tr
a
th

c
ly

d
e
 a

n
d
 U

n
iv

e
rs

ti
ty

 O
f 
W

e
s
t 
O

f 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 d

e
g

re
e
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
. 

S
tu

d
e
n
t 
E

H
O

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 i
n

 
2
0
1
4
. 
T

ra
in

in
g

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 a

u
tu

m
n
 a

n
d
 w

in
te

r 

Page 179



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
0

 

m
o
n
th

s
 t

o
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

tu
d
e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 h

a
v
e
 t

h
e
ir
 d

e
g
re

e
. 

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 a
s
s
is

ts
 i
n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

o
 g

ra
d
u
a
te

s
 

w
it
h
o
u
t 

a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 a
llo

w
 t

h
e
m

 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
ir
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
e
n
 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
y
 a

d
v
e
rs

e
 

im
p
a
c
ts

 a
re

 m
it
ig

a
te

d
. 

 
 

 
A

b
e
rd

e
e
n

s
h

ir
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 

h
a
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 C

h
a
m

p
io

n
s
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 l
e
g

is
la

ti
o
n
.  

 T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

’s
 E

q
u
a
l 
O

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 

a
lw

a
y
s
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 w

h
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 a

re
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
m

m
it
te

e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
w

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
. 
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il

 i
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 

ta
k
in

g
 a

ll 
s
te

p
s
 w

it
h
in

 i
ts

 p
o
w

e
r 

to
 e

lim
in

a
te

 d
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q

u
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 g

o
o
d
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h
ip

s
 

a
m

o
n
g

s
t 
a
ll 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
. 

 

A
c

ti
o

n
  

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 w
it
h

 f
re

s
h

 e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 
o

n
 t
h

e
 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 r

a
d
o

n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
. 

 
T

h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

Page 180



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
1

 

9
. 

C
iv

il
 C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
c
ie

s
  
 

  
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

n
d
 a

ll 
th

re
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 C

a
te

g
o
ry

 1
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs

 a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
. 
T

o
 f

u
lf
il 

o
u
r 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ti
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

c
t,
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 a

n
d
 e

a
c
h
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
s
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t

o
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 

th
re

a
te

n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 
a
n
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 p

la
n
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

e
s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
e
 o

f 
d
is

ru
p
ti
v
e
 e

v
e
n
ts

. 

 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 o

u
r 

o
w

n
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
’s

 p
la

n
s
, 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
, 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

e
g

is
 o

f 
n
e
w

 R
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
, 
to

 p
la

n
, 

a
n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

 f
o
r,

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
, 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
, 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t

o
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 

e
m

e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
. 
  

R
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 c

a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff

e
c
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
, 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 C
o
o
rd

in
a
ti
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 (

S
C

G
s
).

 

 
M

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

re
p
a
re

d
n
e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 t

a
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
b
o
th

 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
le

v
e
l,
 a

t 
th

e
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
G

L
R

P
) 

a
n
d
 

a
t 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 o

f 
S

c
o
tl
a

n
d
 R

e
g
io

n
a
l 
R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 (
N

S
R

R
P

).
  
  
P

a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

re
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 r

e
g

io
n
: 
th

is
 i
s
 d

o
n
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
 o

f 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 R

R
P

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 e

x
e
c
u
te

d
 v

ia
 4

 C
a
p
a

b
ili

ty
 G

ro
u
p
s
 a

n
d
 8

 

s
u
b
g
ro

u
p
s
, 
e
a
c
h
 w

it
h
 a

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
n

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

rc
h
in

g
 R

R
P

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
. 
 N

o
rt

h
 o

f 
S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 R

R
P

 t
a
k
e
s
 i
n
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 

T
a
y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 H

ig
h
la

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 I
s
la

n
d
s
. 

 
R

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 p

la
n
s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 r

is
k
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

N
o
rt

h
 

re
g

io
n
. 
  
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
w

 R
e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 a

rr
a
n
g

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
, 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 r

is
k
 r

e
g

is
te

rs
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 

R
e
a
d
y
 S

c
o
tl
a
n
d
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

h
tt
p
:/
/w

w
w

.r
e
a
d
y
s
c
o
tl
a
n

d
.o

rg
 .

 

 
In

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 m

o
d
e
, 

in
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 w
id

e
r 

c
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n
c
e
s
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
a
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 a

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
, 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 a

n
d
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 c

o
m

e
 t
o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
it
h
 o

th
e
r 

C
a
te

g
o
ry

 1
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

re
s
p
o
n
d
e
rs

 a
s
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 L

R
P

, 
a
n
d
 i
f 

th
e
 

s
c
a
le

, 
o
r 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
, 
o
f 

a
n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
s
 i
t,
 a

t 
re

g
io

n
a
l 
le

v
e
l 
a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

N
o
rt

h
 R

R
P

. 
 A

s
 a

 r
e
g

io
n
a
l 
g

ro
u
p
 t

h
e
 R

R
P

 b
ri
n
g

s
 

to
g

e
th

e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
r 

a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 n

o
t 
o
n
ly

 f
ro

m
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 b

u
t 
a

ls
o
 T

a
y
s
id

e
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
la

n
d
s
 &

 I
s
la

n
d
s
, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
g

e
n
c
ie

s
. 

 

Page 181



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
2

 

 
T

h
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 U

n
it
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 t
h
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 U

n
it
. 
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
 t

h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f

o
r 

e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 o

f 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
’s

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
. 
  

 
A

c
ti

o
n

 

• 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e
 C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g

e
n
c
ie

s
 A

c
t 
2
0
0
4
, 
a
n
d
 w

ill
 f

u
lf
il 

it
s
 d

u
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 A

c
t.
 

• 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
ts

 d
ri
v
e
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 a

lig
n
m

e
n
t 

w
it
h
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 S

ta
n
d
a
rd

 2
5
9
9
9
: 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 M

a
n
a
g

e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
t 

h
e
a
lt
h
c
a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
 t

h
a
t 

is
 a

b
le

 t
o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 e

v
e
n
 w

h
e
n
 f

a
c
e
d
 w

it
h
 d

is
ru

p
ti
v
e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g

e
s
. 

• 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p
ia

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t

o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 c

o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 t
h
e
 R

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

, 
d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 N

o
rt

h
 o

f 

S
c
o
tl
a
n
d
 R

R
P

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
, 

a
n
d
 e

n
s
u
re

 a
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 

c
o

-o
rd

in
a
te

d
, 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n
c
y
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
v
e
ry

 f
ro

m
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
ie

s
. 

1
0

. 
E

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 s
y
s

te
m

s
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
a
g

in
g

 o
u

tb
re

a
k

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
  

In
 e

a
rl
y
 2

0
1

4
, 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 H
P

Z
o

n
e

, 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 t
o

 s
u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h
e

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
. 

 

1
1

. 
C

a
p

a
c

it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 

T
h
e

 c
a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 p

la
n

s
. 

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 4

 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ils

. 

1
2

. 
Q

u
a

li
ty

 a
s

s
u

ra
n

c
e

, 
c
o

n
ti

n
u

in
g

 p
ro

fe
s

s
io

n
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a
s

e
d

 p
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

, 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n
d

 T
h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

lly
 s

tr
iv

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

e
 d

e
liv

e
r.

 
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 m

e
e

ts
 w

it
h

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

in
c
id

e
n
ts

. 
  

 
L

e
s
s
o
n

s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 a

n
d
 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
a

n
y
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

Page 182



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
3

 

 
T

ra
in

in
g
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

to
p

ic
s
 e

.g
. 

in
fe

c
ti
o

n
 c

o
n

tr
o
l,
 i
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o

n
 (

s
in

g
le

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
) 

A
c

ti
o

n
  

 
N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 t
h

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

n
a
ti
o
n
a

l 
g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 
 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 w

ill
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 
n

e
w

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 b
e

n
e
fi
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

Page 183



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
4

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
. 

O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
N

H
S

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 a

re
a
s

  

T
h
e

 a
re

a
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 b
y
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 e
x
te

n
d
s
 t

o
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 3

,5
0

0
 s

q
u

a
re

 m
ile

s
 o

f 
N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
. 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

1
4

 t
e

rr
it
o

ri
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 B
o
a

rd
s
 i
n
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

; 
w

it
h

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
5
5

0
,6

2
0

 (
G

R
O

S
, 
2

0
1
0

) 
a

b
o

u
t 
1

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 i
n
 S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
. 

  

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 h
a

s
 3

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 (

C
H

P
s
);

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

H
P

, 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 C
H

P
 a

n
d

 M
o

ra
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h
 

a
n

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

. 
T

h
e

 3
 C

H
P

s
 c

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

re
a

 a
s
 t

h
e

 3
 l
o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 –

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
e
 

M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

. 

In
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

 i
t 

is
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
o

u
r 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
fr

o
m

 w
h

a
t 

it
 i
s
 t
o

d
a

y
. 

 F
o

r 
e
x
a

m
p

le
 i
n

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 i
t 

is
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t

h
a

t:
 

 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
iz

e
 o

f 
th

e
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 i
s
 p

re
d

ic
te

d
 t
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 b

y
 1

2
%

 b
y
 2

0
3

3
. 

 
B

ir
th

s
 w

ill
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 b
y
 2

%
 (

1
2

0
 b

ir
th

s
) 

b
e
tw

e
e

n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 2

0
3

2
/3

3
. 

 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
g
e

d
 0

-1
5
 y

e
a

rs
 w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 2

%
 b

y
 2

0
3

3
. 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

w
o

rk
in

g
 a

g
e

 (
1
6

-6
5

 y
e

a
rs

) 
w

ill
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 5

%
. 

 
P

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

a
 p

e
n

s
io

n
a
b

le
 a

g
e

 w
ill

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 b
y
 4

6
%

 a
n

d
 t
h

o
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
7
5

 y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

a
g
e

 b
y
 1

0
7
%

. 

(d
a

ta
 f

ro
m

 G
e

n
e

ra
l 
R

e
g

is
te

r 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
, 
2

0
0
8

-b
a

s
e

d
 f

ig
u

re
s
) 

 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 i

s
 a

 m
a

in
ly

 u
rb

a
n

 p
o

rt
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 w
it
h

 a
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 2

1
7

,0
0

0
. 

 T
h
e

 C
it
y
 i

s
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 p

o
rt

 f
o
r 

th
e

 o
il 

in
d

u
s
tr

y
 w

it
h

in
 E

u
ro

p
e

 a
n
d

 r
e
ta

in
s
 a

 n
o
w

 d
im

in
is

h
in

g
 f

is
h
in

g
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

y
. 

A
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 l
a
rg

e
 f

is
h

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

e
c
to

r 
s
ti
ll 

e
x
is

ts
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 d
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 c

lo
s
u

re
 o

f 
th

e
 f

is
h
 a

u
c
ti
o
n

 m
a

rk
e
t.
  

T
h
e

re
 

is
 a

ls
o
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 d

a
ir
y
 a

n
d

 m
e
a

t 
p

ro
d
u

c
ts

 f
a

c
to

ry
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

 A
d

d
it
io

n
a
lly

, 
th

e
 c

it
y
 h

a
s
 a

 d
iv

e
rs

e
 c

a
te

ri
n

g
 s

e
c
to

r 
p

ro
d

u
c
in

g
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

tr
a
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a
n

d
 e

th
n

ic
 m

e
a

ls
, 

th
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 c

o
n

ta
in

e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e
 a

re
a

. 
T

h
e

 
c
it
y
 

h
a

s
 a

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 a

ir
 a

n
d

 s
e

a
p
o

rt
. 
 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 w

a
te

r 
s
o
u

rc
e
 i
n

 A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 p
u
b

lic
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
ly

, 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 1

0
6

 p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 w

it
h

in
 A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
 C

it
y
 a

re
 s

e
rv

e
d

 b
y
 

p
ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 

Page 184



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
5

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 i
s
 a

 p
re

d
o
m

in
a
n

tl
y
 r

u
ra

l 
a

re
a

 w
it
h

 a
 l
a

n
d

s
c
a
p

e
 w

h
ic

h
 v

a
ri
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 m

o
u

n
ta

in
o
u

s
 C

a
ir
n

g
o

rm
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 r
ic

h
 

a
g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
lo

w
la

n
d

s
 t

o
 a

 r
u
g
g
e

d
 c

o
a

s
tl
in

e
. 

 T
ra

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 i
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
a
lly

 d
e

p
e
n

d
a

n
t 
u

p
o
n

 t
h

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
(a

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

re
, 
fi
s
h
in

g
 a

n
d

 f
o

re
s
tr

y
) 

a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
in

g
 

in
d

u
s
tr

ie
s
. 
 P

e
te

rh
e
a

d
 a

n
d

 F
ra

s
e

rb
u

rg
h

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

tr
o
n

g
 f

is
h
 a

n
d

 f
is

h
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
in

g
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 a

s
 i
s
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
t 
s
e

c
to

r 
in

 a
n
d

 
a

ro
u

n
d

 I
n

v
e

ru
ri
e

. 
 W

it
h
in

 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 
3

5
 y

e
a

rs
 t

h
e
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 o
il 

a
n

d
 g

a
s
 i
n
d
u

s
tr

y
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 s

e
c
to

r 
h
a

v
e

 
le

d
 t

o
 r

a
p

id
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 g
ro

w
th

 e
q
u

a
ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

 5
0

%
 r

is
e

 s
in

c
e

 1
9
7

1
. 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

’s
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 s

ta
n
d

s
 a

t 
2

4
5

,7
8
0

 (
2
0

1
0

) 
w

it
h

 m
a

jo
r 

p
o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 a

t 
P

e
te

rh
e

a
d

, 
F

ra
s
e

rb
u

rg
h

, 
In

v
e

ru
ri
e

, 
S

to
n
e

h
a

v
e

n
, 
W

e
s
th

ill
 a

n
d

 E
llo

n
. 

T
h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o
n

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 h

a
s
 a

 r
e
la

ti
v
e

ly
 h

ig
h

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
u

n
d
e

r 
2
0

s
 a

n
d

 f
e

w
e

r 
o
v
e

r 
6
5

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 a

v
e

ra
g
e

, 
re

fl
e

c
ti
n

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
d

ri
v
e

n
 i
n

-m
ig

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
d

e
c
a

d
e

s
. 

 M
a

n
y
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
, 
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 p
ro

fi
le

, 
la

n
d

 u
s
e

 a
n

d
 c

e
n

s
u

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
 

h
tt

p
:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e
n

s
h
ir
e

.g
o

v
.u

k
/s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
/i
n

d
e

x
.a

s
p

 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
8

0
0
0

 p
ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p
p

lie
s
 i
n
 A

b
e

rd
e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 s
u

p
p

ly
in

g
 1

2
.9

%
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 c

o
v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 e
ig

h
th

 l
a

rg
e

s
t 

lo
c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
 i
n
 S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
, 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 F

ir
th

 c
o

a
s
t 

d
o

w
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
m

o
u
n

ta
in

 s
u
m

m
it
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

a
ir
n

g
o

rm
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
P

a
rk

 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

o
u

th
. 

 M
o
ra

y
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

 r
u
ra

l 
a

re
a

, 
c
o

m
p

ri
s
in

g
 7

0
%

 o
p
e

n
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
s
id

e
 a

n
d

 
a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
2
5

%
 w

o
o

d
la

n
d

. 
 In

 2
0

1
2
 t

h
e

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
M

o
ra

y
 w

a
s
 9

3
,2

9
5

 w
it
h

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 5

8
%

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

iv
e

 m
a
in

 t
o

w
n

s
 o

f 
E

lg
in

, 
B

u
c
k
ie

, 
F

o
rr

e
s
, 
K

e
it
h
 a

n
d

 
L

o
s
s
ie

m
o

u
th

. 
 M

o
ra

y
 i
s
 t

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 o

f 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

’s
 m

a
lt
 w

h
is

k
y
 i
n
d

u
s
tr

y
 w

it
h

 o
v
e

r 
5
0

 d
is

ti
lle

ri
e

s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 a

re
a

 a
ls

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

o
th

e
r 

g
lo

b
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 B

a
x
te

rs
, 
W

a
lk

e
rs

 S
h

o
rt

b
re

a
d

 a
n
d

 J
o
h

n
s
to

n
s
 o

f 
E

lg
in

. 
 A

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

th
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

y
 o

f 
M

o
ra

y
 i
s
 

re
lia

n
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 R
A

F
 L

o
s
s
ie

m
o
u

th
 b

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 A

rm
y
 b

a
rr

a
c
k
s
 a

t 
K

in
lo

s
s
. 

 

Page 185



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
6

 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 M
o
ra

y
 i
s
 c

a
te

g
o

ri
s
e

d
 a

s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

a
s
t 
d

e
p

ri
v
e

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a
n
d

 w
it
h

 n
o

 d
a

ta
 z

o
n

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

1
5

%
 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
d

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o

n
, 
it
 h

a
s
 t

h
e

 c
o
u

n
tr

y
’s

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 l
o

w
e

s
t 

m
e
d

ia
n
 g

ro
s
s
 w

e
e

k
ly

 w
a

g
e

. 
 A

ro
u

n
d

 7
1

%
 a

re
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
in

d
u

s
tr

ie
s
, 
1

1
%

 i
n

 m
a

n
u
fa

c
tu

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 9
%

 i
n
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 8

0
4

 p
ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 i
n

 M
o
ra

y
 s

e
rv

in
g
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 1

9
8

2
 p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s
 a

s
 a

t 
1

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0

1
4

  

Page 186



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
7

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
: 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

  J
o

in
t 

N
H

S
 a

n
d

 L
o

c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

la
n

s
 

 P
la

n
 

L
a
s

t 
re

v
ie

w
  

N
e
x

t 
re

v
ie

w
 

L
a
s

t 
te

s
t 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 t
e
s

t 
N

o
te

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

In
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 

D
is

e
a

s
e

 
In

c
id

e
n

t 
P

la
n
 

 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

4
 

J
u

ly
 2

0
1

6
  

R
e
g
u

la
rl
y
 

te
s
te

d
 i
n

 
o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 

In
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

u
s
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

u
p
d

a
te

d
 S

G
H

D
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

o
n

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

P
u
b

ic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 

P
u

b
lic

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e
 

to
 a

n
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
In

c
id

e
n

ts
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
4
 

A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1
6
 

 
 

R
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n
 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

u
p
d

a
te

d
 S

G
H

D
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

o
n

 M
a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

P
u
b

ic
 H

e
a

lt
h
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 

B
lu

e
 G

re
e

n
 

A
lg

a
e

 p
la

n
 

 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3
 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
7
 

U
s
e
d

 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 

N
o
n

e
 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 

 

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 

W
a
t e

rb
o

rn
e
 

H
a
z
a

rd
 P

la
n
 

2
0

1
2
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

U
s
e
d

 
re

g
u

la
rl

y
 

E
x
e

rc
is

e
d

 
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 

2
0

0
8

  

 
N

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
p

la
n

, 
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d
 l
o

c
a

lly
. 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 f

o
r 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
ill

n
e

s
s
 

in
 a

ir
c
ra

ft
 a

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
 

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r2

0
1

2
 

 2
0

1
5
 

 
 

   G
o

o
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

H
S

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

n
d

 A
b
e

rd
e
e

n
 C

it
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

d
e

a
lin

g
 w

it
h

 p
o

rt
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n
 

A
ir
p

o
rt

 a
n
d

 h
a

rb
o
u

r.
 E

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n
fe

c
ti
o

n
 

c
o

n
tr

o
l 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 A
ir
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 

Page 187



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
8

 

H
a
rb

o
u

r.
 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 f

o
r 

c
a

s
e

s
 o

f 
ill

n
e

s
s
 

in
 v

e
s
s
e

ls
 

a
rr

iv
in

g
 a

t 
A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

  
 

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2
 

 2
0

1
5
 

 
 

 
A

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 
S

e
a

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 
N

/A
 

2
0

1
2
 

N
/A

 
 

A
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
ru

is
e

 s
h

ip
s
 n

o
w

 d
o

c
k
 i
n

 
P

e
te

rh
e

a
d
 H

a
rb

o
u

r 
a
 s

e
a

p
o

rt
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
  

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 b

y
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 N
H

S
 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

. 
 

  

 M
u

lt
i  

- 
a

g
e
n

c
y
 p

la
n

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 a
e

g
is

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a
ti

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

  
 P

la
n

 
L

a
s

t 
re

v
ie

w
  

N
e
x

t 
re

v
ie

w
 

L
a
s

t 
te

s
t 

P
la

n
n

e
d

 t
e
s

t 
N

o
te

s
 a

n
d

 a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 S
C

G
 

G
e

n
e

ri
c
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
n

d
 

R
e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

3
 

2
0

1
4
 

N
/A

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 I
n

te
ri
m

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 d

u
ri
n

g
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
tr

a
n

s
it
io

n
 f

ro
m

 S
C

G
s
 t
o

 R
e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
. 

 P
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 

u
p

d
a

te
d
 o

n
c
e

 R
R

P
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

a
g
re

e
d

 a
t 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
fo

r 
lo

c
a

l 
im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

. 
 S

u
p

e
rs

e
d

e
s
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 S

C
G

 
G

e
n

e
ri
c
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
n

d
 R

e
c
o

v
e

ry
 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
. 

  

S
C

G
 P

u
b

lic
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 

P
la

n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

N
/A

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

A
 t

a
b

le
to

p
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 i
s
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 

L
ia

is
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
 

Page 188



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
3
9

 

S
C

G
 M

a
s
s
 

F
a
ta

lit
ie

s
 P

la
n
 

 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

S
e

p
t 
2

0
1

3
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

T
a
b

le
to

p
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 c

o
n
d

u
c
te

d
 i
n

 J
u

n
e
 2

0
1

1
. 
 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
e
x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

d
v
is

e
d

. 

S
C

G
 F

lo
o

d
in

g
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 p
la

n
 

2
0

1
3

 
2

0
1
4

 
D

e
c
 2

0
1

2
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d

 

 

S
C

G
 M

a
jo

r 
In

fe
c
ti
o

u
s
 

D
is

e
a

s
e

 P
la

n
 

 

2
0

1
2
 

2
0

1
3
 

N
/A

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

M
a

jo
r 

In
c
id

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

C
B

R
N

/H
a

z
m

a
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

) 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
p

r 
2
0
1

4
 

(H
o

s
p

it
a

l)
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

P
la

n
 t
o

 b
e

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

P
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

, 
N

H
S

 S
c
o

tl
a
n
d

 P
re

p
a

ri
n

g
 f

o
r 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
ie

s
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 R
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
C

G
 

C
B

R
N

/H
a

z
m

a
t 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 &
 

R
e

c
o

v
e

ry
 

P
la

n
 

 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

1
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

S
C

G
 S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 

a
n

d
 T

e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

A
d

v
ic

e
 

C
e
ll 

(S
T

A
C

) 
A

c
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
M

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

N
/A

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

S
C

G
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 P
la

n
  

2
0

1
2
 

2
0

1
3
 

O
c
t 

2
0
1

3
 

D
a
te

 y
e

t 
to

 b
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 

 T
h
e

 S
C

G
 C

a
re

 f
o

r 
P

e
o
p

le
 p

la
n

 i
s
 a

n
 

Page 189



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
0

 

(c
o
m

b
in

e
d

) 
o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
re

s
p
o

n
s
e
 t

o
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 C
a

re
 f

o
r 

P
e

o
p

le
 p

la
n

s
. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 
lo

c
a

l 
p

la
n

s
 d

e
ta

il 
h
o

w
 e

a
c
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

, 
a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 N

H
S

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
, 

w
ill

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 t

o
 C

a
re

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
o

u
n
d

a
ri
e
s
 

S
C

G
 A

n
im

a
l 

D
is

e
a

s
e

s
 P

la
n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

N
o
v
 2

0
1

2
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

S
C

G
 F

u
e

l 
P

la
n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
u

g
 2

0
1
2
 

D
a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

S
C

G
 C

o
a

s
ta

l 
P

o
llu

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
2
 

2
0

1
3
 

N
/a

 
D

a
te

 t
o

 b
e

 
a

g
re

e
d
 

 

V
a

ri
o

u
s
 s

it
e
 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 p
la

n
s
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 o

ff
s
it
e

 
p

la
n

s
 f
o

r 
C

O
M

A
H

 s
it
e

s
 i
n

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
n

tr
o
l 
o
f 

M
a

jo
r 

A
c
c
id

e
n

t 
H

a
z
a

rd
s
 R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 

1
9

9
9

 (
C

O
M

A
H

 R
e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
) 

 
 

S
C

G
 p

la
n

s
 w

ill
, 

o
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 a

n
d
 i
n

 d
u

e
 c

o
u

rs
e
, 
b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 n

e
w

 R
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

n
d
 N

o
rt

h
 o

f 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

 (
L
R

P
/R

R
P

s
) 

a
n

d
, 
w

h
e

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

re
g
io

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
p

la
n

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

is
 l
e
v
e

l 
o
f 

p
la

n
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
h
a

n
c
e
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
. 
  

 D
u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 p

h
a

s
e

 f
ro

m
 S

C
G

s
 t
o

 L
R

P
/R

R
P

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

a
rl
y
 b

e
d
d

in
g
 i
n

 p
e

ri
o
d

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
, 

th
e

 k
e

y
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 R
R

P
/L

R
P

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
. 
  

A
s
 n

e
w

 R
R

P
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

re
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

, 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
ill

 b
e

 p
u
t 

in
 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 e

x
e

rc
is

in
g
 o

f 
p

la
n

s
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h

 L
R

P
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
s
. 

  
(E

x
e

rc
is

in
g
 o

f 
C

O
M

A
H

 p
la

n
s
 i
s
 c

o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

C
O

M
A

H
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

).
 

 

Page 190



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
1

 

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

 
T

h
e

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

 (
S

O
A

) 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

s
 f
u

n
d

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 l
o

c
a

l 
g
o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e

 f
iv

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 S

c
o
tt

is
h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
(w

e
a

lt
h

ie
r 

a
n

d
 f
a

ir
e
r;

 s
m

a
rt

e
r;

 
h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r;

 g
re

e
n

e
r;

 s
a
fe

r 
a
n

d
 s

tr
o
n

g
e

r)
, 

w
h

ic
h
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
n

e
d

 b
y
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
. 

T
h
e

 S
O

A
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 e

a
c
h

 o
f 

th
e
 3

2
 C

o
u

n
c
ils

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
n

in
g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 
to

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
, 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n

t.
  
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 m

u
s
t 

c
h
a

m
p

io
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 p
u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

a
lly

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
O

A
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

g
e

n
d

a
. 

 
 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 p

la
n

s
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

U
P

D
A

T
E

 
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 

P
la

n
 

L
a
s

t 
re

v
ie

w
 

N
e
x

t 
re

v
ie

w
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n
 a

n
d

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
5
 

F
iv

e
 Y

e
a

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
2
/1

3
- 

2
0
1

7
/1

8
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 T

ra
d

in
g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
4

/1
5

 
2

0
1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

F
o
o

d
 R

e
g
u

la
to

ry
  

S
e

rv
ic

e
 P

la
n
 2

0
1

4
-2

0
1

5
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
4

-2
0

1
5

 
2

0
1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 2
0

1
1

 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
  

P
la

n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
1
 

2
0

1
2
 

A
n

im
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
lf
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 O

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
  
A

g
g
lo

m
e

ra
ti
o

n
 N

o
is

e
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
8
 

C
o
n

ta
m

in
a
te

d
 L

a
n

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
  

 
2

0
0
7
 

2
0

1
6
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 U

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

(a
ll 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ts

 c
a
n

 b
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
e
d

 v
ia

 w
w

w
.a

b
e

rd
e

e
n

c
it
y
.g

o
v
.u

k
 

 
 

Page 191



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
2

 

  

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

  

F
o
o

d
  
a

n
d

 F
e
e

d
 L

a
w

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 U

p
d

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
2
 

2
0

1
5

 (
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 

re
p

o
rt

 –
 2

0
1

4
)4

 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

F
o
o

d
 L

a
w

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
n

im
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
lf
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

C
o
n

ta
m

in
a
te

d
 L

a
n

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

1
1
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 a
n

d
 S

in
g
le

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
1
 

2
0

1
5
 

In
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
1
 

2
0

1
4
 

 T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

M
o

ra
y
 2

0
2

3
 A

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u
tu

re
 

2
0

1
4
 

2
0

1
5
 

M
o

ra
y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 S
in

g
le

 O
u

tc
o

m
e

 A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

F
o
o

d
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 I

n
c
id

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

F
o
o

d
 R

e
la

te
d

 I
n
fe

c
ti
o
u
s
 D

is
e
a

s
e

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

F
o
o

d
 L

a
w

 I
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 P

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
  

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

F
o
o

d
 S

a
m

p
lin

g
 P

o
lic

y
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
ir
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 U

p
d

a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 S
c
re

e
n

in
g
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
2

0
1
3
 

2
0

1
4

  

C
o
n

ta
m

in
a
te

d
 L

a
n

d
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

2
0

1
3
 

2
0

1
6
 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

2
0

0
8
 

2
0

1
4
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
P

o
lic

y
 

2
0

0
3
 

2
0

1
4
 

A
n

im
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 W
e
lf
a

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

la
n

 
2

0
1
2
 

2
0

1
4
 

 

 

Page 192



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
3

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 3
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
: 

re
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a
l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 O
u

tl
in

e
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 (

h
e

a
lt
h

 b
o
a

rd
 a

n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

) 
a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 (

C
D

 &
 E

H
) 
–

 s
ta

ff
in

g
 

(e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 w

h
o

le
 t

im
e

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

/f
u

ll-
ti
m

e
 e

q
u

iv
a
le

n
ts

),
 j
o

b
 t

it
le

s
, 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 (

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-s

ta
tu

to
ry

),
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t,
 t

e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 
a
n

d
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
. 
 I

n
d

ic
a
te

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
h

e
a

lt
h

 b
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

s
, 
a

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e
a
lt
h

 e
tc

. 
(S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

A
c
t 
2

0
0
8

 
 N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

 -
 a

s
 a

t 
J
a

n
u
a

ry
 2

0
1

4
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

re
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 w

h
o

le
 t

im
e
 e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

ts
 

2
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
ts

 i
n

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 M
e
d

ic
in

e
  
(C

P
H

M
) 

3
.3

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 N

u
rs

e
 S

p
e

c
ia

lis
ts

 (
H

P
N

S
) 

a
n

d
 1

 T
B

 N
u

rs
e
 S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t.

 0
.4

 o
f 

H
P

N
S

 t
im

e
 i
s
 d

ir
e

c
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

 T
B

 
1

2
 s

ta
ff

 a
re

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d
 a

s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 B
o

a
rd

 c
o

m
p
e

te
n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

s
* 

1
.0

 H
e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 C

 M
C

N
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 0

.6
 B

B
V

/H
e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 C

 p
ro

je
c
t 
m

a
n

a
g
e

r 
a

n
d
 0

.4
  

B
B

V
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 n
u

rs
e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

2
.5

 A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 

 T
h

is
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

 n
o

rm
a

lly
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 d

u
ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 d
a

y
 b

u
t 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

re
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
. 

T
h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 
H

e
a

lt
h

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
it
y
 P

la
n

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
s
e

s
 t
h
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n
ic

a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e

 a
n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

a
z
a

rd
s
. 

In
 e

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 

s
it
u

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e
d

 r
o
ta

 o
r 

s
h
if
t 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

a
n

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 s

h
o

rt
 t

e
rm

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e
 a

n
d

 a
llo

w
 f

o
r 

a
d
e

q
u

a
te

 
re

s
t 

p
e

ri
o
d

s
 d

ra
w

in
g
 o

n
 s

ta
ff

 i
n

 t
h

e
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 w
id

e
r 

N
H

S
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
f 
n

e
c
e

s
s
a

ry
. 

 M
u
tu

a
l 
A

id
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 i
n
 

p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 N

o
rt

h
e

rn
 B

o
a

rd
s
. 

 T
h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 T
e
a

m
 w

o
rk

s
 w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 p

ro
t e

c
t 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

•
 

N
H

S
, 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d
 E

m
e

rg
e

n
c
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

•
 

A
n

im
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 A

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 
•
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

H
e
a

lt
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

ra
te

 
•
 

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 W

a
te

r,
 F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
, 

S
E

P
A

 a
n

d
 H

S
E

. 
 

 W
e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
 t

h
e

 s
u

rv
e

ill
a
n

c
e

, 
in

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
o
n

tr
o
l 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
b

le
 d

is
e
a

s
e
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
-i
n
fe

c
ti
o
u

s
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
a

z
a

rd
s
. 
W

e
 l
e

a
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
s
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
 

a
re

a
s
 e

.g
. 

H
e
p

a
ti
ti
s
 C

, 
T

u
b

e
rc

u
lo

s
is

 a
n

d
 I
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o
n

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.  
W

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a
lt
h

 a
d

v
ic

e
 t

o
 N

H
S

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
, 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

o
th

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
, 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
. 

W
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

Page 193



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
4

 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
g
ro

u
p

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a
g
e
n

c
ie

s
. 
W

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 a
u

d
it
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
e

a
rc

h
. 

 N
o
t 

a
ll 

N
H

S
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 J

H
P

P
 a

re
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 T
e
a

m
 b

u
t 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 t
a

k
e
n

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 b

y
 

o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 N

H
S

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

th
e

 r
e

c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 F

in
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 S
to

c
k
ta

k
e
 w

h
e

n
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

 i
n
 2

0
1

2
. 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
  

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
 h

a
s
 2

6
.9

 F
T

E
 p

o
s
ts

 c
o
m

p
e

te
n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

s
(c

o
m

p
ri
s
in

g
 2

4
.3

 i
n
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
T

e
a
m

 a
n

d
 2

2
.6

 i
n

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

) 
a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
s
 o

f3
1

s
t  M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

4
 1

3
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 a

re
 v

a
c
a

n
t.

  
  

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
6

 F
T

E
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 c
o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 p
u
b

lic
 

h
e

a
lt
h

 f
u
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 p

lu
s
 T

ra
d

in
g
 S

ta
n
d

a
rd

s
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 u

n
d
e

r 
a
g
e

 s
a

le
s
 o

f 
to

b
a

c
c
o

. 
 S

ta
ff

 a
re

 s
p

lit
 a

c
r o

s
s
 t
w

o
 t

e
a

m
s
, 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
P

re
m

is
e
s
, 
b

u
t 
w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r.
 O

th
e

r 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 m

a
tt
e

rs
 a

s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

  
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 h
a

s
 2

4
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
* 

a
n

d
 3

3
.5

 F
T

E
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
te

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 f
u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
. 

  T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
  

M
o

ra
y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 1

1
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
* 

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 u
n
d

e
r 

th
e

 P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h
 e

tc
 (

S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

A
c
t 
2

0
0

8
 a

n
d

 a
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

1
5
 F

T
E

 s
ta

ff
 

w
h

o
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

s
.  

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 S

c
ie

n
ti

fi
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 L

a
b

o
ra

to
ry

  
A

S
S

L
 h

a
s
 2

 c
o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
p

e
rs

o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 F
o
o

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
t 
1

9
9

0
* 

 a
n

d
 1

5
 F

T
E

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l/
s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t/
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n

 w
h

o
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 p
u

b
lic

 a
n
a

ly
s
t 

fu
n

c
ti
o

n
s
 

 * 
s
e

e
 b

e
lo

w
 f

o
r 

d
e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
p
e

rs
o
n

s
 

  

Page 194



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
5

 

E
x

tr
a

c
t 

fr
o

m
 T

h
e
 P

u
b

li
c

 H
e
a

lt
h

 e
tc

. 
(S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
) 

A
c

t 
D

e
s

ig
n

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
s

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s
 2

0
0

9
 

C
ri

te
ri

a
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
lt

h
 B

o
a

rd
 C

o
m

p
e
te

n
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
s

 

 F
o
r 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
d
e

s
ig

n
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 h
e

a
lt
h
 b

o
a

rd
 c

o
m

p
e

te
n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

, 
th

a
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

 m
u

s
t:
 

•
 

b
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 o

r 
h
a

v
e

 a
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t 
fo

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

it
h

 a
 h

e
a

lt
h

 b
o

a
rd

 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a

n
d
; 

a
n

d
 

•
 

b
e

 a
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e

r 
o
n

 t
h

e
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
M

e
d

ic
a

l 
C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
 S

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 

R
e
g
is

te
r 

in
 t

h
e
 s

p
e

c
ia

lit
y
 o

f 
p
u

b
lic

 h
e
a

lt
h
 

m
e

d
ic

in
e

 w
it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

; 
o

r 
•
 

b
e

 a
 r

e
g
is

te
re

d
 m

e
d

ic
a

l 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e

r 
w

h
o

 h
a

s
 h

e
ld

 a
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t 
p
o

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 U
K

 N
H

S
 i
n
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 m
e

d
ic

in
e
 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 1
s
t 

J
a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
0

8
 w

it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 i
n

 h
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
; 
o

r 
•
 

b
e

 a
 n

u
rs

e
, 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 N

u
rs

in
g
 a

n
d
 M

id
w

if
e

ry
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 w
it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
 y

e
a

rs
 w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

; 
o

r 
•
 

b
e

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 a

s
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 R
e
g
is

te
r,

 h
a

v
in

g
 g

a
in

e
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 R
e
g
is

te
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 r

o
u

te
, 
w

it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

6
 m

o
n

th
s
’ 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
; 

o
r 

•
 

b
e

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 a

s
 a

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 R
e
g
is

te
r,

 h
a

v
in

g
 g

a
in

e
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e

 R
e
g
is

te
r 

b
y
 t

h
e
 

p
o

rt
fo

lio
 r

o
u

te
, 

w
it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
 y

e
a

rs
’ 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 i
n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
. 

C
ri

te
ri

a
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 C

o
m

p
e

te
n

t 
P

e
rs

o
n

s
 

 F
o
r 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
d
e

s
ig

n
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 
p

e
rs

o
n
 t

h
a

t 
p
e

rs
o
n

 m
u

s
t:
  

•
 

b
e

 e
m

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 i
n

 S
c
o

tl
a
n

d
; 
a

n
d

  
•
 

b
e

 a
n

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
ff

ic
e
r,

 m
e

a
n

in
g
 a

 p
e

rs
o
n

 h
o

ld
in

g
 t

h
e

 D
ip

lo
m

a
 i

n
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 
R

o
y
a

l 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a

lt
h

 I
n

s
ti
tu

te
 o

f 
S

c
o
tl
a

n
d
 (

o
r 

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
, 

w
it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
 y

e
a

rs
’ 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

s
 a

n
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
w

it
h

in
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
r 

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t.
 

 

   

Page 195



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
6

 

C
ri

te
ri

a
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

s
 f

o
r 

P
u

b
li

c
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

C
o

m
p

e
te

n
t 

P
e

rs
o

n
s

 u
n

d
e
r 

th
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
a
fe

ty
 A

c
t 

1
9

9
0

 

   F
o
r 

a
 p

e
rs

o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o

r 
d

e
s
ig

n
a

ti
o
n

 a
s
 a

 P
u
b

lic
 A

n
a

ly
s
t 

c
o
m

p
e

te
n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

 t
h

a
t 
p

e
rs

o
n

 m
u

s
t:

 

  

•
  

  
  
  

 b
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

d
 b

y
 a

 P
u

b
lic

 A
n

a
ly

s
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
n
 S

c
o

tl
a
n

d
; 
a

n
d

  

•
  

  
  
  

 
b
e

 a
n

 P
u

b
lic

 A
n

a
ly

s
t,

 m
e

a
n

in
g
 a

 p
e

rs
o
n
 h

o
ld

in
g
 t

h
e
 M

a
s
te

rs
 o

f 
C

h
e

m
ic

a
l 

A
n
a

ly
s
e

s
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 R
o
y
a
l 

S
o

c
ie

ty
 o

f 
C

h
e

m
is

tr
y
, 

w
it
h

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 

2
 y

e
a

rs
’ 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

s
 a

n
 P

u
b

lic
 A

n
a

ly
s
t 

w
it
h

in
 a

 l
o
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 o
r 

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t:
 o

r 

•
  

  
  
  

 
b

e
 a

 F
o
o

d
 E

x
a

m
in

e
r,

 m
e
a

n
in

g
 a

 p
e

rs
o
n

 h
o

ld
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 q

u
a

lif
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 a

s
 d

e
fi
n
e

d
 b

y
 T

h
e

 F
o
o
d

 
S

a
fe

ty
 (

S
a
m

p
lin

g
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
)(

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

) 
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
 2

0
1
3

 

      
 

Page 196



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
7

 

(b
) 

B
ri
e

fl
y
 o

u
tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 I
T

 a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n
d
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

(i
e

s
) 

to
 f
a

c
ili

ta
te

 h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

(C
D

&
E

H
) 

w
o

rk
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d

 o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
. 

  
N

H
S

 
G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 

C
it

y
 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 
T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 

H
a
rd

w
a

re
 

 
 

 
 

D
e
s
k
to

p
 a

n
d
 l
a

p
to

p
 c

o
m

p
u
te

rs
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

P
ri
n

te
rs

 (
b

la
c
k
 a

n
d

 w
h

it
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
lo

u
r)

 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 

P
h

o
to

c
o

p
ie

rs
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

F
a
x
 m

a
c
h

in
e

s
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

O
ff

ic
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
b

ile
 t
e

le
p
h

o
n
e

s
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 l
a

n
g
u

a
g
e

 l
in

e
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

P
e

rs
o
n
a

l 
d

ig
it
a

l 
a

s
s
is

ta
n

t 
L

im
it
e
d
 

 
ü

 
 

P
a

g
e

rs
  

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

 

A
u

d
io

-t
e

le
c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 

V
id

e
o

-c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
in

g
 e

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 
ü

 

O
n

 c
a

ll 
la

p
to

p
s
  

ü
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

 
 

C
o
n

tr
o
l 
R

o
o
m

 
ü

 
 

 
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 a

n
 e

q
u

ip
p
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 
ro

o
m

 
ü

 
 

 
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

ro
m

 h
o

m
e
 o

u
tw

it
h

 n
o

rm
a

l 
h

o
u

rs
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

L
im

it
e
d
 

S
o

ft
w

a
re

 
 

 
 

 

M
S

 O
ff

ic
e
 (

W
o
rd

, 
E

x
c
e

l,
 P

o
w

e
rP

o
in

t,
 A

c
c
e

s
s
) 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

In
te

rn
e

t 
a
n

d
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

m
a

il 
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

ü
 

S
ID

S
S

 (
S

c
o
tt

is
h
 I
n
fe

c
ti
o

u
s
 D

is
e
a

s
e

 S
u

rv
e

ill
a
n

c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
) 

ü
 

 
 

 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

 d
a
ta

b
a

s
e

s
 

–
 E

C
O

S
S

 (
E

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 
S

c
o

tl
a

n
d

),
 S

C
I 
S

to
re

 (
to

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 l
a

b
o

ra
to

ry
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
),

 S
C

I 
G

a
te

w
a

y
, 

S
H

P
IR

 (
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 I
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 

ü
 

 
 

 

Page 197



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
8

 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
),

 T
R

A
V

A
X

 (
tr

a
v
e

l 
a

d
v
ic

e
),

 T
o

x
b

a
s
e
 (

to
x
ic

o
lo

g
y
 

d
a

ta
b

a
s
e

),
 S

E
IS

S
 (

S
c
o

tt
is

h
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
In

c
id

e
n

t 
S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n

c
e

 S
y
s
te

m
),

 N
H

S
 S

c
o

tl
a
n
d

 e
-l
ib

ra
ry

. 

U
n
if
o

rm
 s

y
s
te

m
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 

 
 

 
ü

 

  (c
) 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t
h

e
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

 g
o

o
d

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 N

H
S

, 
lo

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti

e
s
 a

n
d
 

o
th

e
r 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
, 
e

.g
. 

th
e

 v
e

te
ri
n
a

ry
 s

e
rv

ic
e

, 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 W

a
te

r 
e
tc

. 
 H

o
w

 o
ft
e

n
 d

o
 t
h

e
 t
e

a
m

s
 m

e
e

t?
 H

o
w

 a
re

 p
u

b
lic

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d

 a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 s

h
a

re
d
 l
o

c
a

lly
?

 
  T

h
e

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 T

e
a
m

, 
In

fe
c
ti
o

n
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o
n

tr
o
l 
N

u
rs

e
s
, 
In

fe
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
n

tr
o
l 
D

o
c
to

r/
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a
n

t 
M

e
d

ic
a
l 

M
ic

ro
b

io
lo

g
is

t 
C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

M
e
d

ic
a
l 
V

ir
o

lo
g
is

t 
a

n
d

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 (

E
H

O
s
) 

fr
o
m

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
e

 
M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
e
e

t 
m

o
n

th
ly

 t
o

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

ll 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
b

le
 d

is
e

a
s
e

s
, 
o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
. 

 T
h
e

 D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
V

e
te

ri
n
a

ry
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r,
 A

n
im

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 A
n
a

ly
s
t,

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 S
c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 L

a
b

o
ra

to
ry

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 i
n

v
it
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

a
tt

e
n

d
. 

 
 T

h
e

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 C

P
H

M
, 

E
H

O
s
 f

ro
m

 A
b

e
rd

e
e
n

 C
it
y
, 

A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h
ir
e

 a
n

d
 T

h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

m
e
e

t 
w

it
h

 S
c
o

tt
is

h
 W

a
te

r 
s
ix

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

to
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 p
ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
q
u

a
lit

y
. 

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 a

im
s
 t
o

 h
o

s
t 

th
e

 M
e
d

ic
a

l,
 V

e
te

ri
n

a
ry

 a
n

d
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 l
ia

is
o
n

/e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 o

n
c
e
 a

 y
e

a
r.

 A
tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 

in
 p

a
s
t 
h

a
v
e

  
in

c
lu

d
e
d

 p
u

b
lic

 h
e

a
lt
h
, 

v
e

ts
 f

ro
m

 b
o

th
 A

n
im

a
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 A

g
ri
c
u

lt
u

ra
l 
C

o
lle

g
e

, 
E

H
O

s
, 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
s
ta

ff
, 

In
fe

c
ti
o

n
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
n

u
rs

e
s
, 
H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 S

c
o

tl
a

n
d
, 
S

c
o

tt
is

h
 W

a
te

r,
 S

c
o

tt
is

h
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 
F

o
o

d
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
. 

 
 

Page 198



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
4
9

 

(d
) 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t
h

e
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 r

e
s
p
o

n
d

 o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o
u

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 a
n

d
 j
o
b

 t
it
le

s
 (

N
H

S
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

),
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 t
e

c
h

n
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
. 

 N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
  

T
w

o
 t

ie
r 

ro
ta

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 s
ta

ff
e
d

 b
y
 H

P
N

S
, 

S
p

e
c
ia

lit
y
 R

e
g
is

tr
a
rs

 a
n

d
 C

P
H

M
s
. 

A
 C

P
H

M
 i
s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

1
2

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 d

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d
 a

s
 H

e
a

lt
h

 B
o

a
rd

 c
o

m
p
e

te
n
t 

o
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 a

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 b
a

s
is

. 
  

E
x
p

e
rt

 a
d

v
ic

e
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f

ro
m

 H
e

a
lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 S
c
o
tl
a

n
d

. 
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
  

O
u

t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
..

  
T

h
e

 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 O
ff

ic
e

rs
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

n
 o

u
t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 d
u

ty
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

n
 a

 r
o
ta

 b
a

s
is

. 
T

h
e

 D
u

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

is
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

 o
u

tw
it
h

 n
o

rm
a
l 
o
ff

ic
e
 h

o
u

rs
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

d
e

ta
ils

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

lie
d
 t

o
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

 I
f 

th
e
 

D
u
ty

 O
ff

ic
e
r 

re
q
u

ir
e

s
 a

s
s
is

ta
n

c
e

 t
h

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
d

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
th

e
 w

h
o

le
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 t
e

a
m

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
te

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

re
 i
s
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 p

u
t 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
a

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d
 t

o
 a

 s
it
u
a

ti
o

n
 a

ri
s
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 s
h
o

u
ld

 
th

is
 b

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

  
 

A
n

 o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 t
e

le
p

h
o

n
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
(0

8
4
5

6
 0

8
 1

2
 0

3
) 

is
 w

id
e

ly
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
d

 a
n

d
 c

ir
c
u
la

te
d

 t
o

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
. 
C

a
lls

 a
re

 
h

a
n
d

le
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e
 o

u
t-

w
it
h

 n
o

rm
a

l 
o
ff

ic
e

 h
o

u
rs

. 
T

h
e

 c
e

n
tr

e
 t
h

e
n
 c

o
n

ta
c
ts

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 
o
ff

ic
e
r 

a
n

d
 a

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

d
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

o
u

rs
e
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
.  

 T
h

e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 n

o
 2

4
 h

o
u

r 
o
n
 c

a
ll 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 T
h
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

n
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 c
o

n
ta

c
t 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

0
8

4
5

7
 5

6
5
6

5
6
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
is

 t
h
e

 f
ir
s
t 

p
o

in
t 

o
f 

c
o
n

ta
c
t.

 
  

Page 199



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
0

 

 (
e
) 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t

h
e

 a
rr

a
n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 o

r 
G

u
id

a
n

c
e
. 

 H
o
w

 o
ft

e
n

 d
o

e
s
 t
h

is
 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e

?
 

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 e

.g
. 

p
ro

m
p
te

d
 b

y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

 e
p

id
e
m

io
lo

g
y
, 

n
e

w
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
g
u

id
a

n
c
e

, 
le

s
s
o

n
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
ro

m
 

o
u

tb
re

a
k
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

. 
 

 (f
) 

O
u

tl
in

e
 t
h

e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

e
n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

k
n

o
w

le
d
g

e
, 
s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

e
te

n
c
ie

s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 d
u

ti
e
s
 i
n

 b
o
th

 t
h

e
 N

H
S

 B
o

a
rd

 a
n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

e
e
p

in
g
 u

p
 t
o

 d
a
te

 f
o

r 
o
u
t 

o
f 
h

o
u

rs
 d

u
ti
e

s
. 
 H

o
w

 i
s
 t
h

is
 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
?

  
H

o
w

 o
ft

e
n

 a
re

 t
h
e

 a
rr

a
n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
?

 
  N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

  
L

o
c
a

l 
o

n
 c

a
ll 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
n
d

 u
p

d
a
te

d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl

y
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 i
s
s
u

e
d

 a
s
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
d

 
O

n
 c

a
ll 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 o
n
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g
 C

P
D

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
u

lt
i 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

s
h
o

p
s
 e

.g
. 

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

 E
 c

o
li 

O
1
5

7
 a

n
d
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 o

f 
d

is
e
a

s
e

 
A

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 a
t 

H
e
a

lt
h

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

 c
o
u

rs
e
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

n
a

ti
o
n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 e

.g
. 

C
h
a

ir
 o

f 
S

c
ie

n
ti
fi
c
 a

n
d
 T

e
c
h
n

ic
a
l 
A

d
v
ic

e
 C

e
ll,

 
M

a
jo

r 
In

c
id

e
n

t,
 L

o
g
g
is

t 
a

n
d
  

R
e
c
o

v
e

ry
 t

ra
in

in
g

 
S

ta
ff

 r
e
v
ie

w
, 

a
g

re
e

 a
n
d

 r
e
c
o

rd
 C

P
D

 r
e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 d
u

ri
n

g
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 n

e
e
d

s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
t 

w
e

e
k
ly

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

th
ly

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 
O

n
 c

a
ll 

s
ta

ff
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

 t
o

 d
a

y
ti
m

e
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 
  A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it

y
 -

  
In

 h
o

u
s
e
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
ra

l 
d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n

te
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n

s
  

A
n

n
u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 A

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 r
e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 t
h

e
 f
o

rm
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

e
rs

o
n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
P

la
n

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o
m

p
u

ls
o
ry

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 
fo

o
d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 (

T
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 m

a
y
 a

ls
o
 b

e
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
q
u
a

lit
y
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
).

 
S

ta
ff

 c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
c
c
u
p

a
ti
o
n

a
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 a

n
d

 s
a
fe

ty
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
a

ls
o

 u
n

d
e

rg
o

 a
 R

e
g
u

la
to

r’
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
N

e
e
d

s
 A

n
a

ly
s
is

 (
R

D
N

A
) 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 g

iv
e

n
 t

o
 r

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 

R
D

N
A

 f
o

r 
o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 

S
ta

ff
 a

re
 e

n
c
o
u

ra
g
e

d
 t
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
C

P
D

 s
c
h

e
m

e
s
, 

a
n
d

 c
o
m

p
u

ls
o
ry

 C
P

D
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
. 

Page 200



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
1

 

A
 s

k
ill

s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 m

a
tr

ix
  

a
n

d
  
T

ra
in

in
g
 P

la
n
n

e
r 

fo
r 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 w
it
h

in
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
T

e
a

m
 o

f 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e
n

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
.  

R
e
g
u

la
r 

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l 
m

e
e

ti
n
g
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 d
is

c
ip

lin
e

s
 a

re
 h

e
ld

 t
o
 u

p
d

a
te

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 p

e
rt

in
e

n
t 

is
s
u
e

s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
a

n
y
 i
n

c
id

e
n
ts

. 
 T

h
e

s
e

 m
e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

re
 m

in
u

te
d

. 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

 i
s
 m

a
d

e
 f
o

r 
e
s
s
e
n

ti
a

l 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

p
e
te

n
c
e

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

. 
 R

e
c
o

rd
s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 f
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

 
 S

ta
ff

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
n

g
 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 d

u
ty

 r
o

ta
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t

o
 t
h

e
m

 f
ro

m
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

ff
 i
n

 
th

e
 t
e

a
m

 s
h
o

u
ld

 t
h
e

y
 n

e
e

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 d
e

a
l 
w

it
h

 a
n

y
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
in

c
id

e
n
t.

  
  A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

  
T

ra
in

in
g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
E

m
p

lo
y
e

e
 D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

R
e
v
ie

w
 S

c
h

e
m

e
. 
 

S
ta

ff
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 f

o
o

d
 h

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0

 h
o
u

rs
 o

f 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

  
S

ta
ff

 a
tt
e

n
d
 f

o
c
u

s
 g

ro
u
p

s
, 

te
a

m
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
, 

s
e
m

in
a

rs
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 w

h
e

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 
  

M
a

n
y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
a

k
e

 p
a

rt
 i
n
 t
h

e
 R

E
H

IS
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 o

f 
C

P
D

 a
n

d
 a

tt
a

in
 o

r 
m

a
in

ta
in

 C
h

a
rt

e
re

d
 S

ta
tu

s
. 

 S
e

rv
ic

e
  

M
a
n

a
g
e

r,
 T

e
a

m
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 S
e

n
io

r 
E

H
O

s
 a

re
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

in
g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 C
P

D
.T

h
is

 i
s
 t

h
e

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

o
f 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
. 

A
n

 o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 e
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

lis
t 

is
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
g
u

la
rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

S
ta

ff
 o

n
 t
h

e
 o

u
t 

o
f 

h
o
u

rs
 l
is

t 
a

re
 e

q
u

ip
p

e
d

 w
it
h

 l
a

p
to

p
s
 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 t
h
e

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 a
n

d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o

u
rs

 r
e

s
p
o

n
s
e

.  
  T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
  

T
ra

in
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

re
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 A

ll 
E

H
O

’s
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 i
n

 R
E

H
IS

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 

o
f 

C
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 C

h
a

rt
e
re

d
 S

ta
tu

s
. 
 S

ta
ff

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 F

o
o

d
 H

y
g
ie

n
e

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 1
0
 h

o
u

rs
 o

f 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 f
o

o
d

 h
y
g
ie

n
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

  
S

ta
ff

 a
tt
e

n
d

 R
E

H
IS

 s
e
m

in
a

rs
, 

in
te

rn
a

l 
fo

c
u

s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 
s
ta

ff
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

h
e

re
 c

h
a

n
g
e

s
 t
o

 l
e

g
is

la
ti
o

n
, 
c
o

d
e

s
 o

f 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
re

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d

. 
   

Page 201



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
2

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 4
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
: 

c
a

p
a

c
it

y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
il

ie
n

c
e

 
   N

H
S

 G
ra

m
p

ia
n

  
C

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 w
e

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
o

u
r 

re
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 p
a

n
d

e
m

ic
 i
n
fl
u
e

n
z
a

. 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 P

la
n

s
 w

e
re

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 
u

p
d
a

te
d
 i
n

 2
0

1
1

. 
  

 M
u

tu
a

l 
a

id
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 N
o

rt
h
e

rn
 B

o
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

4
 a

s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

d
 b

y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

s
ig

n
e

d
 b

y
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

s
. 

   A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
 C

it
y
  

 
R

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 t
e

s
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 s

e
v
e

ra
l 
la

rg
e

 s
c
a

le
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 o

v
e

r 
re

c
e
n

t 
y
e

a
rs

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 h
a

s
 a

lw
a

y
s
 

c
o

p
e
d

 w
it
h

 d
e
m

a
n
d

, 
p
o

te
n
ti
a

l 
g
a

p
s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

, 
in

 t
e

rm
s
 o

f 
b
o

th
 t

h
e

 o
u

t 
o
f 

h
o
u

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
 t
e

a
m

’s
 g

e
n

e
ra

l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 t

o
 

re
s
p

o
n
d

 s
h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
re

 b
e

 v
e

ry
 h

ig
h

 d
e

m
a

n
d

. 
 

 A
c
c
o

rd
in

g
ly

, 
th

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 2

0
1

1
 w

it
h

 a
n

 e
m

p
h
a

s
is

 o
n

 m
u

lt
i -

d
is

c
ip

lin
a
ry

 t
e

a
m

s
  

a
n

d
 

m
u

lt
i-
s
k
ill

in
g
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n

 a
 v

a
ri
e

ty
 o

f 
d

is
c
ip

lin
e

s
 o

f 
e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
e
s
p

o
n
d

 
w

h
a

te
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

c
id

e
n

t.
  

 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 D
u

ty
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

o
u
t 

o
f 

h
o
u

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
. 

 A
 m

u
c
h
 l
a

rg
e

r 
p
o

o
l 
o
f 

E
H

O
s
 

n
o

w
 s

ta
ff

 t
h

e
 D

u
ty

 O
ff

ic
e

r 
R

o
ta

, 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

, 
a

n
d
 t

h
e

 r
o
le

 o
f 

th
e
 d

u
ty

 o
ff

ic
e

r 
in

 r
e
s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 c
la

ri
fi
e
d

. 
  

 W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
io

n
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

th
ro

u
g
h

 a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

tr
a

in
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
s
e

d
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 E

H
O

s
 i
s
 

h
e

lp
in

g
 t

o
 m

a
in

ta
in

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
. 

 T
h
e

 o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n

ts
 m

a
d
e

 i
f 

n
e
e

d
e
d

 t
o

 m
a
x
im

is
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

. 

Page 202



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
3

 

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 P

la
n

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d

 a
re

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 A

p
ri
l 
2

0
1

2
 

 In
fo

rm
a

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t s
 e

x
is

t 
fo

r 
jo

in
t 

w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri
n

g
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

t 
ti
m

e
s
 o

f 
e

x
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 d

e
m

a
n

d
. 

  A
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e

 
T

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 i
s
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

) 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 a

u
d

it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 A
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
In

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n
d

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

 
   T

h
e
 M

o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c

il
  

T
h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 a

u
d

it
e
d

 p
e

ri
o

d
ic

a
lly

 b
y
 t

h
e

 F
o

o
d

 S
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 A

g
e

n
c
y
 (

S
c
o

tl
a

n
d

).
  

 In
 2

0
1

3
 t

h
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

c
ti
o
n

 w
a

s
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
c
il’

s
 D

e
s
ig

n
in

g
 B

e
tt

e
r 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
E

H
O

’s
 a

n
d
 a

re
a

 t
e
a

m
s
 b

o
th

 b
e

in
g
 h

a
lv

e
d

 d
o

w
n

 t
o

 t
w

o
.  

 A
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

it
y
 p

la
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
e
d

 a
n
d

 i
s
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
to

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 

    . 
 

Page 203



J
o
in

t 
H

e
a

lt
h
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 2

0
1
4

-1
6

 
A

p
p
ro

v
e

d
 A

u
g

u
s
t 

2
0

1
4

 
5
4

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
 H

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
: 

p
u

b
li
c

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 f

e
e

d
b

a
c

k
 

 C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 p

e
rc

e
iv

e
d

 a
n

d
 a

c
tu

a
l 
ri
s
k
s
 t
o

 h
e
a

lt
h

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

m
a

n
a

g
in

g
 a

n
y
 i
n

c
id

e
n
t 

o
r 

o
u

tb
re

a
k
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 c

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 i
n
 t

h
e

 N
H

S
, 
L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 g
o

o
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 p
u
b

lic
. 

A
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 t
e

a
m

 a
tt

e
n

d
s
 a

ll 
o

u
tb

re
a

k
 

a
n

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n
t 

c
o
n

tr
o
l 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
. 

  N
H

S
 G

ra
m

p
ia

n
 -

 D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 d

u
ri
n

g
 o

u
tb

re
a

k
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 i
n
fo

rm
 h

o
w

 a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
w

e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
te

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

ia
. 
 F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

ls
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 a

n
d
, 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
, 

re
lig

io
u

s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

, 
h
o

te
ls

, 
c
a

re
 h

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 a
llo

w
e

d
 u

s
 t
o

 t
a

ilo
r 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
s
t 
e
ff

e
c
t.

  
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

 C
it
y
’s

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h
 a

n
d

 T
ra

d
in

g
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

  
is

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 i
ts

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o
r 

p
u

b
lic

 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 w

it
h

 a
 v

ie
w

 t
o

 t
a

k
in

g
 a

 m
o

re
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

, 
a

n
d
 i
t 

is
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 m
a
k
in

g
 u

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it
iz

e
n

’s
 P

a
n

e
l 
a
n

d
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
n
a

ir
e

s
 f
o

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

r 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
. 

 
 A

b
e

rd
e

e
n

s
h

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 o
th

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

C
it
iz

e
n

s
 P

a
n

e
l 

S
u

rv
e

y
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

. 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
s
 t
e

a
m

 a
re

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
h
a
n

d
lin

g
 m

e
d

ia
 e

n
q
u

ir
ie

s
. 

F
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 i
s
 e

s
s
e

n
ti
a

l 
in

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

re
 a

re
 m

a
n

y
 f

o
rm

a
lis

e
d

 w
a

y
s
 f

o
r 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 s

a
y
. 
h

tt
p

:/
/w

w
w

.a
b

e
rd

e
e

n
s
h

ir
e
.g

o
v
.u

k
/c

o
n

ta
c
t/

in
d

e
x
.a

s
p

  
 

 A
 s

tu
d

y
 d

o
n

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
p

ri
v
a

te
 w

a
te

r 
s
u
p

p
lie

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
in

g
 S

o
lic

it
o

rs
 a

n
d
 E

s
ta

te
 A

g
e

n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 w
a

s
 

d
o

n
e

 t
o
 l
o

o
k
 a

t 
fe

e
d
b

a
c
k
 t

o
 i
n

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 i
t 

w
it
h

in
 f

u
tu

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 T

h
e

 M
o
ra

y
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

u
s
e

s
 a

 C
it
iz

e
n

s
 P

a
n

e
l 
to

 o
b

ta
in

 p
u
b

lic
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o
n

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

in
io

n
s
 o

n
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 
T

h
e

 C
o
u
n

c
il 

a
ls

o
 

u
ti
lis

e
s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 M

o
n

k
e

y
 f

o
r 

fe
e

d
b
a

c
k
 o

n
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
o
th

 t
o

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b

lic
 a

n
d

 t
o

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
. 

 T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 E

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
 a

d
v
is

e
s
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 t
h

e
m

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
 c

a
n

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
o
b

ta
in

 o
p

in
io

n
s
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
u

b
je

c
ts

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
. 

 

Page 204



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 1 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

 
 
 
Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment - the Form 
 
 
There are separate guidance notes to accompany this form – “Equality and Human 
Rights Impact Assessment – the Guide.”  Please use these guidance notes as you 
complete this form.  Throughout the form, proposal should be understood broadly to 
include the full range of our activities and could refer to a decision, policy, strategy, 
plan, procedure, report or business case, embracing a range of different actions such 
as setting budgets, developing high level strategies and organisational practices such 
as internal restructuring.  Essentially everything we do! 
 
STEP 1: Identify essential information 
 
 
1. Committee Report No. 
 
 
2. Name of proposal. 
 
 
3. Officer(s) completing this form. 
 
Name Designation Service Directorate 
Hazel Stevenson 
 
 

Environmental 
Protection Team 
Leader 

Environmental 
Health and 
Trading Standards 

Housing and 
Environment 

 
4. Date of Impact Assessment. 
 
 
5. When is the proposal next due for review? 
 
 
6. Committee Name. 
 
 
7. Date the Committee is due to meet. 
 

2016 

23rd April 2014 

Approval of the Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan 
2014-2016 

HE14061 

Housing and Environment 

26 August 2014 

Page 205



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 2 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

 
8. Identify the Lead Council Service and who else is involved in delivering this 
proposal (for example other Council services or partner agencies). 
 
Environmental Health and Trading Standards Service, Aberdeen City Council 
Environmental Health Service, Aberdeenshire Council 
Environmental Health Service, Moray Council 
NHS Grampian Health Protection 
 
 
9. Please summarise this Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment (EHRIA).  
This must include any practical actions you intend to take or have taken to reduce, 
justify or remove any adverse negative impacts.  This must also include a summary 
of how this proposal complies with the public sector equality duty for people with 
protected characteristics - see Step 2.  Please return to this question after 
completing the EHRIA. 
 
The joint health protection plan has an overall positive effect on inequalities in health 
which it seeks to address through targeted interventions aimed at protecting those 
most at risk from a variety of communicable diseases and environmental hazards 
 
 
 
10. Where will you publish the results of the Equality and Human Rights Impact 
Assessment?  Tick which applies. 
 

√ Para 9 of EHRIA will be published in committee report in Section 6 “Impact” 

� Full EHRIA will be attached to the committee report as an appendix 

□ Copied to Equalities Team to publish on the Council website 
 
STEP 2: Outline the aims of the proposal 
 
11. What are the main aims of the proposal? 
 
The Joint Health Protection Plan outlines national and local priorities for health 
protection and the action planned by Aberdeen City Council in partnership with 
Grampian NHS and, where appropriate, with Aberdeenshire and Moray Councils, and 
the arrangements for protecting the health of the public from communicable disease 
and environmental hazard.  
 
 
12.  Who will benefit most from the proposal? 
 
All members of the public across Grampian, but action is targeted to protect those 
most at risk due to their age, gender, location, circumstance etc 
 
 
 
13. You should assess the impact of your proposal on equality groups and tell us 
how implementing this proposal will impact on the needs of the public sector equality 
duty to: eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; advance equality of 
opportunity; and foster good relations. 

Page 206



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 3 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

 
The Joint Health Protection Plan seeks to minimise inequalities in health by protecting 
those who are most vulnerable to specific threats to their health. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STEP 3: Gather and consider evidence 

15. What evidence is there to identify any potential positive or negative impacts in 
terms of involvement, consultation, research, officer knowledge and experience, 
equality monitoring data, user feedback and other?  You must consider relevant 
evidence, including evidence from equality groups. 

 
Grampian NHS has access to epidemiological and morbidity data which can be used to 
verify if the Joint Health Protection Plan is effective and also allows for positive and 
negative impacts to be identified. 
 
 
 
STEP 4:  Assess likely impacts on people with Protected Characteristics 
 
16. Which, if any, people with protected characteristics and others could be affected 

positively or negatively by this proposal?  Place the symbol in the relevant box.  
Be aware of cross-cutting issues, such as older women with a disability 
experiencing poverty and isolation. 

 
(Positive +, neutral 0, - negative) 
 
Protected Characteristics 
Age - Younger 
 Older 

+ Disability + Gender 
Reassignment* 

 

Marriage or Civil 
Partnership 

 Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

+ Race** + 

Religion or Belief  Sex (gender)*** + Sexual 
orientation**** 

+ 

Others e.g. 
poverty 

+    

 
Notes: 
 
* Gender Reassignment includes Transsexual 
 
** Race includes Gypsy/Travellers 
 
*** Sex (gender) i.e. men, women 
 
**** Sexual orientation includes LGB: Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual 
 
17. Please detail the potential positive and/or negative impacts on those with 
protected characteristics you have highlighted above. 

Page 207



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 4 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

 
In making the assessment you must consider relevant evidence, including evidence 
received from individuals and equality groups.  Having considered all of these 
elements, you must take account of the results of such assessments.  This requires 
you to consider taking action to address any issues identified, such as removing or 
mitigating any negative impacts, where possible, and exploiting any potential for 
positive impact.  If any adverse impact amounts to unlawful discrimination, the 
policy must be amended to avert this.  Detail the impacts and describe those 
affected. 
 
 
Positive impacts 
(describe protected characteristics 
affected) 
The Joint health Protection Plan seeks to 
address health risks that may impact 
more severely on people with protected 
characteristics 
 

Negative Impacts 
(describe protected characteristics affected) 
 

 

Page 208



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 5 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

STEP 5: Human Rights - Apply the three key assessment tests for compliance 
assurance 
 
18. Does this proposal/policy/procedure have the potential to interfere with an 
individual’s rights as set out in the Human Rights Act 1998?  State which rights might 
be affected by ticking the appropriate box(es) and saying how.  If you answer “no”, 
go straight to question 22. 
 
� Article 3 – Right not to be subjected to torture, inhumane or degrading treatment or 
punishment 
� Article 6 – Right to a fair and public hearing 
� Article 8 – Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence 
� Article 10 – freedom of expression 
� Other article not listed above 
 
How? 
 
 
Legality 
 
19. Where there is a potential negative impact is there a legal basis in the relevant 
domestic law? 
 
 
 
 
 
Legitimate aim 
 
20. Is the aim of the policy identified in Steps 1 and 2 a legitimate aim being served 
in terms of the relevant equality legislation or the Human Rights Act? 
 
 
 
 
 
Proportionality 
 
21. Is the impact of the policy proportionate to the legitimate aim being pursued?  Is it 
the minimum necessary interference to achieve the legitimate aim? 
 
 
 
 
 
STEP 6: Monitor and review 
 
22. How will you monitor the implementation of the proposal?  (For example, 
customer satisfaction questionnaires) 
 
The Joint health Protection Plan is reviewed by the three councils and NHS Grampian 
Health Protection every two years, giving an opportunity for assessing its effectiveness  

Page 209



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 6 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

 
 
 
23. How will the results of this impact assessment and any further monitoring be 
used to develop the proposal? 
 
n/a 
 
 
 
STEP 7 SIGN OFF 
 
The final stage of the EHRIA is formally to sign off the document as being a 
complete, rigorous and robust assessment. 
 
Person(s) completing the impact assessment. 
 
Name Date Signature 
Hazel Stevenson 
Environmental Protection 
Team Leader 
 
 

23 July 2014  

 
Quality check: document has been checked by 
 
Name Date Signature 
 
 
 

  

 
Head of Service (Sign-off) 
 
Name Date Signature 
Mark Reilly 
Head of Environmental 
Services 
 
 

  

 
Now – 
Please send an electronic copy of your completed EHRIA - without signatures - 
together with the proposal to: 
 
Equalities Team 
Customer Service and Performance 
Corporate Governance 
Aberdeen City Council 
Business Hub 13 
Second Floor North 
Marischal College 
Broad Street 

Page 210



Equality and Human Rights Impact Assessment – the Form. 

 7 V6 – 19 December 2012 
 

Aberdeen 
AB10 1AB 
 
Telephone 01224 523039  Email sandrab@aberdeencity.gov.uk 
 

Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 8.1

Page 213

Exempt information as described in paragraph(s) 2 of Schedule 7A

of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted



Page 216

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.1 Minute of Previous Meeting of 20 May 2014
	3.2 Committee Business Statement
	3.3 Annual Reports List
	4.1 Housing and Environment Business Plan Performance and Actions - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-065 - Appendix

	5.1 2014/15 Housing Capital Programme - Joint Report by the Director of Housing and Environment and Acting Director of Corporate Governance
	5.2 2014/15 Revenue Monitoring Report - Joint report by the Director of Housing and Environment and the Acting Director for Corporate Governance
	H&E-14-063 appendix

	5.3 Capital Monitoring - Housing and Environment Projects - Report by the Director of Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure
	6.1 Development of an Asset Management Model for the Councils Housing Stock - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.2 Rent Arrears Update - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.3 Update on the Review of Void Processes - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.4 Housing for Varying Needs Review - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.5 Haudagain Improvement Scheme - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-053 EHRIA
	Risk assessment

	6.6 Proposed Extended Use of Enforcement Funding - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	6.7 Scottish Social Housing Charter Annual Report to Tenants - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	7.1 Grampian Joint Health Protection Plan - Report by the Director of Housing and Environment
	H&E-14-061 appendix
	H&E-14-061 EHRIA

	8.1 Police Houses - Report by the Director of Community and Infrastructural Services

